
 

BEFORE THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF KANSAS

In the Matter of The Empire District Electric
Company Filing Compliance Reports and
Information as Prescribed by Commission
Order Dated July 9, 2020, in Docket No.
20-EPDE-427-ACT

)
)
) Docket No. 21-EPDE-072-CPL
)
)

COMPLIANCE FILING

The Empire District Electric Company ("Liberty-Empire"), pursuant to the requirements of the

Commission's Order issued in Docket No. 20-EPDE-427-ACT ("427 Docket") on July 9, 2020, is

providing the attached information in compliance with the Commission's Order.

WHEREFORE, Liberty-Empire requests the information provided be accepted by the

Commission in compliance with the reporting requirements in the 427 Docket.

___________________________________________
James G. Flaherty, #11177
ANDERSON & BYRD, LLP
216 S. Hickory ~ P.O. Box 17
Ottawa, Kansas  66067
(785) 242-1234, telephone
(785) 242-1279, facsimile
jflaherty@andersonbyrd.com

Diana C. Carter
Liberty Utilities - Empire District
428 E. Capitol Ave., Suite 303
Jefferson City, Missouri  65101
Phone: (573) 289-1961
Email: Diana.Carter@libertyutilities.com

Attorneys for The Empire District Electric Company

202009251436464790
Filed Date: 09/25/2020

State Corporation Commission
of Kansas



 

 
 

VERIFICATION

STATE OF KANSAS
COUNTY OF FRANKLIN, ss:

James G. Flaherty, of lawful age, being first duly sworn on oath, states:

That he is the attorney for The Empire District Electric Company named in the foregoing

Compliance Filing and is duly authorized to make this affidavit; that he has read the foregoing and

knows the contents thereof; and that the facts set forth therein are true and correct.

___________________________________________
James G. Flaherty

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 25th day of September, 2020.

___________________________________________
Notary Public

Appointment/Commission Expires:
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NOTARY PUBLIC • State of Kansas 
RONDA ROSSMAN 

My Appl. Exp. 9!3 :J.J.. 



 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a copy of the above and foregoing was sent via electronic mail this 25th

day of September, 2020, addressed to:

Joseph R. Astrab
j.astrab@curb.kansas.gov

Todd E. Love
t.love@curb.kansas.gov

David W. Nickel
d.nickel@curb.kansas.gov

Shonda Rabb
s.rabb@curb.kansas.gov

Della Smith
d.smith@curb.kansas.gov

Cole Bailey
c.bailey@kcc.ks.gov

Diana C. Carter
Diana.Carter@libertyutilities.com

___________________________________________
James G. Flaherty
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Liberty Utilities - Empire Electric

Docket No. 20-EPDE-427-ACT

Semi-annual filing - March 2020 - August 2020
Paragraph 2

March 2020 April 2020 May 2020 June 2020 July 2020 August 2020

Revenue Impact - under analysis -$                -$           -$             -$          -$               -$              

Increased Costs
Cost Category

Late Payment Fees 5,809$            37,878$     30,664$        32,956$    39,119$         41,522$        
Uncollectibles/Bad Debt (2,707)$           (2,140)$      (2,658)$        55,275$    (2,793)$          (3,494)$         
IT Costs / Remote Work -$                 $          281  $            331  $         178  $           1,250  $             586 
WiFi Expenses
Supply Chain/Cleaning/PPE -$                 $          487  $            573  $         308  $           2,165  $         1,015 
Communication -$                -$           -$             -$          -$               -$              
Legal Fees - under analysis -$                -$           -$             -$          -$               163$             
Meals -$                34$             39$               21$           149$              70$               

Decreased Costs
Cost Category

Training & Travel -$                434$          346$             667$         424$              338$             
Utilities -$                -$           -$             -$          -$               -$              

Labor
Incremental  Only for Recovery -$                186$          219$             118$         828$              388$             

a.      A detailed identification of all COVID-19 related cost increases and decreases that Empire-Liberty has tracked to date. 
These costs should be separated and reported by detailed cost category and by month;



Liberty Utilities - Empire Electric

Docket No. 20-EPDE-427-ACT

Semi-annual filing - March 2020 - August 2020
Paragraph 2

b.     A detailed identification of revenue changes by customer class, both increases and decreases, during the COVID-19 pandemic;

March 2020 April 2020 May 2020 June 2020 July 2020 August 2020

Residential NM-Net Metering (34)$                   (12)$                  (103)$             (59)$              (28)$                (37)$                  
PL-Private Lighting 17,163$             16,689$            17,256$          17,021$        17,161$          17,236$            
RG-Residential 543,414$           463,072$          422,146$       553,707$      821,287$        830,898$          
RG-Residential Water Heat 88,857$             76,373$            69,500$          81,843$        120,575$        123,388$          
RH-Residential Total Elec 302,992$           233,589$          191,327$       210,065$      293,602$        290,236$          

Residential Total 952,391$           789,711$          700,127$       862,577$      1,252,596$     1,261,722$       

Commercial CB-Commercial 168,725$           141,306$          127,488$       156,319$      228,716$        239,535$          
GP-General Power 175,304$           157,798$          150,967$       164,025$      209,155$        220,641$          
LS-Special Lighting 411$                  404$                 365$               398$              493$               584$                 
NM-Net Metering -$                   (13)$                  (84)$               (123)$            (13)$                (94)$                  
PL-Private Lighting 14,899$             15,128$            15,005$          14,735$        15,436$          15,066$            
SH-Small Heating 23,821$             13,735$            13,377$          15,905$        23,420$          22,487$            
TEB-Total Electric Bldg 70,623$             45,324$            39,034$          44,479$        62,226$          66,086$            

Commercial Total 453,784$           373,683$          346,153$       395,737$      539,433$        564,306$          

Industrial CB-Commercial 4,293$               2,714$              3,229$            2,623$           3,415$            2,639$              
GP-General Power 117,925$           108,243$          107,014$       107,835$      124,151$        128,429$          
PL-Private Lighting 3,149$               3,155$              3,127$            3,100$           3,118$            3,130$              
PT-Transmission 294,641$           274,058$          277,117$       270,054$      254,216$        282,197$          
SH-Small Heating 652$                  2,902$              607$               597$              547$               680$                 
TEB-Total Electric Bldg 2,538$               6,750$              1,450$            4,138$           6,089$            3,753$              

Industrial Total 423,198$           397,822$          392,544$       388,347$      391,535$        420,828$          

CB-Commercial 1,201$               2,231$              2,089$            2,196$           2,481$            2,556$              
LS-Special Lighting 223$                  133$                 139$               293$              1,182$            1,449$              
PL-Private Lighting 188$                  190$                 187$               186$              188$               188$                 
SPL-Municipal St Lighting 18,387$             16,935$            16,989$          16,389$        16,080$          16,387$            

Muni Street & Highway Lighting Total 19,999$             19,489$            19,405$          19,065$        19,931$          20,579$            

CB-Commercial 14,290$             12,677$            11,449$          12,404$        16,708$          17,804$            
GP-General Power 26,019$             24,356$            23,033$          24,567$        24,624$          23,834$            
LS-Special Lighting 48$                    49$                   84$                 47$                42$                 -$                  
PL-Private Lighting 43$                    43$                   43$                 42$                43$                 43$                   
SH-Small Heating 1,426$               940$                 559$               591$              895$               943$                 
TEB-Total Electric Bldg 1,142$               1,087$              1,005$            1,174$           1,529$            1,535$              

Other Public Authority Total 42,967$             39,152$            36,172$          38,826$        43,841$          44,159$            

Grand Total 1,892,340$        1,619,858$       1,494,401$    1,704,552$   2,247,337$     2,311,594$       

Muni Street & 
Highway Lighting

Other Public Authority



Liberty Utilities - Empire Electric

Docket No. 20-EPDE-427-ACT

Semi-annual filing - March 2020 - August 2020
Paragraph 2

COVID-19 has not impacted Empire-Liberty’s capital expenditure program during the period.

c.      The impact COVID-19 has had on the Empire-Liberty's capital 
expenditure program during the previous semi annual period



Liberty Utilities - Empire Electric

Docket No. 20-EPDE-427-ACT

Semi-annual filing - March 2020 - August 2020
Paragraph 2
Redacted

d.     Any issuances of short-term and long-term debt during the previous 
semi-annual period and the all-in costs at which that financing was issued;

CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL
INFORMATION

NOT AVAILBLE TO THE PUBLIC.
ORIGINALS FILED UNDER SEAL

1 of 1



Liberty Utilities - Empire Electric

Docket No. 20-EPDE-427-ACT
Redacted
Semi-annual filing - March 2020 - August 2020
Paragraph 2

e.      The embedded cost of short-term debt for the semi-annual period.

CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL
INFORMATION

NOT AVAILBLE TO THE PUBLIC.
ORIGINALS FILED UNDER SEAL



Liberty Utilities - Empire Electric

Docket No. 20-EPDE-427-ACT
Redacted
Semi-annual filing - March 2020 - August 2020
Paragraph 2

f.      Updated and most recent credit metrics calculated by Empire-Liberty 
or provided to the company by nationally recognized credit rating 
agencies;

CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL
INFORMATION

NOT AVAILBLE TO THE PUBLIC.
ORIGINALS FILED UNDER SEAL



Liberty Utilities - Empire Electric

Docket No. 20-EPDE-427-ACT

Semi-annual filing - March 2020 - August 2020
Paragraph 2

See:
Attachment A Email received from Moodys.pdf
Attachment B Email received from S and P.pdf
Attachment C Email sent to Moodys.pdf
Attachment C Email sent to Moodys Redacted.pdf
Attachment D Email sent to S and P.pdf
Attachment D Email sent to S and P Redacted.pdf

g.     Any correspondence with nationally recognized credit rating agencies and 
equity analysts during the semi-annual period



Liberty Utilities - Empire Electric

Docket No. 20-EPDE-427-ACT

Semi-annual filing - March 2020 - August 2020
Paragraph 2

h.     Copies of credit rating agencies and equity analysts' reports published during the previous semi-annual period.

  Response:
  No credit rating agency reports issued during the period or presentations given to same regarding Empire.

Equity Analyst Reports
Ben Pham Date/Time Contributor Headline (4)

14 Aug '20 02:06 AM BMO Capital Markets Q2 - Grinding Through a Soft Patch; Reiterate Market Perform Rating
17 Jul '20 10:50 AM BMO Capital Markets Resuming Coverage With Market Perform Rating Following C$983M Equity Issuance
17 Jun '20 07:50 PM BMO Capital Markets Introductory Virtual Meeting With Incoming CEO Arun Banskota
08 May '20 03:35 AM BMO Capital Markets Lowering Rating to Market Perform; Q1 Results Fall Short But 10% Divvy Increase

Julien Dumoulin-SmithDate/Time Contributor Headline (8)
05 Aug '20 08:19 AM BofA Global Research North American Utilities & IPPs >> Power Points: Outages quite large; PennEast success; WTR; AQN; MVP; DoE
04 Aug '20 10:38 AM BofA Global Research North American Utilities & IPPs >> Power Points: BKH 2Q, EVRG Accretion, AQN Setback, CNP Costs, WTRG, AEP
31 Jul '20 09:21 AM BofA Global Research North American Utilities & IPPs >> Power Points: Lessons from 2Q; ES; AQN; AES; PPL; BKH; PJM Load Revision; CMS
20 Jul '20 09:44 AM BofA Global Research North American Utilities & IPPs >> Power Points: Previews & 2Q Kick Off; ComEd; AQN; Solar Policy; NI, EXC, AEP
09 Jul '20 08:27 AM BofA Global Research North American Utilities & IPPs >> Power Points: More Dom Reactions, AQN, XEL, ETR, Clean Energy
26 May '20 07:09 AM BofA Global Research North American Utilities & IPPs >> Power Points: AQN in MO, PPL ROE, LNT, AGR, AEE, PCG, SO, PTCs
05 May '20 07:14 AM BofA Global Research North American Utilities & IPPs >> Power Points: BKH Guide 1st Take, China Retaliation, ES/AQN, NWP12, SO
09 Mar '20 04:04 PM BofA Global Research North American Utilities & IPPs >> Power Points: PCG Gov; AQN share sales

Mark Jarvi Date/Time Contributor Headline (8)
14 Aug '20 03:10 PM CIBC Capital Markets Despite Some Shorter-term Challenges, The Longer-term Growth Looks Solid For Patient Investors.
13 Aug '20 10:00 PM CIBC Capital Markets Q2/20 First Look: Weaker Utility Results Largely Due To COVID, While Power Was In Line; 2020 Guidance Reiterated
30 Jul '20 10:35 AM CIBC Capital Markets Deal With Chevron To Develop Renewable Assets-Unique Opportunity, But Impact Hard To Quantify
17 Jul '20 11:15 AM CIBC Capital Markets Equity Raise De-risks Funding Plan
14 Jun '20 12:20 PM CIBC Capital Markets Added To The S&P/TSX 60 Index
10 May '20 06:05 PM CIBC Capital Markets Stick With It-Levers To Manage Headwinds & Deliver Growth
07 May '20 10:00 PM CIBC Capital Markets Q1/20 First Look: Weak Results Force Reduction In Bottom End Of Guidance Range; 10% Dividend Increase
01 Mar '20 04:40 PM CIBC Capital Markets Core Performance And Positive Growth Reiterated

Bill Cabel Date/Time Contributor Headline (2)
30 Jul '20 09:15 AM Desjardins Securities Signs a development agreement with Chevron-an ESG-driven evolution of IPP growth
07 May '20 10:20 PM Desjardins Securities First take on 1Q20-warm winter makes for a tough quarter; AQN taking precautions around COVID-19

Rich SunderlandDate/Time Contributor Headline (5)
14 Aug '20 02:32 AM JP Morgan Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. >> 2Q20 Results Earnings Miss Estimates; 2020 Guidance Reaffirmed
16 Jun '20 11:03 AM JP Morgan Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. >> J.P. Morgan Energy Conference Takeaways
01 Jun '20 10:58 AM JP Morgan Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. >> Model Update
07 May '20 10:57 PM JP Morgan Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. >> 1Q20 Earnings Miss Estimates; 2020 Guidance Revised Lower For Weather, COVID Impacts
09 Apr '20 02:04 AM JP Morgan Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. >> Model Update

Naji BaydounDate/Time Contributor Headline (6)

17 Aug '20 05:00 AM Industrial Alliance Securities Inc.
Q2/20 Update: Results Below Estimates; Near-Term Performance Likely More Muted, but the Long-Term Outlook Remains 
Compelling; Decreasing Price Target to $21.00 (from $22.00)

14 Aug '20 04:43 AM Industrial Alliance Securities Inc.Q2/20 First Impression: Results Miss Estimates; 2020 Guidance Maintained; Bigger Picture Remains Unchanged
17 Jul '20 09:38 AM Industrial Alliance Securities Inc.Resuming Coverage - AQN Fills a Chunk of its Equity Requirements

Page 1 of 3



Liberty Utilities - Empire Electric

Docket No. 20-EPDE-427-ACT

Semi-annual filing - March 2020 - August 2020
Paragraph 2

h.     Copies of credit rating agencies and equity analysts' reports published during the previous semi-annual period.
11 May '20 05:48 AM Industrial Alliance Securities Inc.Q1/20 Update: Dividend Increased 10%; Overall Growth Outlook Remains Compelling Despite the More Conservative 2020 Guidance
08 May '20 05:37 AM Industrial Alliance Securities Inc.Q1/20 First Impression: Results Slightly Below Estimates; More Conservative 2020 Guidance; Dividend Increased 10%
02 Mar '20 06:34 AM Industrial Alliance Securities Inc.Q4/19 Update: Good Results; Overall Growth Remains on Track

Rupert MererDate/Time Contributor Headline (9)
17 Aug '20 06:20 AM National Bank Financial Dilution and COVID pull down forecasts for 2020E, but investments should help in 2021E >> Q2 2020 Results & Outlook
14 Aug '20 06:30 AM National Bank Financial Soft quarter with COVID impact, but guidance reaffirmed and growth plans unchanged
30 Jul '20 09:00 AM National Bank Financial Agreement with Chevron to develop >500 MW of renewable power projects
17 Jul '20 10:25 AM National Bank Financial Equity issuance supports growth plans in U.S. renewable energy >> Off Restriction
17 Jun '20 07:50 PM National Bank Financial If it ain't broke, don't fix it: As a new era begins, anticipating stability under new leadership
10 May '20 09:40 PM National Bank Financial Q1 2020 Results and Outlook: Weather impacted Q1; Impact of COVID-19 should be limited
07 May '20 11:40 PM National Bank Financial Managing through a warm winter and COVID-19; showing resistance to the pandemic
28 Apr '20 08:30 PM National Bank Financial Q1 2020 Preview - AQN should be largely immune to COVID-19
02 Mar '20 08:35 AM National Bank Financial Q4 19 - Results & Outlook: Beat helped by non-recurring items; Significant development planned for '20E

David QuezadaDate/Time Contributor Headline (3)
14 Aug '20 06:56 AM Raymond James AQN | 2Q20 Miss but Guidance Reaffirmed; Reiterate SB1 on Robust Capex Plan, Discounted Valuation
26 Jun '20 07:00 AM Raymond James AQN | Thoughts on Imminent C-Suite Transition and Discounted Valuation
08 May '20 07:01 AM Raymond James AQN | Slight 1Q20 Miss on Weather; Reaffirm Strong Buy Rating

Nelson Ng Date/Time Contributor Headline (11)
17 Aug '20 05:42 AM RBC Capital Markets Execution is the near-term focus as management reiterates guidance
14 Aug '20 02:38 AM RBC Capital Markets First Glance: Weaker-than-expected Q2 results put 2020 guidance at risk, in our view
30 Jul '20 08:18 AM RBC Capital Markets Algonquin Power & Utilities (AQN): Announces agreement with Chevron to co-develop global renewable projects
17 Jul '20 10:10 AM RBC Capital Markets Equity offering provides funding for some upcoming big-ticket items
27 Jun '20 11:02 PM RBC Capital Markets Algonquin Power & Utilities (AQN): Shady Oaks 2 wind expansion project is making progress
12 Jun '20 07:32 PM RBC Capital Markets Algonquin Power & Utilities (AQN): Addition to the S&P/TSX 60 Index should improve profile, particularly among international investors
02 Jun '20 02:47 PM RBC Capital Markets Algonquin Power & Utilities (TSX: AQN, NYSE: AQN) - Highlights from the RBC Global Energy and Power Executive Virtual Conference
11 May '20 06:24 AM RBC Capital Markets Improving utility risk profile and potential upside for 2021/22 wind developments
08 May '20 05:49 AM RBC Capital Markets First Glance: Modest Q1 shortfall, 10% dividend hike, and guidance reduced slightly
07 Apr '20 07:08 AM RBC Capital Markets AQN data update
01 Mar '20 08:15 PM RBC Capital Markets Focused on growth as senior management transition continues

Sean SteuartDate/Time Contributor Headline (8)
17 Aug '20 06:45 AM TD Securities Sticking with 2020 Guidance Range Despite Soft Q2 Results
14 Aug '20 05:55 AM TD Securities Modest Q2/20 Miss; Consistent 2020 EPS and Capex Guidance
30 Jul '20 08:14 AM TD Securities 4-Year Deal with Chevron to Co-Develop Renewable Power Projects
20 Jul '20 06:27 AM TD Securities Resuming Coverage; Equity Raise Covers Portion of Mid-term Needs
05 Jun '20 09:28 AM TD Securities CEO Transition Accelerates to July
11 May '20 07:13 AM TD Securities Warm Weather Undermines Q1; Long-Term Capital Plan Intact
08 May '20 06:03 AM TD Securities Warm Weather Weighs on Q1/20 Results; 2020 Guidance Trimmed
02 Mar '20 07:00 AM TD Securities Strong Finish to 2019; Ambitious Long-Term Growth Plan Intact

Neil KaltonDate/Time Contributor Headline (4)
14 Aug '20 06:42 PM Wells Fargo Securities AQN:  Trimming Estimates On MO Rate Order & New Equity
20 Jul '20 04:58 AM Wells Fargo Securities Utility And Infrastructure Daily
31 May '20 06:33 PM Wells Fargo Securities Utility & Infrastructure Daily

Page 2 of 3
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h.     Copies of credit rating agencies and equity analysts' reports published during the previous semi-annual period.
10 May '20 08:54 PM Wells Fargo Securities AQN:  Beyond COVID-19 - Q1 Updates An Incremental Positive

Robert HopeDate/Time Contributor Headline (4)
17 Aug '20 Scotiabank Q2/20 Recap: Better Than Expected But Still Not Good
14 Aug '20 Scotiabank New CEO, Same Strategy – Maintaining Guidance in a Tough Market
14 Aug '20 Scotiabank Q2/20 Initial Take: COVID-19 Takes a Toll on Q2, But Outlook Unchanged
17 Jul '20 Scotiabank Equity Raise Clarifies Near-Term Funding Outlook
11 May '20 Scotiabank A Tougher Start to 2020

Page 3 of 3
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From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: Accepted: Empire District/Moody"s informal call

 
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes and to protect its customers, employees and
business and where allowed to do so by applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential
and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this
message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please
immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from
viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no
liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via this e-mail message. 

-----------------------------------------

mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com


From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: Accepted: Empire District/Moody"s Presentation Call

 
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes and to protect its customers, employees and
business and where allowed to do so by applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential
and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this
message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please
immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from
viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no
liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via this e-mail message. 

-----------------------------------------

mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com


From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Cc: MoodysCyberSurvey
Subject: Moody"s Cyber Risk Issuer Survey
Date: Friday, March 13, 2020 12:12:32 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image005.jpg
Moodys_Cyber_Risk_Issuer_Survey_Empire District Electric Company (The)_264000.xlsx

Dear Mark,
 
Moody’s is devoting more time to understanding cyber risk because we see cyber risk increasing for
our issuers.  Moody’s would like to better understand issuers’ cyber readiness and how their
mitigating strategies affect resiliency. These insights will enable us to better differentiate issuers’
cyber readiness, in a consistent manner, across sectors and geographies. We think cyber risk is an
enterprise-wide risk that resides with executive management and the board of trustees or directors.
 
In order to help us frame cyber risk consistently across sectors and geographies, we request your
participation in a brief cyber survey. Attached is an excel file copy of the survey. Answering the
survey may require input from an issuer’s security, financial planning and legal teams. The majority
of the questions are answered through a drop-down menu, and we have a free-form text box for any
additional information you would like to share.
 
We kindly ask that you complete and return this survey within 4 to 8 weeks of receipt. Please copy
the email address: MoodysCyberSurvey@moodys.com on all correspondence related to the
survey, and please do not change the name of the file. If we receive an adequate number of
responses, we hope to publish anonymized and aggregated data from the collected surveys in Q4
2020.
 
We believe the survey is an important first step in better understanding our issuers’ cyber positions,
and we thank you for your attention to this matter. Should you have any questions about this email
or the cyber survey, please reach out to me, and we’ll be happy to address your questions or
concerns. We sincerely hope you will see the value in completing the cyber survey and look forward
to hearing back from you soon.
Kind regards.
 
Yours sincerely,
Nana
 
 
.................................................
Nana Hamilton
Power/Utilities Americas 
212.553.9440 tel
212.202.3868 fax
nana.hamilton@moodys.com

Moody’s Investors Service
7 World Trade Center
250 Greenwich Street
New York, NY 10007 

mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:MoodysCyberSurvey@moodys.com
mailto:MoodysCyberSurvey@moodys.com
mailto:nana.hamilton@moodys.com









Navigate the coronavirus outbreak
See Moody's latest insights
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				Moody's Cyber Risk Survey 













				Guidance on the Survey

				1. Supply answers for all questions on the ‘Questions’ tab.

				2. Cells highlighted in green on the ‘Question’ tab are available for you to provide additional information if you select 'Other' from a dropdown menu.

				3. Questions are answered using drop-down selections or text responses (numbers, percentages, words).

				4. Expected input for each answer is shown when the corresponding cell is selected. 

				5. The below table tracks which questions are answered ('Ok' in green cell) and which remain unanswered ('Not Answered' in red cell).

				6. Survey answers should solely reflect the organization's internal cyber practices and exclude cybersecurity products or services the organization may offer to third parties.

				7. Survey answers should only capture information pertaining to the organization itself and any fully consolidated subsidiaries. Information pertaining to partially owned subsidiaries should be excluded. 





				Summary of Answered and Unanswered Questions

				Section A: Enterprise Cybersecurity Plan

				1		Not Answered

				2		Not Answered

				3		Not Answered

				4		Not Answered

				5		Not Answered

				6		Not Answered

				7		Not Answered

				8		Not Answered

				9		Not Answered

				10		Not Answered

				11		Not Answered

				12		Not Answered

				13		Not Answered

				14		Not Answered

				15		Not Answered

				16		Not Answered

				17		Not Answered

				18		Not Answered

				19		Not Answered

				20		Not Answered

				21		Not Answered

				22		Not Answered

				23		Not Answered

				24		Not Answered

				25		Not Answered

				26		Not Answered

				27		Not Answered

				28		Not Answered

				29		Not Answered

				30		Not Answered

				31		Not Answered

				32		Not Answered

				33		Not Answered

				34		Not Answered

				Section B: IT Infrastructure and Practices

				35		Not Answered

				36		Not Answered

				37		Not Answered

				38		Not Answered

				39		Not Answered

				40		Not Answered

				Section C: Third Party Vendor Management

				41		Not Answered

				42		Not Answered

				43		Not Answered

				Section D: Insurance		Incident-Specific Reporting

				44		Not Answered

				45		Not Answered

				46		Not Answered

				47		Not Answered

				48		Not Answered

				49		Not Answered

				50		Not Answered

				Section E: Financial Data

				51		Not Answered

				52		Not Answered

				53		Not Answered

				54		Not Answered

				Section F: Corporate Governance

				55		Not Answered

				56		Not Answered

				57		Not Answered

				58		Not Answered

				Total Answered		0



START SURVEY

#Questions!E11

Questions





				Moody's Cyber Risk Survey 











				Questions						RESPONSES

				A		Enterprise Cybersecurity Plan

						1		What is the title of the person with primary responsibility for cybersecurity?
("Primary responsibility" is defined as spending more than 80% of their time focused on cybersecurity and/or cyber risk)



						2		To whom does this person report (i.e. who is this person's direct manager)?



						3		If the CEO does not directly manage the person responsible for cybersecurity, how many times per year does this person (or their representative) routinely provide updates on cybersecurity to the CEO (directly and in person [not including memos and prereads])?



						4		How many times per year does this person (or their representative) routinely report on cybersecurity to the entire Board of Directors (directly and in person [not including memos and prereads])?



						5		How many times per year does this person (or their representative) routinely report on cybersecurity to the Board of Directors committee responsible for cybersecurity oversight (directly and in person [not including memos and prereads])?



						6		How many years has the person with primary responsibility for cybersecurity been in the current position?



						7		How many years has the person with primary responsibility for cybersecurity been with your company?



										2017				2018				2019

						8		What is the maximum number of full-time cybersecurity employees your organization has employed in each of the following years?



						9		What is the maximum number of contract or outsourced cybersecurity employees that have worked for your organization in each of the following years?



						10		What is the number of full-time cybersecurity employees your organization forecasts employing in 2022?



						11		What is the number of contract or outsourced cybersecurity employees that you forecast working for your organization in 2022?



						12		What is the turnover rate among your organization's cybersecurity full-time employees over the previous 12 months?



						13		How many of your organization's employees work on compliance with cyber-related laws and regulations (including data privacy regulations)?



						14		How many of your organization's employees work on a cyber threat hunting team?



						15		How many of your organization's employees work on a vulnerability management team? 



						16		Has your organization developed an incident response plan to respond to cyber incidents?



						17		How many times per year does your organization test the incident response plan?



						18		How many times per year does your organization update the incident response plan?



						19		Has your organization completed a tabletop simulation in the last 12 months? A tabletop simulation is defined as role-playing potential security incident scenarios in order to evaluate whether response plans are sufficient and include required participants. 



						20		What percentage of your organization's internal technology stack is end-of-life (i.e. no longer receives security upgrades from the vendor)?



						21		What is your organization's mean time to patch critical vulnerabilities on internet-exposed platforms (measured in days)?



						22		What is your organization's mean time to patch critical vulnerabilities on platforms not exposed to the internet (measured in days)?



						23		What is your organization's mean time to patch critical vulnerabilities on enterprise platforms not exposed to the internet (measured in days)?



						24		What percentage of your organization's internet-accessible applications had a penetration test performed in the last 12 months?



						25		What percentage of your organization's internet-accessible applications have been scanned for vulnerabilities in the last 12 months?



						26		Has your organization completed Red Team testing in the last 12 months?



						27		Does your organization have a formalized process for remediating issues found during Red Team testing?



						28		Does your organization have a program for responding to external reports of security issues affecting the company's products or operations (e.g. a bug-bounty program)?



						29		How many times did your organization engage with or educate personnel on cybersecurity issues during the past year (e.g. phishing simulations, awareness campaigns, etc.)?



						30		Has your organization ever issued a public notice, such as an 8K or press release, of a cyber incident affecting your organization's internal information technology (IT) or operational technology (OT) assets?



						31		Has your organization reported any cybersecurity incidents it has experienced to regulators over the past 24 months? 



						32		Has your organization reported any cybersecurity incidents it has experienced to its customers over the past 24 months? 



						33		Has your organization reported any cybersecurity incidents it has experienced to the board of directors over the past 24 months?



						34		Do merger and acquisition proposals require a risk assessment from the team responsible for cybersecurity?



				B		IT Infrastructure and Practices				On Premise 
(Not Cloud)				Private Cloud
Run by Third Party				Public Cloud

						35		What percentage of your organization's IT infrastructure is hosted on the following platforms?

										On Premise
(Not Cloud)				Private Cloud
Run by Third Party				Public Cloud

						36		What percentage of your organization's IT infrastructure do you expect will be hosted on the following platforms 12 months from now?



						37		Which cloud provider(s) do you use?

								Amazon



								Google



								Microsoft Azure



								Other (Please provide name(s))



						38		Does your organization use multi-factor authentication (MFA) to manage remote access to internal resources, such as email?



						39		On at least a weekly basis, does your organization backup its data and systems to a resource that is disconnected from the organization's network?



						40		Does development of your intellectual property occur through the use of any third party entities (e.g. contractors) in Russia, China, or Iran?



				C		Third Party Vendor Management

						41		Do new vendors whose personnel or products have access to your organization's computer systems require a risk assessment from the team responsible for cybersecurity?



						42		Are current vendors subject to periodic review by the team responsible for cybersecurity?



						43		Does your organization receive timely notification on cybersecurity incidents, vulnerabilities, patches and malware that affect vendors?



				D		Insurance

						44		Does your organization carry standalone cyber insurance?



						45		What insurance coverages are included in your standalone cyber policy?

								Property Damage



								Business Interruption



								Contingent Business Interruption



								Reputational Damage



								Regulatory Fines



								Ransom Payments



								New Equipment



								Incident Response



								Legal Settlements



								Other (Please Specify)



						46		What is the US dollar amount of your cyber insurance limit (in thousands of dollars)?



						47		What is the US dollar amount of your cyber insurance deductible (in thousands of dollars)?



						48		Does your organization have explicit cyber coverage through a traditional insurance policy, i.e. P&C, D&O, etc.?



						49		What cyber coverages are explicitly included in your traditional insurance policy?

								Property Damage



								Business Interruption



								Contingent Business Interruption



								Reputational Damage



								Regulatory Fines



								Ransom Payments



								New Equipment



								Incident Response



								Legal Settlements



								Other (Please Specify)



						50		Does your organization require that vendors whose personnel or products have access to your organization's computer systems carry cyber insurance?



				E		Financial Data

						51		Does cybersecurity have its own line item in your organization's budgeting process?



						52		If cybersecurity does not have its own line item in the budgeting process, please identify which budget line item(s) incorporates cybersecurity spending.





										2018				2019				2020

						53		What percentage of total technology budget was or is projected to be allocated to cybersecurity for each of the following years?



						54		What amount was or is projected to be spent on cybersecurity for each of the following years (in thousands of US dollars)?



				F		Corporate Governance

						55		What percentage of your organization's Board of Directors' members have cybersecurity expertise?



						56		What type of cybersecurity credentials do your organization's Board of Directors' members possess?



						57		How many times in the past 36 months has responsibility for cybersecurity oversight shifted to a different Board of Directors committee?



						58		Does your organization have defined cybersecurity performance objectives for the CEO (or for the organization to be implemented by CEO)?



				G		Free Response

						59		Please provide any other information you would like to share with Moody's about your organization's cyber risk practices.
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Arthur, Mark,
Hope all is well. You may have received an email from our events team but in case you missed it, I
wanted to make you aware of our 2020 Power & Gas Issuers’ Conference which this year will be held
as a three-part webinar series through the month of June. I’ve included a link to the conference
details and registration here. Feel free to also share this with other members of your team as
appropriate.
 
https://ma.moodys.com/USUtilitiesIssuersConference_2020.html
 
Regards,
Nana
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Nana Hamilton
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thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
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Hi Mark,
Hope all is well. I wanted to make you aware of a Moody’s webinar tomorrow at 10am ET to address
our current views on the impact of the coronavirus pandemic on the infrastructure sector which
includes utilities. If you or any of your team members would like to listen to the webinar, the event
registration can be found here:
https://events.moodys.io/webinars
 
Regards,
Nana
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Nana Hamilton
Power/Utilities Americas 
212.553.9440 tel
212.202.3868 fax
nana.hamilton@moodys.com
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attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message. 
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A Enterprise Cybersecurity Plan
1 What is the title of the person with primary responsibility for cybersecurity?

("Primary responsibility" is defined as spending more than 80% of their time focused on cybersecurity and/or cyber risk)

2 To whom does this person report (i.e. who is this person's direct manager)?
3 If the CEO does not directly manage the person responsible for cybersecurity, how many times per year does this person (or their representative) 

routinely provide updates on cybersecurity to the CEO (directly and in person [not including memos and prereads])?

4 How many times per year does this person (or their representative) routinely report on cybersecurity to the entire Board of Directors (directly and in 
person [not including memos and prereads])?

5 How many times per year does this person (or their representative) routinely report on cybersecurity to the Board of Directors committee 
responsible for cybersecurity oversight (directly and in person [not including memos and prereads])?

6 How many years has the person with primary responsibility for cybersecurity been in the current position?
7 How many years has the person with primary responsibility for cybersecurity been with your company?

2017 2018 2019
8 What is the maximum number of full-time cybersecurity employees your organization has employed in each of the following years?
9 What is the maximum number of contract or outsourced cybersecurity employees that have worked for your organization in each of the following 

years?
10 What is the number of full-time cybersecurity employees your organization forecasts employing in 2022?
11 What is the number of contract or outsourced cybersecurity employees that you forecast working for your organization in 2022?
12 What is the turnover rate among your organization's cybersecurity full-time employees over the previous 12 months?
13 How many of your organization's employees work on compliance with cyber-related laws and regulations (including data privacy regulations)?

14 How many of your organization's employees work on a cyber threat hunting team?
15 How many of your organization's employees work on a vulnerability management team? 
16 Has your organization developed an incident response plan to respond to cyber incidents?
17 How many times per year does your organization test the incident response plan?
18 How many times per year does your organization update the incident response plan?
19 Has your organization completed a tabletop simulation in the last 12 months? A tabletop simulation is defined as role-playing potential security 

incident scenarios in order to evaluate whether response plans are sufficient and include required participants. 

20 What percentage of your organization's internal technology stack is end-of-life (i.e. no longer receives security upgrades from the vendor)?

21 What is your organization's mean time to patch critical vulnerabilities on internet-exposed platforms (measured in days)?
22 What is your organization's mean time to patch critical vulnerabilities on platforms not exposed to the internet (measured in days)?
23 What is your organization's mean time to patch critical vulnerabilities on enterprise platforms not exposed to the internet (measured in days)?

24 What percentage of your organization's internet-accessible applications had a penetration test performed in the last 12 months?

25 What percentage of your organization's internet-accessible applications have been scanned for vulnerabilities in the last 12 months?

26 Has your organization completed Red Team testing in the last 12 months?
27 Does your organization have a formalized process for remediating issues found during Red Team testing?
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28 Does your organization have a program for responding to external reports of security issues affecting the company's products or operations (e.g. a 
bug-bounty program)?

29 How many times did your organization engage with or educate personnel on cybersecurity issues during the past year (e.g. phishing simulations, 
awareness campaigns, etc.)?

30 Has your organization ever issued a public notice, such as an 8K or press release, of a cyber incident affecting your organization's internal 
information technology (IT) or operational technology (OT) assets?

31 Has your organization reported any cybersecurity incidents it has experienced to regulators over the past 24 months? 

32 Has your organization reported any cybersecurity incidents it has experienced to its customers over the past 24 months? 
33 Has your organization reported any cybersecurity incidents it has experienced to the board of directors over the past 24 months?
34 Do merger and acquisition proposals require a risk assessment from the team responsible for cybersecurity?

B IT Infrastructure and Practices
On Premise 
(Not Cloud)

Private Cloud
Run by Third Party Public Cloud

35 What percentage of your organization's IT infrastructure is hosted on the following platforms?

On Premise
(Not Cloud)

Private Cloud
Run by Third Party Public Cloud

36 What percentage of your organization's IT infrastructure do you expect will be hosted on the following platforms 12 months from now?

37 Which cloud provider(s) do you use?
Amazon
Google
Microsoft Azure
Other (Please provide name(s))

38 Does your organization use multi-factor authentication (MFA) to manage remote access to internal resources, such as email?

39 On at least a weekly basis, does your organization backup its data and systems to a resource that is disconnected from the organization's network?

40 Does development of your intellectual property occur through the use of any third party entities (e.g. contractors) in Russia, China, or Iran?

C Third Party Vendor Management
41 Do new vendors whose personnel or products have access to your organization's computer systems require a risk assessment from the team 

responsible for cybersecurity?

42 Are current vendors subject to periodic review by the team responsible for cybersecurity?

43 Does your organization receive timely notification on cybersecurity incidents, vulnerabilities, patches and malware that affect vendors?
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D Insurance
44 Does your organization carry standalone cyber insurance?

45 What insurance coverages are included in your standalone cyber policy?
Property Damage

Business Interruption

Contingent Business Interruption

Reputational Damage

Regulatory Fines

Ransom Payments

New Equipment

Incident Response

Legal Settlements

Other (Please Specify)

46 What is the US dollar amount of your cyber insurance limit (in thousands of dollars)?
47 What is the US dollar amount of your cyber insurance deductible (in thousands of dollars)?
48 Does your organization have explicit cyber coverage through a traditional insurance policy, i.e. P&C, D&O, etc.?

49 What cyber coverages are explicitly included in your traditional insurance policy?
Property Damage

Business Interruption

Contingent Business Interruption

Reputational Damage

Regulatory Fines

Ransom Payments

New Equipment

Incident Response

Legal Settlements

Other (Please Specify)
50 Does your organization require that vendors whose personnel or products have access to your organization's computer systems carry cyber 

insurance?
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E Financial Data
51 Does cybersecurity have its own line item in your organization's budgeting process?
52 If cybersecurity does not have its own line item in the budgeting process, please identify which budget line item(s) incorporates cybersecurity 

spending.

2018 2019 2020
53 What percentage of total technology budget was or is projected to be allocated to cybersecurity for each of the following years?

54 What amount was or is projected to be spent on cybersecurity for each of the following years (in thousands of US dollars)?

F Corporate Governance
55 What percentage of your organization's Board of Directors' members have cybersecurity expertise?
56 What type of cybersecurity credentials do your organization's Board of Directors' members possess?
57 How many times in the past 36 months has responsibility for cybersecurity oversight shifted to a different Board of Directors committee?
58 Does your organization have defined cybersecurity performance objectives for the CEO (or for the organization to be implemented by CEO)?
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From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: RE: Liberty Utilities Co.
Date: Tuesday, April 7, 2020 3:18:07 PM

Thank you Mark.
 
How are you doing? Are you seeing any negative impacts to Empire of the current covid-19 fueled
economic downturn? We think the utility sector is generally resilient during financial crises but to
the extent that we enter into a prolonged recession there may be financial losses that utilities will
need to work with regulators to recover.
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 7, 2020 4:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Liberty Utilities Co.
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
Attached please find the 2019 audited financial statement for Liberty Utilities Co.
 
Hope all is well with you and yours.
 
Regards,
 
Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message. 
-----------------------------------------
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mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com


From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Cc: Finnegan, Ryan
Subject: RE: Moody"s Cyber Risk Issuer Survey
Date: Tuesday, March 17, 2020 11:14:42 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image004.jpg

Mark,
This data will be considered MNPI and will be protected in the same manner as we protect all the
other MNPI you provide us on Empire.
I don’t think there is a separate governing document for this cyber data specifically but please feel
free to reach out to your commercial contact (Ryan Finnegan - Ryan.Finnegan@moodys.com) for
information on what governs all the MNPI you provide us.
 
Regards,
Nana
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Friday, March 13, 2020 5:13 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Moody's Cyber Risk Issuer Survey
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
A question was raised by our legal team about the expectation of confidentiality surrounding survey
responses.   Would any responses be subject to an existing confidentiality agreement and, if so, can
you provide us with a copy of the operative document be it a standalone confidentiality agreement
or the rating services agreement?
 
Many thanks.
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana [mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com] 
Sent: Friday, March 13, 2020 12:12 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Cc: MoodysCyberSurvey <MoodysCyberSurvey@moodys.com>
Subject: Moody's Cyber Risk Issuer Survey
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Navigate the coronavirus outbreak
See Moody's latest insights
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Dear Mark,
 
Moody’s is devoting more time to understanding cyber risk because we see cyber risk increasing for
our issuers.  Moody’s would like to better understand issuers’ cyber readiness and how their
mitigating strategies affect resiliency. These insights will enable us to better differentiate issuers’
cyber readiness, in a consistent manner, across sectors and geographies. We think cyber risk is an
enterprise-wide risk that resides with executive management and the board of trustees or directors.
 
In order to help us frame cyber risk consistently across sectors and geographies, we request your
participation in a brief cyber survey. Attached is an excel file copy of the survey. Answering the
survey may require input from an issuer’s security, financial planning and legal teams. The majority
of the questions are answered through a drop-down menu, and we have a free-form text box for any
additional information you would like to share.
 
We kindly ask that you complete and return this survey within 4 to 8 weeks of receipt. Please copy
the email address: MoodysCyberSurvey@moodys.com on all correspondence related to the
survey, and please do not change the name of the file. If we receive an adequate number of
responses, we hope to publish anonymized and aggregated data from the collected surveys in Q4
2020.
 
We believe the survey is an important first step in better understanding our issuers’ cyber positions,
and we thank you for your attention to this matter. Should you have any questions about this email
or the cyber survey, please reach out to me, and we’ll be happy to address your questions or
concerns. We sincerely hope you will see the value in completing the cyber survey and look forward
to hearing back from you soon.
Kind regards.
 
Yours sincerely,
Nana
 
 
.................................................
Nana Hamilton
Power/Utilities Americas 
212.553.9440 tel
212.202.3868 fax
nana.hamilton@moodys.com

Moody’s Investors Service
7 World Trade Center
250 Greenwich Street
New York, NY 10007 
www.moodys.com
.................................................
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See the latest from Moody’s: moodys.com/coronavirus

 
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message. 
-----------------------------------------
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From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
Date: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 8:08:02 AM

Thank you.
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 8:49 AM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
Please see attached.
 
Regards,
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 7:23 AM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
 
Hi Mark,
Could you also send me the 2020 Liberty Utilities quarterly filings?
 
Thanks,
Nana
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 5:35 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
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That timing should work for us as well.  I’ll be in touch to schedule our call once we are
close to having our presentation/update put together.
 
Regards,
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 7:51 AM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
 
Thank you Mark. An update in the near term, including how the pandemic has impacted Empire’s
load/earnings, and how the wind projects are progressing would be much appreciated. We have our
portfolio review process in early October so I will be reaching out to get an update sometime in
September either way. If you would like to have our annual update discussion before October, that
would work for me. Let me know what timing you were thinking.
 
Hope all is well,
Nana
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 6:52 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
I hope you and yours are doing well.  Attached please find the Q2 financial statements for
Empire.  Since we were unable to have the mid-year visit in NY around the EEI Treasurer’s
meeting as we had previously planned, we need to find some time to give you and the team
an update on Empire.  In the near future, I’ll start work on a presentation which can be
discussed during the call and we can discuss timing for the visit.
 
Best Regards,
 
Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456
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-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message. 
-----------------------------------------



From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
Date: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 7:22:58 AM

Hi Mark,
Could you also send me the 2020 Liberty Utilities quarterly filings?
 
Thanks,
Nana
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 5:35 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
That timing should work for us as well.  I’ll be in touch to schedule our call once we are
close to having our presentation/update put together.
 
Regards,
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 7:51 AM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
 
Thank you Mark. An update in the near term, including how the pandemic has impacted Empire’s
load/earnings, and how the wind projects are progressing would be much appreciated. We have our
portfolio review process in early October so I will be reaching out to get an update sometime in
September either way. If you would like to have our annual update discussion before October, that
would work for me. Let me know what timing you were thinking.
 
Hope all is well,
Nana
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 6:52 PM
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To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
I hope you and yours are doing well.  Attached please find the Q2 financial statements for
Empire.  Since we were unable to have the mid-year visit in NY around the EEI Treasurer’s
meeting as we had previously planned, we need to find some time to give you and the team
an update on Empire.  In the near future, I’ll start work on a presentation which can be
discussed during the call and we can discuss timing for the visit.
 
Best Regards,
 
Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
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this e-mail message. 
-----------------------------------------



From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
Date: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 7:50:49 AM

Thank you Mark. An update in the near term, including how the pandemic has impacted Empire’s
load/earnings, and how the wind projects are progressing would be much appreciated. We have our
portfolio review process in early October so I will be reaching out to get an update sometime in
September either way. If you would like to have our annual update discussion before October, that
would work for me. Let me know what timing you were thinking.
 
Hope all is well,
Nana
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 6:52 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
I hope you and yours are doing well.  Attached please find the Q2 financial statements for
Empire.  Since we were unable to have the mid-year visit in NY around the EEI Treasurer’s
meeting as we had previously planned, we need to find some time to give you and the team
an update on Empire.  In the near future, I’ll start work on a presentation which can be
discussed during the call and we can discuss timing for the visit.
 
Best Regards,
 
Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
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however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message. 
-----------------------------------------



From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
Date: Friday, September 18, 2020 2:18:12 PM

 
Thanks Mark. I will share the webex details internally. On our end I expect:
Mike Haggarty (team manager)
Jairo Chung (Backup analyst)
Rob Petrosino (Covers Evergy)
Gavin MacFarlane (our Canadian analyst)
Nikita Nanwani (associate analyst)
 
Will you be providing updated projections? We have a version from January 2020.
 
Nana
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 3:15 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
Thanks; meeting invitation has been sent.  As we get closer to the time, please let us know
if anyone will be joining you.   We will provide our presentation in advance of the meeting.
 
Regards,
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 2:04 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
Yes, that date and time works for us.
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 3:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
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Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
Is October 16th at 3:30 EST also good for you for our full visit?  If so, I’ll send you that
invitation as well.
 
Thanks.
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 1:35 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
Mark, yes, please send me the meeting invitation with dial in information.
 

4.30pm on the 29th should work.
 
Thanks,
Nana
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 5:25 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: FW: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
Our team is confirmed for October 16th at 3:30 pm EST.  Please confirm and advise if you’d
like for me to add you to the meeting invitation.  Also, any thoughts on dates/times noted
below for the informal call on the 29th or 30th?
 
Mark
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Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Mark Timpe 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 8:47 AM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
Nana,
It looks like 3:30 EST on the 16th will work for us.  I’ve sent out an internal meeting hold
notification to our group and will confirm once I have their acceptances.  Please hold this
time on your calendars in the meantime.
 
As for the 29th or 30th of September, it looks like 4:30 EST on the 29th or 11:30 EST on the
30th is doable.  Just let me know your preference.
 
Thanks.
 
Mark
 
From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:43 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 

Would any other day the week of the 12th work? We are available most of Thursday, 15 October

(after 11.30am) or Friday, 16 October (after 10am). I will likely give you a call on the 29th or 30th

September for an update on operations (e.g. impact of COVID), update on wind generation addition,
any regulatory/rate case or financing developments.
 
Thanks,
Nana
 
 
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 6:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
That would be much better.  The 12th won’t work but it looks like the 19th, at either 1 pm or
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3:30 Eastern would work for us.  Please let me know if either of those times works for you
and the Team and, if you can, let me know what you’d like to cover on the informal call and
I’ll gather responses etc.  I may have someone join us also.  Finally, just let me know what
date/time you have in mind for the informal call. 
 
I really appreciate the flexibility.
 
Regards,
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:48 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
Unfortunately cannot do early October as that is when we have our portfolio review. We don’t really
need to have a meeting before then but I may reach out to you for an informal update. We could do

the week of the 12th or 19th if October still works for you.
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:39 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.
 
Many thanks.
 
Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
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and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an



employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message. 
-----------------------------------------



From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
Date: Friday, September 18, 2020 2:04:55 PM

Yes, that date and time works for us.
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 3:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
Is October 16th at 3:30 EST also good for you for our full visit?  If so, I’ll send you that
invitation as well.
 
Thanks.
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 1:35 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
Mark, yes, please send me the meeting invitation with dial in information.
 

4.30pm on the 29th should work.
 
Thanks,
Nana
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 5:25 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: FW: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
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Nana,
Our team is confirmed for October 16th at 3:30 pm EST.  Please confirm and advise if you’d
like for me to add you to the meeting invitation.  Also, any thoughts on dates/times noted
below for the informal call on the 29th or 30th?
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Mark Timpe 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 8:47 AM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
Nana,
It looks like 3:30 EST on the 16th will work for us.  I’ve sent out an internal meeting hold
notification to our group and will confirm once I have their acceptances.  Please hold this
time on your calendars in the meantime.
 
As for the 29th or 30th of September, it looks like 4:30 EST on the 29th or 11:30 EST on the
30th is doable.  Just let me know your preference.
 
Thanks.
 
Mark
 
From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:43 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 

Would any other day the week of the 12th work? We are available most of Thursday, 15 October

(after 11.30am) or Friday, 16 October (after 10am). I will likely give you a call on the 29th or 30th

September for an update on operations (e.g. impact of COVID), update on wind generation addition,
any regulatory/rate case or financing developments.
 
Thanks,
Nana
 
 
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 6:03 PM
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To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
That would be much better.  The 12th won’t work but it looks like the 19th, at either 1 pm or
3:30 Eastern would work for us.  Please let me know if either of those times works for you
and the Team and, if you can, let me know what you’d like to cover on the informal call and
I’ll gather responses etc.  I may have someone join us also.  Finally, just let me know what
date/time you have in mind for the informal call. 
 
I really appreciate the flexibility.
 
Regards,
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:48 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
Unfortunately cannot do early October as that is when we have our portfolio review. We don’t really
need to have a meeting before then but I may reach out to you for an informal update. We could do

the week of the 12th or 19th if October still works for you.
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:39 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.
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Many thanks.
 
Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
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for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message. 
-----------------------------------------



From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
Date: Friday, September 18, 2020 1:34:54 PM

Mark, yes, please send me the meeting invitation with dial in information.
 

4.30pm on the 29th should work.
 
Thanks,
Nana
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 5:25 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: FW: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
Our team is confirmed for October 16th at 3:30 pm EST.  Please confirm and advise if you’d
like for me to add you to the meeting invitation.  Also, any thoughts on dates/times noted
below for the informal call on the 29th or 30th?
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Mark Timpe 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 8:47 AM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
Nana,
It looks like 3:30 EST on the 16th will work for us.  I’ve sent out an internal meeting hold
notification to our group and will confirm once I have their acceptances.  Please hold this
time on your calendars in the meantime.
 
As for the 29th or 30th of September, it looks like 4:30 EST on the 29th or 11:30 EST on the
30th is doable.  Just let me know your preference.
 
Thanks.
 
Mark
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From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:43 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 

Would any other day the week of the 12th work? We are available most of Thursday, 15 October

(after 11.30am) or Friday, 16 October (after 10am). I will likely give you a call on the 29th or 30th

September for an update on operations (e.g. impact of COVID), update on wind generation addition,
any regulatory/rate case or financing developments.
 
Thanks,
Nana
 
 
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 6:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
That would be much better.  The 12th won’t work but it looks like the 19th, at either 1 pm or
3:30 Eastern would work for us.  Please let me know if either of those times works for you
and the Team and, if you can, let me know what you’d like to cover on the informal call and
I’ll gather responses etc.  I may have someone join us also.  Finally, just let me know what
date/time you have in mind for the informal call. 
 
I really appreciate the flexibility.
 
Regards,
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:48 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
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Unfortunately cannot do early October as that is when we have our portfolio review. We don’t really
need to have a meeting before then but I may reach out to you for an informal update. We could do

the week of the 12th or 19th if October still works for you.
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:39 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.
 
Many thanks.
 
Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
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notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message. 
-----------------------------------------



From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
Date: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:44:05 PM

Would any other day the week of the 12th work? We are available most of Thursday, 15 October

(after 11.30am) or Friday, 16 October (after 10am). I will likely give you a call on the 29th or 30th

September for an update on operations (e.g. impact of COVID), update on wind generation addition,
any regulatory/rate case or financing developments.
 
Thanks,
Nana
 
 
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 6:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
That would be much better.  The 12th won’t work but it looks like the 19th, at either 1 pm or
3:30 Eastern would work for us.  Please let me know if either of those times works for you
and the Team and, if you can, let me know what you’d like to cover on the informal call and
I’ll gather responses etc.  I may have someone join us also.  Finally, just let me know what
date/time you have in mind for the informal call. 
 
I really appreciate the flexibility.
 
Regards,
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:48 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
Unfortunately cannot do early October as that is when we have our portfolio review. We don’t really
need to have a meeting before then but I may reach out to you for an informal update. We could do
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the week of the 12th or 19th if October still works for you.
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:39 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.
 
Many thanks.
 
Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
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please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message. 
-----------------------------------------



From: Hamilton, Nana
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
Date: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:47:42 PM

Unfortunately cannot do early October as that is when we have our portfolio review. We don’t really
need to have a meeting before then but I may reach out to you for an informal update. We could do

the week of the 12th or 19th if October still works for you.
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:39 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.
 
Many thanks.
 
Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message. 
-----------------------------------------
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Attachment B 
 



From: Deval, Mayur
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: RE: Business contact for Empire District Electric
Date: Friday, September 11, 2020 8:20:04 AM

Hi Mark,
 
If you are unable to reach the primary contact, you may also try reaching below contacts:
 
Trent Ottoson
Relationship Manager
 
S&P Global Ratings
7400 South Alton Court
Centennial, CO 80112
T: 303.721.4405 | C: 720.229.3521
Trent.Ottoson@spglobal.com
www.spglobal.com

 
 
George J. Slavin
Director
Relationship Management 
S&P Global Ratings 
55 Water Street
47th Floor
New York, NY 10041
212-438-2629 Tel
646-823-7667 Mobile
George.slavin@spglobal.com
 
 
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 11, 2020 9:16 AM
To: Deval, Mayur (Analytical) <mayur.deval@spglobal.com>
Subject: Business contact for Empire District Electric
 

EXTERNAL MESSAGE

 
Mayur,
Is Ann O’Farrell still the business relationship person for Empire?  I sent a message to her
the other day but haven’t heard back from her and was just wondering if she’s still our
business contact person.
 
Regards,
 
Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
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P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

The information contained in this message is intended only for the recipient, and may be a confidential attorney-client communication or
may otherwise be privileged and confidential and protected from disclosure. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or
an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, please be aware that any dissemination or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by
replying to the message and deleting it from your computer. S&P Global Inc. reserves the right, subject to applicable local law, to monitor,
review and process the content of any electronic message or information sent to or from S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses without
informing the sender or recipient of the message. By sending electronic message or information to S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses you,
as the sender, are consenting to S&P Global Inc. processing any of your personal data therein.
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From: Deval, Mayur
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: RE: Empire District Electric - Q2 financial statements
Date: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 8:00:38 AM

Hi Mark,
 
Thanks for your note. I am keeping well. Trust you are doing well too.
 
Thanks for the financials. I will update the database.
 
Best Regards,
Mayur
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 6:48 PM
To: Deval, Mayur (Analytical) <mayur.deval@spglobal.com>
Subject: Empire District Electric - Q2 financial statements
 

EXTERNAL MESSAGE

 
Mayur,
I hope you and yours are doing well amidst the craziness.  Please find attached the Q2
financial statements for Empire.
 
Regards,
 
Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

The information contained in this message is intended only for the recipient, and may be a confidential attorney-client communication or
may otherwise be privileged and confidential and protected from disclosure. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or
an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, please be aware that any dissemination or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by
replying to the message and deleting it from your computer. S&P Global Inc. reserves the right, subject to applicable local law, to monitor,
review and process the content of any electronic message or information sent to or from S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses without
informing the sender or recipient of the message. By sending electronic message or information to S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses you,
as the sender, are consenting to S&P Global Inc. processing any of your personal data therein.

mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com


From: Deval, Mayur
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: RE: Request: Update
Date: Thursday, March 26, 2020 11:27:27 AM

Hi Mark,
 
How about a short call Monday afternoon at 2PM -2.30PM ET?
 
Please do let me know so that I can circulate conference details.
 
Thanks,
Mayur
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Thursday, March 26, 2020 12:24 PM
To: Deval, Mayur (Analytical) <mayur.deval@spglobal.com>
Subject: RE: Request: Update
 
Hello Mayur,
Hope you are doing well in spite of all this, especially where you are located.  Other than a
potential call at 4:30 pm Eastern time today, I’m generally available for a call at your
convenience.  Just let me know what works best for you.
 
Regards,
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

From: Deval, Mayur [mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com] 
Sent: Thursday, March 26, 2020 9:43 AM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: Request: Update
 
Hi Mark,
 
I trust you are safe and doing well.
 
Given the current COVEID 19 pandemic crisis striking the world and capital markets, I wanted to
quickly touch base with you regarding EDE’s preparedness and plan of actions to respond to any
operational or financial challenges that you may have witnessed till date or foresee in the coming
future. How about a quick call at your convenience to discuss the same?
 
Please do let me know.

mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com


 
Thanks in advance.
 
 
Mayur Deval
Associate, North American Regulated Utilities
Global Infrastructure Ratings
 
S&P Global Ratings
130 King Street West, Suite 1100
Toronto, ON  M5X 1E5
T: 416.507.3271 | C: 647.710.1361
mayur.deval@spglobal.com
www.spglobal.com
 
Please visit the Infrastructure Hub for S&P research on infrastructure
https://www.spratings.com/en_US/infrastructure
 

Vital statistics show 
#ChangePays 

Vital statistics show that an inclusive workforce benefits the global economy.

 
 
 
 

The information contained in this message is intended only for the recipient, and may be a confidential attorney-client communication or
may otherwise be privileged and confidential and protected from disclosure. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or
an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, please be aware that any dissemination or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by
replying to the message and deleting it from your computer. S&P Global Inc. reserves the right, subject to applicable local law, to monitor,
review and process the content of any electronic message or information sent to or from S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses without
informing the sender or recipient of the message. By sending electronic message or information to S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses you,
as the sender, are consenting to S&P Global Inc. processing any of your personal data therein.

mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com
http://www.spglobal.com/
https://www.spratings.com/en_US/infrastructure
https://www.spglobal.com/en/perspectives/change-pays


From: Deval, Mayur
To: Mark Timpe
Cc: Jepsen, Gerrit; Ng, Andrew
Subject: Request
Date: Friday, March 27, 2020 12:30:41 PM

Hi Mark,
 
As a precursor to our call early next week, can you let us know the below information at the earliest?
 
Current status of Liquidity:
 
Sources: Total revolving credit facilities, any term loan availability, and cash on hand

Uses: Upcoming debt maturities before 31st march 2021, any outstanding amount under credit
facilities and commercial paper, if any as on date.
 
Thanks in advance,
Mayur Deval
Associate, North American Regulated Utilities
Global Infrastructure Ratings
 
S&P Global Ratings
130 King Street West, Suite 1100
Toronto, ON  M5X 1E5
T: 416.507.3271 | C: 647.710.1361
mayur.deval@spglobal.com
www.spglobal.com
 
Please visit the Infrastructure Hub for S&P research on infrastructure
https://www.spratings.com/en_US/infrastructure
 

Vital statistics show 
#ChangePays 

Vital statistics show that an inclusive workforce benefits the global economy.

 
 
 

The information contained in this message is intended only for the recipient, and may be a confidential attorney-client communication or
may otherwise be privileged and confidential and protected from disclosure. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or
an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, please be aware that any dissemination or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by
replying to the message and deleting it from your computer. S&P Global Inc. reserves the right, subject to applicable local law, to monitor,
review and process the content of any electronic message or information sent to or from S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses without
informing the sender or recipient of the message. By sending electronic message or information to S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses you,
as the sender, are consenting to S&P Global Inc. processing any of your personal data therein.

mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:gerrit.jepsen@spglobal.com
mailto:andrew.ng@spglobal.com
mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com
http://www.spglobal.com/
https://www.spratings.com/en_US/infrastructure
https://www.spglobal.com/en/perspectives/change-pays


From: Deval, Mayur
To: Mark Timpe
Subject: Request: Update
Date: Thursday, March 26, 2020 9:43:16 AM

Hi Mark,
 
I trust you are safe and doing well.
 
Given the current COVEID 19 pandemic crisis striking the world and capital markets, I wanted to
quickly touch base with you regarding EDE’s preparedness and plan of actions to respond to any
operational or financial challenges that you may have witnessed till date or foresee in the coming
future. How about a quick call at your convenience to discuss the same?
 
Please do let me know.
 
Thanks in advance.
 
 
Mayur Deval
Associate, North American Regulated Utilities
Global Infrastructure Ratings
 
S&P Global Ratings
130 King Street West, Suite 1100
Toronto, ON  M5X 1E5
T: 416.507.3271 | C: 647.710.1361
mayur.deval@spglobal.com
www.spglobal.com
 
Please visit the Infrastructure Hub for S&P research on infrastructure
https://www.spratings.com/en_US/infrastructure
 

Vital statistics show 
#ChangePays 

Vital statistics show that an inclusive workforce benefits the global economy.

 
 
 

The information contained in this message is intended only for the recipient, and may be a confidential attorney-client communication or
may otherwise be privileged and confidential and protected from disclosure. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or
an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, please be aware that any dissemination or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by
replying to the message and deleting it from your computer. S&P Global Inc. reserves the right, subject to applicable local law, to monitor,
review and process the content of any electronic message or information sent to or from S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses without

mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
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informing the sender or recipient of the message. By sending electronic message or information to S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses you,
as the sender, are consenting to S&P Global Inc. processing any of your personal data therein.



Attachment C Redacted 
 



From: Mark Timpe
To: Nana Hamilton
Subject: The Empire District Electric Company - 2019 Audited Financial Statements
Date: Tuesday, March 31, 2020 2:57:00 PM
Attachments: Empire 2019 Audited Financial Statements.pdf

Nana,
Attached please find Empire’s 2019 audit.  I hope all continues to be well with you and
yours, especially given your location.
 
Regards,
 
Mark Timpe

mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 


To the Board of Directors of Algonquin Power and Utilities Corp. 


Opinion 
 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Empire District Electric Company (the 
“Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and 
the consolidated statements of income, common stockholder’s equity and cash flows for the years then 
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies. 


In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the 
consolidated result of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance 
with United States generally accepted accounting principles. 


Basis for Opinion 
 


We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 


Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated 
financial statements 


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 


In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 


Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 


Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 


As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 







• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 


• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 


• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 


• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 


• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 


 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 


 


 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
 
Toronto, Canada 
March 30, 2020 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 
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 December 31, 
 2019 2018 
 ($000s) 
Assets    
     Plant and property, at original cost:    
          Electric $  3,029,588         $       2,886,503 
          Gas 98,632  92,205 
          Other 48,548  46,124 
          Construction work in progress 105,583  45,946 
 3,282,351  3,070,778 
    
     Accumulated depreciation and amortization 982,686  933,533 
 2,299,665  2,137,245 
    
     Current assets:    
          Cash and cash equivalents 3,047  3,246 
          Restricted cash 4,794  4,759 
          Accounts receivable – trade, net of allowance of  $640  and $878, respectively 39,068  48,014 
          Accrued unbilled revenues 27,736  28,400 
          Accounts receivable – other 27,993  30,731 
          Fuel, materials and supplies 55,144  61,694 
          Prepaid expenses and other 9,170  9,834 
          Unrealized gain in fair value of derivative contracts 16  44 
          Regulatory assets 11,098  17,486 
 178,066  204,208 
     Noncurrent assets and deferred charges:    
          Regulatory assets 234,698  212,756 
          Goodwill 39,492  39,492 
          Unrealized gain in fair value of derivative contracts -  - 
          Other 851  908 
 275,041  253,156 
    
Total assets $  2,752,772         $     2,594,609 
    
    
    
 


(Continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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 December 31, 
 2019 2018 
 ($000s) 
Capitalization and liabilities    
     Common stock, $1 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 43,993,363 and  
          43,993,363 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 


 
$         43,993           


  
$           43,993 


     Capital in excess of par value 663,018  663,018 
     Retained earnings 219,210  158,271 
Total common stockholder’s equity 926,221  865,282 
    
Long-term debt (net of current portion)    
     Lease Obligations  2,126  2,482 
     First mortgage bonds and secured debt 637,165  636,657 
     Unsecured debt 190,760  190,671 
Total long-term debt 830,051  829,810 
     Total long-term debt and common stockholder’s equity 1,756,272  1,695,092 
    
Current liabilities:    
     Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 139,809  76,321 
     Current maturities of lease obligations 387  382 
     Short-term debt                     -  6,000 
     Regulatory liabilities 10,552  6,789 
     Customer deposits 17,226  16,695 
     Interest accrued 7,081  7,076 
     Unrealized loss in fair value of derivative contracts 555  439 
     Taxes accrued 40,457  28,734 
     Other current liabilities 1,258  3,568 
 217,325  146,004 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)    
    
Noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits:    
     Regulatory liabilities 334,205  338,179 
     Deferred income taxes 279,283  259,844 
     Unamortized investment tax credits 17,417  17,734 
     Pension and other postemployment benefit obligations 111,118  105,481 
     Unrealized loss in fair value of derivative contracts 774                       522 
     Other 36,378                  31,753 
                     


779,175 
  


  753,513 
Total capitalization and liabilities $  2,752,772        $      2,594,609 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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               Year Ended December 31, 
  2019  2018 
 ($000s, except per share amounts) 
Operating revenues:    
          Electric $           598,410    $          647,599 
          Gas                38,283  44,046 
          Other                  6,950  6,220 
 643,643  697,865 
Operating revenue deductions:    
          Fuel and purchased power 160,712  178,690 
          Cost of natural gas sold and transported 15,607  20,404 
          Regulated operating expenses 121,037  119,013 
          Other operating expenses 3,292  2,905 
          Maintenance and repairs 47,503  52,455 
          Merger related expenses 94  87 
          Depreciation and amortization 89,430  88,132 
          Other taxes 43,538  38,935 
 481,213  500,621 
Operating income 162,430  197,244 
    
Other income(deductions):    
          Allowance for equity funds used during construction           3,428  1,400 
          Interest income 1,384  795 
          Other – non-operating expense, net (7,338)  (8,547) 
 (2,526)  (6,352) 
Interest charges:    
          Long-term debt 41,567  42,288 
          Short-term debt 70  108 
          Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (1,703)  (830) 
          Other 1,470  1,305 
 41,404  42,871 
Income before tax 118,499  148,021 
    
          Provision for income taxes 27,560  17,752 
Net income $             90,939  $          130,269 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Common 
Stock  


Capital 
in 


Excess 
of Par  


Retained 
Earnings  Total 


 ($000s) 
        
Balance at December 31, 2017 $   43,993  $  63,018 $  120,500  $  827,511 
  Net income                -               -    130,269           130,269      
Adoption of Topic 606 (Revenue Recognition 
  Standard – Note 1)  -  -       2,488  2,488 
  Other               14  14 
  Dividends declared -                -    (95,000)     (95,000) 
Balance at December 31, 2018 $   43,993      $ 663,018   $ 158,271  $  865,282   
  Net income -  -       90,939         90,939 
  Dividends declared -  -    (30,000)  (30,000) 
Balance at December 31, 2019 $  43,993  $ 663,018  $ 219,210  $  926,221 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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                               Year Ended December 31, 
 2019  2018 
                              ($000s) 
    
Operating activities:    
     Net income $             90,939      $          130,269 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash flows from operating 
activities: 


   


     Depreciation and amortization including regulatory items 101,307             113,019 
     Pension and other postemployment benefit costs, net of contributions (684)                 6,674 
     Deferred income taxes and unamortized investment tax credit, net 17,001                  3,201 
     Allowance for equity funds used during construction (3,428)                (1,399) 
     Non-cash loss on derivatives 37                  4,982 
     Other -                     209 
Cash flows impacted by changes in:    
     Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues 13,002              (20,528) 
     Fuel, materials and supplies 6,550                (1,532) 
     Prepaid expenses, other current assets and deferred charges (15,818)              (19,469) 
     Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 18,980               (1,955) 
     Asset retirement obligation (443)               (5,143) 
     Interest, taxes accrued and customer deposits 12,258              13,896 
     Other liabilities and other deferred credits 912                   7,896 
Net cash provided by operating activities 240,613               230,120 
    
Investing activities:    
     Capital expenditures – regulated            (199,591)           (131,130) 
     Capital expenditures and other investments – non-regulated (4,789)  (1,079) 
Net cash used in investing activities (204,380)           (132,839) 
    
Financing activities:    
     Long-term debt issuance costs                         -  (453) 
     Issuance of long term notes payable                        -  90,000 
     Repayment of first mortgage bonds                        -  (90,000) 
     Net short-term borrowings (repayments)                  (6,000)                         425 
     Dividends (30,000)  (95,000) 
     Other                     (397)                      (344) 
Net cash used in financing activities (36,397)  (95,372) 
    
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (164)                     1,909 


Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 8,005                     6,096 


Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $                 7,841     $                 8,005 
    
Supplemental cash flow information:    
     Interest paid $               41,810  $               42,396 
     Income taxes (refunded) paid, net of refund 811               464 
    
Supplementary non-cash investing activities:    
     Change in accrued additions to property, plant and equipment not 
      reported above 


 
$               44,016      


   
$              (7,247) 


    
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 


General 
 
The Empire District Electric Company (“Empire” or “EDE”), is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Liberty Utilities 
(Central) Co. (“Liberty Central”) (an indirect subsidiary of Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp. (“Algonquin” 
or “APUC”)). 
 
We operate our businesses as three segments:  electric, gas and other. Empire, a Kansas corporation 
organized in 1909, is an operating public utility engaged in the generation, purchase, transmission, 
distribution and sale of electricity in parts of Missouri, Kansas, Oklahoma and Arkansas.  As part of our 
electric segment, we also provide water service to three towns in Missouri.  The Empire District Gas 
Company (EDG) is our wholly owned subsidiary engaged in the distribution of natural gas in Missouri.  
Our other segment consists of our fiber optics business. Our gross operating revenues in 2019 were 
derived as follows: 
 
Electric segment sales*  93.0%  
     On-system revenues 86.6%   
     SPP IM revenues   4.5   
     Other revenues   1.6   
Gas segment sales  5.9  
Other segment sales  1.1  
*Sales from our electric segment include 0.3% from the sale of water. 
 
The utility portions of our business are subject to regulation by the Missouri Public Service Commission 
(MPSC), the State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas (KCC), the Corporation Commission 
of Oklahoma (OCC), the Arkansas Public Service Commission (APSC) and the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC). Our accounting policies are in accordance with the rate-making 
practices of the regulatory authorities and conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applied 
to regulated public utilities. 
 
Our electric operations serve approximately 176,000 customers as of December 31, 2019, and the 2019 
electric operating revenues were derived as follows:   
 


Customer Class  % of revenue 
Residential  42.5 
Commercial  29.4 
Industrial  15.7 
Wholesale on-system   3.1 
Wholesale off-system   4.8 
Miscellaneous sources, primarily public authorities   2.8 
Other electric revenues   1.7 
 
Our retail electric revenues for 2019 by jurisdiction were as follows:   
 


Jurisdiction  % of revenue 
Missouri  89.5 
Kansas    4.9 
Oklahoma    2.7 
Arkansas    2.9 
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Our gas operations serve approximately 43,100 customers as of December 31, 2019, and the 2019 gas 
operating revenues were derived as follows:   
 


Customer Class  % of revenue 
Residential  62.3 
Commercial  25.3 
Industrial    1.2 
Transportation    9.4 
Miscellaneous    1.8 


Basis of Presentation 
 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of EDE, EDG, and our other subsidiaries. The 
consolidated entity is referred to throughout as “we” or “the Company”. All intercompany balances and 
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain immaterial reclassifications have been made 
to prior year information to conform to the current year presentation. 


Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (US 
GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated 
financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
period. Areas in the consolidated financial statements significantly affected by estimates and assumptions 
include unbilled utility revenues, collectability of accounts receivable, depreciable lives, asset impairments 
and goodwill impairment evaluations, employee benefit obligations, contingent liabilities, asset retirement 
obligations, the fair value of stock-based compensation, and tax provisions. Actual amounts could differ 
from those estimates. 


Accounting for the Effects of Regulation 
 
In accordance with the Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) guidance for regulated operations, our 
consolidated financial statements reflect rate-making policies prescribed by the regulatory commissions 
having jurisdiction over our regulated generation and other utility operations (the MPSC, the KCC, the 
OCC, the APSC and the FERC). 
 
We record a regulatory asset for all or part of an incurred cost that would otherwise be charged to 
expense in accordance with the ASC guidance for regulated operations which says that an asset should 
be recorded if it is probable that future revenue in an amount at least equal to the capitalized cost will be 
allowable for rate-making purposes and the current available evidence indicates that future revenue will 
be provided to permit recovery of the cost. This guidance also indicates that a liability should be recorded 
when a regulator has provided current recovery for a cost that is expected to be incurred in the future. We 
follow this guidance for incurred costs or credits that are subject to future recovery from or refund to our 
customers in accordance with the orders of our regulators.   
 
Historically, all costs of this nature, which are determined by our regulators to have been prudently 
incurred, have been recoverable through rates in the course of normal rate-making procedures. 
Regulatory assets and liabilities are ratably amortized through a charge or credit, respectively, to earnings 
while being recovered in revenues and fully recognized if and when it is no longer probable that such 
amounts will be recovered through future revenues. We generally include amortization of regulatory 
assets and liabilities in the depreciation and amortization line of our consolidated statement of cash flows.  
We continually assess the recoverability of our regulatory assets. Although we believe it unlikely, should 
retail electric competition legislation be passed in the states we serve, we may determine that we no 
longer meet the criteria set forth in the ASC guidance for regulated operations with respect to continued 
recognition of some or all of the regulatory assets and liabilities. Any regulatory changes that would 
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require us to discontinue application of this guidance based upon competitive or other events may also 
impact the valuation of certain utility plant investments. Impairment of regulatory assets or utility plant 
investments could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. See 
Note 3 for further discussion of regulatory assets and liabilities.  


Revenue Recognition 
 
For our utility operations, we use cycle billing and accrue estimated, but unbilled, revenue for services 
provided between the last bill date and the period-end date. Unbilled revenues represent the estimate of 
receivables for energy and natural gas services delivered, but not yet billed to customers. The accuracy 
of our unbilled revenue estimate is affected by factors including fluctuations in energy demands, weather, 
line losses and changes in the composition of customer classes.   


Municipal Franchise Taxes 
 
Municipal franchise taxes are collected for and remitted to their respective entities and are included in 
operating revenues and other taxes in the consolidated statements of income. Municipal franchise taxes 
of $11.8 million and $12.9 million were recorded for each of the years ended December 31, 2019 and 
2018, respectively. 


Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable are recorded at the tariffed rates for customer usage, including applicable taxes and 
fees and do not bear interest. We review the outstanding accounts receivable monthly, as well as the bad 
debt write-offs experienced in the past, and establish an allowance for doubtful accounts. Account 
balances are charged off against the allowance when management determines it is probable the 
receivable will not be recovered. 


Property, Plant & Equipment 
 
The costs of additions to utility property and replacements for retired property units are capitalized. Costs 
include labor, material, an allocation of general and administrative costs, and an allowance for funds used 
during construction (AFUDC). The original cost of regulated units retired or disposed of and the costs of 
removal are charged to accumulated depreciation, unless the removed property constitutes an operating 
unit or system.  In this case, a gain or loss is recognized upon the disposal of the asset. Maintenance 
expenditures and the removal of minor property items are charged to income as incurred. A liability is 
created for any additions to electric or gas utility property that are paid for by advances from developers. 
For a period of five years, we refund to the developer a pro-rata amount of the original cost of the 
extension for each new customer added to the extension. Nonrefundable payments at the end of the five-
year period are applied as a reduction to the cost of the plant in service. The liability as of December 31, 
2019 and 2018 was $4.5 million and $4.5 million, respectively. 


Depreciation 
 
Provisions for depreciation are computed at straight-line rates in accordance with GAAP consistent with 
rates approved by regulatory authorities. These rates are applied to the various classes of utility assets 
on a composite basis. Provisions for depreciation for our other segment are computed at straight-line 
rates over the estimated useful lives of the properties. See Note 2 for additional details regarding 
depreciation rates. 
 
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, we had recorded accrued cost of removal of $93.6 million and $93.9 
million, respectively, for our electric operating segment. This amount, recorded as a regulatory liability, 
represents an estimated future cost of dismantling and removing plant from service upon retirement, 
accrued as part of our depreciation rates. We accrue cost of removal in depreciation rates for mass 
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property (including transmission, distribution and general plant assets). These accruals are not 
considered an asset retirement obligation under the guidance provided on asset retirement obligations 
within the ASC. We have a similar cost of removal regulatory liability for our gas operating segment. This 
amount accrued at December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $12.8 million and $11.9 million, respectively. These 
amounts are net of our actual cost of removal expenditures. 
 
Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO) 
 
We record the estimated fair value of legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-
lived assets in the period in which the liabilities are incurred and capitalize a corresponding amount as 
part of the book value of the related long-lived asset. In subsequent periods, we are required to adjust 
asset retirement obligations based on changes in estimated fair value, and the corresponding increases 
in asset book values are depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Uncertainties as to the 
probability, timing or cash flows associated with an asset retirement obligation affect our estimate of fair 
value. 
 
We have identified asset retirement obligations associated with the future removal of certain levee piping 
and river water intake structures and equipment at the Iatan Power Plant, in which we have a 12% 
ownership. We also have asset retirement obligations associated with the removal of asbestos located at 
the Asbury Power Plant, the closure of a solid waste landfill at the Plum Point Energy Station, and closure 
of existing coal combustion residual (CCR) impoundments at our Asbury Power Plant and Iatan 
Generating Station. During 2018, the liability for the CCR impoundment at our Iatan Power Plant was re-
evaluated and increased by $2.2 million based on updated cost estimates. During 2019, the liability for 
the CCR impoundment at our Asbury Power Plan was re-evaluated and increased by a net of $5.5 million 
based on updated cost estimates. 
  
In addition, we have a liability for soil remediation at our Chillicothe Gas Service Center and the removal 
and disposal of Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCB) contaminants associated with our transformers and 
substation equipment. These liabilities have been estimated based upon either third-party costs or 
historical review of expenditures for the removal of similar past liabilities. The potential costs of these 
future expenditures are based on engineering estimates of third-party costs to remove the assets in 
satisfaction of the associated obligations. This liability will be accreted over the period up to the estimated 
settlement date. 
 
All of our recorded asset retirement obligations have been estimated as of the expected retirement date, 
or settlement date, and have been discounted using a credit adjusted risk-free rate ranging from 2.64% to 
5.52% depending on the settlement date. Revisions to these liabilities could occur due to changes in the 
cost estimates, anticipated timing of settlement or federal or state regulatory requirements. 
 
The balances at the end of 2019 and 2018, recorded in other liabilities, are shown below. 
 
 


 
(000’s) 


 Liability 
Balance at 


12/31/19 


  
Liabilities 


Recognized 


  
Liabilities 


Settled 


  
 


Accretion 


  
Cash Flow 
Revisions 


 Liability 
Balance at 


12/31/19 
Asset 
retirement 
obligation 


 $      19,034    $                 -              $       (443)  $           606            $           5,521            $       24,718        


 
 
 


(000’s) 


 Liability 
Balance at 


12/31/18 


  
Liabilities 


Recognized 


  
Liabilities 


Settled 


  
 


Accretion 


  
Cash Flow 
Revisions 


 Liability 
Balance at 


12/31/18  
Asset       
retirement     
obligation 


 $      21,316    $                 -              $       (5,130)             $           653  $           2,195  $       19,034 
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Upon adoption of the standards on the retirement of long-lived assets and conditional asset retirement 
obligations, we recorded a liability and regulatory asset because we expect to recover these costs of 
removal in electric and gas rates either through depreciation accruals or direct expenses. We also defer 
the liability accretion and depreciation expense as a regulatory asset. At December 31, 2019 and 2018, 
our regulatory assets relating to asset retirement obligations totaled $23.8 million and $21.0 million, 
respectively. 


Allowance for Funds Used During Construction 
 
As provided in the FERC regulatory Uniform System of Accounts, utility plant is recorded at original cost, 
including an allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) when first placed in service. The 
AFUDC is a utility industry accounting practice whereby the cost of borrowed funds and the cost of equity 
funds applicable to construction programs are capitalized as a cost of construction. This accounting 
practice offsets the effect on earnings of the cost of financing current construction, and treats such 
financing costs in the same manner as construction charges for labor and materials. 
 
AFUDC does not represent current cash income. Recognition of this item as a cost of utility plant is in 
accordance with regulatory rate practice under which such plant costs are permitted as a component of 
rate base and the provision for depreciation. 
 
In accordance with the methodology prescribed by the FERC, we utilized aggregate rates of 7.3% for 
2019 and 6.8% for 2018, compounded semiannually. 


Asset Impairments (excluding goodwill) 
 
We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. To the extent that certain assets may be 
impaired, analysis is performed based on undiscounted forecasted cash flows to assess the recoverability 
of the assets and, if necessary, the fair value is determined to measure the impairment amount. None of 
our assets were impaired as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.   
 
Goodwill 
 
As of December 31, 2019, the consolidated balance sheet included $39.5 million of goodwill. All of this 
goodwill was derived from our 2006 gas company acquisition and recorded in our gas segment, which is 
also the reporting unit for goodwill testing purposes. Accounting guidance requires us to test goodwill for 
impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or circumstances indicate possible impairment.  
 
We applied a qualitative goodwill evaluation model for the annual goodwill impairment test completed in 
2019. Based on the results of the qualitative assessment, we believe it was more likely than not that the 
fair value of the reporting unit exceeded its carrying value as of the testing date, indicating no impairment 
of our goodwill. The following factors, among others, were considered when assessing whether it was 
more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded its carrying value for the 2019 test: 


• Actual and forecasted financial performance 
• Macroeconomic conditions 
• Observable industry market multiples 


Fuel and Purchased Power 
 
Electric Segment 
 
Fuel and purchased power costs are recorded at the time the fuel is used, or the power purchased.  
Southwest Power Pool (SPP) Integrated Marketplace (IM) purchased power is also included in fuel and 
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purchased power costs.  The net effects of our SPP IM activity, including SPP IM net revenue and net 
purchased power costs, flow through our fuel recovery mechanisms in each state.   
 
In our Missouri jurisdiction, the MPSC establishes a base cost for the recovery of fuel and purchased 
power expenses used to supply energy for our fuel adjustment clause (FAC). The FAC permits the 
distribution to customers of 95% of the changes in fuel and purchased power costs prudently incurred 
above or below the base cost. Rates related to the fuel adjustment clause are modified twice a year 
subject to the review and approval by the MPSC. In accordance with the ASC guidance for regulated 
operations, 95% of the difference between the actual costs of fuel and purchased power and the base 
cost of fuel and purchased power recovered from our customers is recorded as an adjustment to fuel and 
purchased power expense with a corresponding regulatory asset or regulatory liability. If the actual fuel 
and purchased power costs are higher or lower than the base fuel and purchased power costs billed to 
customers, 95% of these amounts will be recovered from or refunded to our customers when the fuel 
adjustment clause is modified.   
 
In our Kansas jurisdiction, the costs of fuel are recovered from customers through a fuel adjustment 
clause, based upon estimated fuel costs and purchased power. The adjustments are subject to audit and 
final determination by regulators. The difference between the costs of fuel used and the cost of fuel 
recovered from our Kansas customers is recorded as a regulatory asset or a regulatory liability if the 
actual costs are higher or lower than the costs billed to customers, in accordance with the ASC guidance 
for regulated operations.   
 
Similar fuel recovery mechanisms are in place for our Oklahoma, Arkansas and FERC jurisdictions.   
 
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, our Missouri, Kansas and Oklahoma fuel and purchased power costs 
were in a net over-recovered position by $1.3 million and net under-recovered position by $3.7 million, 
respectively, which are reflected in our regulatory assets and liabilities. 
 
We receive the renewable attributes associated with the power purchased through our purchased power 
agreements with Elk River Windfarm LLC and Cloud County Windfarm, LLC. These renewable attributes 
are converted into renewable energy credits (RECs), which are considered inventory, and recorded at 
zero cost (See Note 11).  Revenue from the sale of RECs reduces fuel and purchased power expense. 
 
We have a Stipulation and Agreement with the MPSC granting us authority to manage our emissions 
allowance inventory in accordance with our Plan for Purchasing and Selling Emissions Allowances 
(PPSEMA). The PPSEMA allows us to purchase allowances needed for compliance, exchange banked 
allowances for future vintage allowances and/or monetary value and, in extreme market conditions, to sell 
allowances outright for monetary value. For compliance year 2018, we sold 6,000 CSAPR SO2 
allowances to NextEra Energy in February 2018. For the compliance year 2019, we did not exchange or 
sell any allowances. We classify our allowances as inventory and they are recorded at cost, with allocated 
allowances being recorded at zero cost. The allowances are removed from inventory on a FIFO basis, 
and used allowances are considered to be a part of fuel expense (See Note 11).  We had the following 
emissions allowances in inventory at December 31, 2019 and 2018: 


 
Emission Allowances in Inventory  2019  2018 
Acid Rain SO2  57,770   43,852  
CSAPR SO2  21,598  15,916 
CSAPR NOx (annual)    4,077    2,368 
CSAPR NOx (seasonal)       753       216 
  
Gas Segment 
 
Fuel expense for our gas segment is recognized when the natural gas is delivered to our customers, 
based on the current cost recovery allowed in rates.  A Purchased Gas Adjustment (PGA) clause allows 
EDG to recover from our customers, subject to audit and final determination by regulators, the cost of 
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purchased gas supplies and related carrying costs associated with the Company’s use of natural gas 
financial instruments to hedge the purchase price of natural gas. This PGA clause allows us to make rate 
changes periodically (up to four times) throughout the year in response to weather conditions and supply 
demands, rather than in one possibly extreme change per year.   
 
We calculate the PGA factor based on our best estimate of our annual gas costs and volumes purchased 
for resale.  The calculated factor is reviewed by the MPSC staff and approved by the MPSC.  Elements 
considered part of the PGA factor include cost of gas supply, storage costs, hedging contracts, revenue 
and refunds, prior period adjustments and transportation costs.   
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the PGA clause, the difference between actual costs incurred and costs 
recovered through the application of the PGA (including costs, cost reductions and carrying costs 
associated with the use of financial instruments) are reflected as a regulatory asset or liability.  The 
balance is amortized as amounts are reflected in customer billings. 


Derivatives 
 
We utilize derivatives to help manage our natural gas commodity market risk resulting from purchasing 
natural gas, to be used as fuel in our electric business or sold in our natural gas business. We also 
acquire Transmission Congestion Rights (TCRs) in an attempt to mitigate congestion costs associated 
with the power we purchase from the SPP IM (See Note 13). 
 
Electric Segment 
 
Pursuant to the ASC guidance on accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities, derivatives 
are required to be recognized on the consolidated balance sheets at their fair value. On the date a 
derivative contract is entered into, the derivative is designated as (1) a hedge of a forecasted transaction 
or of the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (“cash-
flow” hedge); or (2) an instrument that is held for non-hedging purposes (a “non-hedging” instrument).  
We record the mark-to-market gains or losses on derivatives used to hedge our fuel as regulatory assets 
or liabilities. This is in accordance with the ASC guidance on regulated operations, given that those 
regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of recovery through our fuel adjustment mechanism.   
 
We also enter into fixed-price forward physical contracts for the purchase of natural gas, coal and 
purchased power.  These contracts, if they meet the definition of a derivative, are not subject to derivative 
accounting because they are considered to be normal purchase normal sales (NPNS) transactions.  If 
these transactions do not qualify for NPNS treatment, they would be marked to market for each reporting 
period through regulatory assets or liabilities. 


Gas Segment 
 
Financial hedges for our natural gas business are recorded at fair value on our consolidated balance 
sheets.  Because we have a commission approved natural gas cost recovery mechanism (PGA), we 
record the mark-to-market gain/loss on natural gas financial hedges each reporting period to a regulatory 
asset/liability account. The regulatory asset/liability account tracks the difference between revenues billed 
to customers for natural gas costs and actual natural gas expense which is trued up at the end of August 
each year and included in the Actual Cost Adjustment (ACA) factor to be billed to customers during the 
next year. This is consistent with the ASC guidance on regulated operations, in that we will be recovering 
our costs after the annual true-up period (subject to a prudency review by the MPSC).   
 
Cash flows from hedges for both the electric and gas segments are classified within cash flows from 
operations. 
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Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits  
 
We recognize expense related to pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) as earned during 
the employee’s period of service.  Related assets and liabilities are established based upon the funded 
status of the plan compared to the projected benefit obligation. Our pension and OPEB expense or 
benefit includes amortization of previously unrecognized net gains or losses. Additional income or 
expense may be recognized when our unrecognized gains or losses as of the most recent measurement 
date exceed 10% of our postemployment benefit obligation or fair value of plan assets, whichever is 
greater. For pension benefits and OPEB benefits, unrecognized net gains or losses as of the 
measurement date are amortized into actuarial expense over ten years. 


Pensions 
 
We have rate orders with Missouri, Kansas and Oklahoma that allow us to recover pension costs 
consistent with our GAAP policy noted above.  In accordance with the rate orders, we prospectively 
calculate the value of plan assets using a market-related value method as allowed by the ASC guidance 
on pension benefits. As a result, we are allowed to record the Missouri, Kansas and Oklahoma portion of 
any costs above or below the amount included in rates as a regulatory asset or liability, respectively. The 
MPSC has allowed us to adopt this pension cost recovery methodology for EDG as well. 


Other Postemployment Benefits  
 
We have regulatory treatment for our OPEB costs similar to the treatment described above for pension 
costs. This includes the use of a market-related value of assets, the amortization of unrecognized gains 
or losses into actuarial expense over ten years and the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities as 
described above. 
 
Additional guidance in the ASC on employers’ accounting for defined benefit pension and other 
postemployment plans requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a 
defined benefit postemployment plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability in its 
balance sheet and to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur 
through the comprehensive income of a business entity. The guidance also requires an employer to 
measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end balance sheet, with limited exceptions. 
Pension and other postemployment employee benefits tracking mechanisms are utilized to allow for 
future rate recovery of these obligations. We record these as regulatory assets on the consolidated 
balance sheets rather than as reductions of equity through comprehensive income (See Note 7). 


Unamortized Debt Discount, Premium and Expense 
 
Discount, premium and expense associated with long-term debt are amortized over the lives of the 
related issues.  Costs, including gains and losses, related to refunded long-term debt are amortized over 
the lives of the related new debt issues, in accordance with regulatory rate practices. 
 
Liability Insurance 
 
We are primarily self-insured for general liabilities, benefits paid under employee healthcare programs 
and long-term disability benefits. Accruals are primarily based on the estimated undiscounted cost of 
claims.  We self-insure up to certain limits that vary by segment and type of risk. Periodically, we evaluate 
the level of insurance coverage over the self-insured limits and adjust insurance levels based on risk 
tolerance and premium expense. We carry excess liability insurance for public liability claims for 
segments of our business. In order to provide for the cost of losses not covered by insurance, an 
allowance for injuries and damages is maintained based on our loss experience. Workers’ compensation 
claims are covered by a guaranteed cost policy for all business segments. 
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Other Noncurrent Liabilities 
 
Other noncurrent liabilities are comprised of accruals and other accounting estimates not sufficiently large 
enough to merit individual disclosure. At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the balance of other noncurrent 
liabilities is primarily comprised of accruals for self-insurance, customer advances for construction and 
asset retirement obligations. 
 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and temporary investments purchased with an initial 
maturity of three months or less. It also includes checks and electronic funds transfers that have been 
issued but have not cleared the bank, which are also reflected in current accrued liabilities and were 
$26.9 million and $22.9 million at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 


Restricted Cash  
 
As part of our Plum Point ownership agreement, we are required to have funds available in an escrow 
account which guarantees payment of certain operating costs. The cash is held at a financial institution 
and restricted as to withdrawal or use. The amounts restricted, which were $1.8 million at December 31, 
2019 and 2018, may increase or decrease based on an annual review. 
 
We are required to post cash collateral with the SPP to participate in TCR auctions. The cash is held at a 
financial institution and restricted as to withdrawal or use. The amounts of such restricted cash were $2.5 
million at December 31, 2019 and 2018. 
 
Due to our Plum Point energy station interconnection with Midcontinent Independent System Operator 
(MISO), we participate in Financial Transmission Rights (FTR) auctions which require us to post cash 
collateral. The cash is held at a financial institution and restricted as to withdrawal or use. The amounts of 
such restricted cash were $0.5 million at December 31, 2019 and 2018. 
 
Fuel, Materials and Supplies 
 
Fuel, materials and supplies consist primarily of coal, natural gas in storage and materials and supplies, 
which are reported at average cost.  These balances are as follows (in thousands): 
 2019  2018 
Electric fuel inventory $                 11,559  $                 21,691 
Natural gas inventory                      2,469                       2,839 
Materials and supplies                    41,116                     37,164 
TOTAL $                  55,144  $                61,694 


Income Taxes 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the tax consequences of transactions that have been 
treated differently for financial reporting and tax return purposes. The temporary differences are 
measured using statutory tax rates (See Note 9). 
 
Investment tax credits utilized in prior years were deferred as a noncurrent liability and are being 
amortized over the useful lives of the properties to which they relate. The longest remaining amortization 
period for investment tax credits is approximately 39 years. Deferred income taxes were recorded on the 
temporary difference represented by the deferred investment tax credits and a corresponding regulatory 
liability. This recognizes the expected reduction in rates for future lower income taxes associated with the 
amortization of the investment tax credits. 
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Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 
 
The FASB has issued guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an 
enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with the ASC guidance on accounting for income taxes. 
With few exceptions, we are no longer subject to U.S. federal, state and local income tax examinations by 
tax authorities for years before 2011.  At December 31, 2019 and 2018, our consolidated balance sheets 
did not include provisions for any uncertain tax positions. We do not expect any material changes to this 
tax position within the next twelve months. Our policy is to recognize interest and penalties, if any, related 
to unrecognized tax benefits in other expenses. 


Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 


(a) Recently adopted accounting pronouncements 
The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued accounting standards update ("ASU") 2018-
15, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40): Customers Accounting 
for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement that is a Service Contract to 
provide additional guidance to address diversity in practice. This update aligns the requirements for 
capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract with the 
requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software. 
The Company adopted this update prospectively as at the beginning of the third quarter. There were no 
significant impacts to the consolidated financial statements as a result of the adoption of this update. 
 
The FASB issued ASU 2018-16, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Inclusion of the Secured Overnight 
Financing Rate ("SOFR") Overnight Index Swap ("OIS") Rate as a Benchmark Interest Rate for Hedge 
Accounting Purposes to identify a suitable alternative to the U.S. dollar LIBOR that is more firmly based 
on actual transactions in a robust market. This update permits the use of the OIS rate based on SOFR as 
a U.S. benchmark interest rate for hedge accounting purposes. This update was adopted concurrently 
with ASU 2017-12 in 2019. The Company will follow the pronouncements prospectively for qualifying new 
or redesignated hedging relationships. 
 
The FASB issued ASU 2018-07, Compensation — Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to 
Non-employee Share-Based Payment Accounting to expand the scope of Topic 718 to include share-
based payment transactions for acquiring goods and services from non-employees. This update changes 
the measurement basis and date of non-employee share-based payment awards and also makes 
amendments to how to measure non-employee awards with performance conditions. The adoption of this 
update in 2019 had no impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. 
 
The FASB issued ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Targeted Improvements to 
Accounting for Hedging Activities, to improve the financial reporting of hedging relationships to better 
portray the economic results of an entity's risk management activities in its financial statements. The 
update also makes certain targeted improvements to simplify the application of the hedge accounting 
guidance. The FASB also issued ASU 2019-04 that contains further codification improvements to ASU 
2017-12. The adoption of these updates in 2019 had no impact on our consolidated financial statements. 
We implemented fair value accounting but not hedge accounting for our derivative contracts. 
 
The FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) to increase transparency and comparability among 
organizations utilizing leases. This ASU requires lessees to recognize the assets and liabilities arising 
from all leases on the balance sheet, but the effect of leases in the statement of operations and the 
statement of cash flows is largely unchanged. The FASB also issued subsequent amendments to ASC 
842 that provide further practical expedients as well as codification clarifications and improvements. The 
adoption of this new lease standard in 2019 using a modified retrospective approach resulted in an 
immaterial adjustment to right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities on the consolidated balance 
sheets, with no restatement of the comparative period. 
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The Company implemented new processes and procedures for the identification, analysis, and 
measurement of new lease contracts. A new software solution was implemented to assist with contract 
management, information tracking, and measurement as it relates to the new standard. The Company 
elected the following practical expedients as part of its adoption: 
 
1. "Package of three" practical expedient that permits the Company not to reassess the scope, 


classification and initial direct costs of its expired and existing leases; 
2. Land easements practical expedient that permits the Company not to reassess the accounting for 


land easements previously not accounted for under Leases ASC 840; and 
3. Hindsight practical expedient that allows the Company to use hindsight in determining the lease 


term for existing contracts. 
 
 In addition, the Company made an accounting policy election to not recognize a lease liability or right-of-
use asset on its consolidated balance sheets for short-term leases (lease term less than 12 months). 


 


(b) Recently issued accounting guidance not yet adopted 
 


The FASB issued ASU 2020-01, Investments - Equity Securities (Topic 321), Investments — Equity 
Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323), and Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Clarifying the 
Interactions between Topic 321, Topic 323, and Topic 815 to reduce diversity in practice and increase 
comparability of accounting for certain transactions. The amendments clarify when to consider observable 
price changes for the measurement of certain equity securities without a readily determinable fair value. 
They also clarify the scope of forward contracts and purchased options on these certain securities. The 
amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim 
periods within those years. Early adoption is permitted, including early adoption in any interim period. The 
Company currently does not have any transactions that would be within the scope of this update but will 
continue to assess the impact of this update in the future. 
 
The FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes 
as part of its initiative to reduce complexity in the accounting standards. The Amendments removes 
certain exceptions to the general principles in Topic 740 and improves consistent application for other 
areas of Topic 740 by clarifying and amending existing guidance. The amendments in this Update are 
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within those years. Early 
adoption is permitted, but all amendments must be early adopted simultaneously. The Company is 
currently assessing the impact of this Update. 
  
The FASB issued ASU 2018-18, Collaborative Arrangements (Topic 808): Clarifying the Interaction 
between Topic 808 and Topic 606 to reduce diversity in practice on how entities account for transactions 
on the basis of different views of the economics of a collaborative arrangement. The Update clarifies that 
the arrangement should be accounted for under ASC 606 when a participant is a customer in the context 
of a unit of account, adds unit of account guidance in ASC 808 that is consistent with ASC 606, and 
precludes the recognition of revenue from a collaborative arrangement with ASC 606 revenue if the 
participant is not directly related to sales to third parties. The amendments in this Update are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after    December 15, 2019, and interim periods within those years. The Company 
does not expect a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements as a result of the adoption of 
this Update. 
 
The FASB issued ASU 2018-17, Consolidation (Topic 810): Targeted Improvements to Related Party 
Guidance for Variable Interest Entities to improve general purpose financial reporting. The Update 
clarifies that indirect interests held through related parties in common control arrangements should be 
considered on a proportional basis for determining whether fees paid to decision makers and service 
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providers are variable interests. The amendments in the Update are effective for fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2019 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The amendments are required to 
be applied retrospectively with a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings. The Company does 
not expect a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements as a result of the adoption of this 
Update. 
 
The FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Business Combinations (Topic 350): Intangibles — Goodwill and Other 
(Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. The update is intended to simplify how an entity 
is required to test goodwill for impairment by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. Step 2 
measures a goodwill impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of a reporting unit’s goodwill 
with the carrying amount of that goodwill. The standard is effective for fiscal years and interim periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019.  
 
The FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of 
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments to provide financial statement users with more decision-useful 
information about the expected credit losses on financial instruments and other commitments to extend 
credit held by a reporting entity at each reporting date. To achieve this objective, the amendments in this 
update replace the incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP with a methodology that 
reflects expected credit losses. The standard is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning 
after December 15, 2019. The FASB issued codification improvements to ASC Topic 326 in Update ASU 
2018-19 to provide guidance on scoping of operating lease assets and further specific clarifications and 
corrections in Updates ASU 2019-04 and ASU 2019-11. The FASB issued a further update to Topic 326 
in ASU 2019-05 to provide transition relief that allows Companies to irrevocably elect the fair value option 
for certain instruments held at amortized cost. The Company is currently in the process of evaluating the 
impact of adoption of this standard on its consolidation financial statements. The Company does not 
expect a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements as a result of the adoption of this 
Update.   
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2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   
 
Our total property, plant and equipment are summarized below for the years ended December 31 (in 
thousands):   
 


             2019 
  


  
Accumulated 


 
  


  
  


Depreciation 
 


Net Book 
  Cost   & Amortization   Value 
Plant in Service(1,2) 


    
  


   Generation  $  1,475,283           $  427,294     $ 1,047,989 
   Transmission        431,177                109,053    322,124   
   Distribution     1,270,308             446,339       823,969  
Construction Work in Progress 


 
 


 
   


   Generation(3)           56,029                          -       56,029  
    Transmission          15,389                           -                15,389  
    Distribution          34,165                           -                34,165  
    $ 3,282,351          $   982,686     $  2,299,665  


 
              2018 


  
  


Accumulated 
 


  
  


  
Depreciation 


 
Net Book 


  Cost   & Amortization   Value 
Plant in Service(1,2) 


    
  


   Generation $  1,436,993            $  406,434   $  1,030,559  
   Transmission        402,480               102,793         299,687  
   Distribution       1,185,359        424,306           761,053  
Construction Work in Progress 


 
 


 
   


   Generation     21,267                          -               21,267  
   Transmission          8,017                           -                 8,017  
    Distribution        16,662                           -               16,662  
  $  3,070,778          $   933,533   $   2,137,245  


(1) Includes intangible property with a cost of $49.5 million and $44.4 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, 
      primarily related to capitalized software and investments in facility upgrades operated by other utilities.   
      Accumulated amortization related to this property in 2019 and 2018 was $27.4 million and $23.4 million, respectively. 
(2) Each group includes an allocated portion of Electric General plant primarily consisting of land, structures and equipment 
     used to support utility operations. 
(3) Includes $43.1 million related to wind projects.  See note 3 or note 11 for more detail. 


 


The table below summarizes the total provision for depreciation and the depreciation rates for continuing 
operations, both capitalized and expensed, for the years ended December 31 (in thousands): 
 
Provision for Depreciation(4) 


  
2019 


 
2018 


   Generation 
  


     $    38,703      $      38,239  
   Transmission 


  
             9,046                8,626  


   Distribution  
  


           40,867              39,540  
      Total Annual Provision for Depreciation 


 
           88,616                          84,405  


   Amortization 
 


              4,040                3,920  
      Total Annual Depreciation and Amortization 


 
 $    92,656          $     90,325  


(4) A portion of this amount is reclassified to a regulatory liability for the estimated future cost of removal. 
     See the depreciation discussion under Note 1 and Note 3 for more details. 
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Annual Depreciation Rates  
  


2019 
 


2018 
   Generation 


  
2.8%  2.8% 


   Transmission 
  


2.3%  2.3% 
   Distribution 


  
3.4%  3.5% 


      Total Company 
  


2.9%  3.0% 
 


3. REGULATORY MATTERS 


Regulatory Assets and Liabilities and Other Deferred Credits 


Changes   
 
Effective August 1, 2019, the Company provided, as a one-time credit, the regulatory liability established 
in Kansas as a result of the tax rate change from 35% to 21%.  In addition, we began amortizing the 
Excess ADIT regulatory liability in accordance with the Commission Order.  
 
Effective October 1, 2019, aligning with the Commission Order, the Company began reducing the 
Regulatory Liabilities associated with Tax Reform for Oklahoma.   There were no other changes to 
regulatory asset and liabilities with regard to their rate base inclusion or amortizable lives from December 
31, 2018 to December 31, 2019.  
 
The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("the Act") was enacted on December 22, 2017. Among other provisions, the 
Act reduces the corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21%. We began accruing the difference for our 
Arkansas customers effective January 2018. We implemented new rates related to this and started 
amortizing the regulatory liability in October 2018.  
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The following table sets forth the components of our regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities on our 
consolidated balance sheets (in thousands). 


  December 31, 
  2019  2018 
Regulatory Assets:     
Current:     
  Under recovered fuel costs    $                251              $                 1,442 
  Current portion of long-term regulatory assets  10,847  16,044 
     Regulatory assets, current  11,098  17,486 
Long-term:     
  Pension and other postemployment benefits  126,503  116,740 
  Income taxes  26,754  27,204 
  Asset retirement obligation  23,841  21,048 
  Missouri solar initiative(3)  18,519  15,101 
  Deferred construction accounting costs(1)  13,629  13,986 
  Deferred operating and maintenance expense  13,264  8,442 
  Unamortized loss on reacquired debt  7,037  7,711 
  Customer programs  5,484  5,689 
  Under recovered fuel costs  3,998  6,049 
  Deferred rate case expense  2,157  1,150 
  Storm costs(2)  1,423  1,913 
  Unsettled derivative losses – electric segment  1,133  800 
  Other  1,058  1,785 
     System reliability – vegetation management  745  1,182 
  Current portion of long-term regulatory assets  (10,847)  (16,044) 
     Regulatory assets, long-term  234,698  212,756 
    Total Regulatory Assets   245,796  $           230,242 
     
Regulatory Liabilities     
Current:     
  Over recovered fuel costs  $               4,213  $              3,723 
  Current portion of long-term regulatory liabilities                   6,339                    3,066 
    Regulatory liabilities, current                   10,552                  6,789 
Long-term:     
  Income taxes(5)  207,680  210,175 
  Costs of removal(4)  106,408  105,882 
  Pension and other postemployment benefits  9,923  6,885 
  Deferred construction accounting costs – fuel(6)  7,098  7,258 
  SWPA payment for Ozark Beach lost generation  4,284  6,897 
  Over recovered fuel costs  2,640  1,506 
  Unamortized gain on interest rate derivative  2,351  2,521 
  Current portion of long-term regulatory liabilities  (6,339)  (3,066) 
  Other  160  121 
     Regulatory liabilities, long-term  334,205  338,179 
     Total Regulatory Liabilities  $           344,757  $          344,968 


(1) Reflects deferrals resulting from the 2005 regulatory plan relating to Iatan 1, Iatan 2 and Plum Point.  These amounts are 
being recovered over the life of the plants. 


(2) Reflects ice storm costs incurred in 2007 and costs incurred as a result of the May 2011 tornado including an accrued 
carrying charge and deferred depreciation totaling $1.3 million at December 31, 2019. 


(3) Resulting from the Missouri Clean Energy Initiative and consists of approximately 2,609 solar rebate applications 
processed as of December 31, 2019,  resulting in solar rebate-related costs totaling approximately $19.9 million. 


(4) As part of our depreciation rates, we accrue the estimated cost of dismantling and removing plant from service upon 
retirement and these costs are reflected here.  See the depreciation discussion under Note 1 and Note 2 for more detail. 


(5) The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("the Act") was enacted on December 22, 2017. Among other provisions, the Act reduces the 
corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21%. A reduction of regulatory asset and an increase to regulatory liability was 
recorded for excess deferred taxes probable of being refunded to customers of $151,485 for 2018. The balance is being 
amortized under agreements with our regulators and in compliance with IRS regulations. 


(6) Resulting from the regulatory plan requiring deferral of the fuel and purchased power impacts of Iatan 2. 
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Unamortized losses on debt and losses on interest rate derivatives are not included in rate base, but are 
included in our capital structure for rate base purposes. The remainder of our regulatory assets are not 
included in rate base, generally because they are not cash items. However, as of December 31, 2019, the 
costs of all of our regulatory assets are currently being recovered except for approximately $117.5 million 
of pension and other postemployment costs primarily related to the unfunded liabilities for future pension 
and OPEB costs. We expect recovery of the unfunded amount but the timing of the recovery will be 
based on the changing funded status of the pension and OPEB plans in future periods.    
 
The regulatory income tax assets and liabilities are generally amortized over the average depreciable life 
of the related assets. The loss on reacquired debt and the loss and gain on interest rate derivatives are 
amortized over the life of the related new debt issue, which currently ranges from 0.4 to 25 years. The 
unrecovered fuel costs are generally recovered within a year following their recognition. Pension and 
OPEB tracking mechanisms are recovered over a five-year period. The cost of removal regulatory liability 
is amortized as removal costs are incurred. 


RATE MATTERS 
 
The Company routinely assesses the need for rate relief in all of the jurisdictions we serve and file for 
such relief when necessary or to comply with state statutes or a Commission Order.  
 
Our rates for retail electric, natural gas services and water (other than specially negotiated retail rates for 
industrial or large commercial customers, which are subject to regulatory review and approval) are 
determined on a “cost of service” basis. Rates are designed to provide, after recovery of allowable 
operating expenses, an opportunity to earn a reasonable return on “rate base.” “Rate base” is generally 
determined by reference to the original cost (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization) of utility 
plant in service, subject to various adjustments for deferred taxes and other items. Over time, rate base is 
increased by additions to utility plant in service and reduced by depreciation, amortization and retirement 
of the utility plant or other adjustments as ordered by the utility commissions. In general, a request of new 
rates is made on the basis of a “rate base” as of test year end updated for certain pro-forma adjustments 
and allowable operating expenses for a 12-month test period ended. Although the current rate-making 
process provides recovery of some future changes in rate base and operating costs, it does not reflect all 
changes in costs for the period in which new retail rates will be in place. This results in a lag (commonly 
referred to as “regulatory lag”) between the time we incur costs and the time when we can start 
recovering the costs through rates. 
 
The following table sets forth information regarding electric and water rate increases and decreases since 
January 1, 2018: 
 


 
Jurisdiction 


 
Date Requested 


Annual Increase/ 
(Decrease) Granted 


Percent Increase/ 
(Decrease) 


Granted 


 
Date Effective 


Missouri – Electric June 6, 2018 ($ 17,837,022)        (3.64%) August 30, 2018 
Arkansas – Electric January 12, 2018 ($      482,817)        (5.24%) October 1, 2018 
Missouri – Gas February 21, 2018 ($      773,566)        (3.49%) October 24, 2018 
Kansas – Electric1 December 10, 2018  $    1,883,867        11.18% August 1, 2019 
Oklahoma – Electric March 29, 2019   $   1,400,000       16.00% October 1, 2019 
 


                                                      
1 Docket No. 19-EPDE-223-RTS Ordered Empire (1) would receive $0.00 increase in base rates; (2) will 
place the revenues currently recovered in the AERR, $1,794,980 into base rates and cancel AERR tariff 
and (3) is allowed to collect $2,449,381 through the TDC Rider 
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Electric Segment 
 
Missouri 
 
2018 Rate Decrease:  On August 15, 2018, the MPSC issued an order approving a rate decrease of 
approximately $17.8 million for our Missouri electric customers. This rate decrease, effective August 30, 
2018, will remain in effect until new base rates incorporate the reduction in the corporate tax rate from 
35% to 21% as a result of the federal Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017. 
 
Integrated Resource Plan and Missouri Energy Efficiency Investment Act  
 
We filed our most recent Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) with the MPSC on June 28, 2019. The IRP 
analysis of future loads and resources is normally conducted once every three years and will be filed 
again on or before April 1, 2022.  
 
On August 24, 2016, an Amended Stipulation and Agreement as to Division of Energy and Renew 
Missouri was filed in the Merger case in which we agreed to make a Missouri Energy Efficiency 
Investment Act (MEEIA) filing, provided a statewide Technical Reference Manual (TRM) has been 
approved by the state, and provided our next Triennial IRP (2019 or 2022, depending on the date a TRM 
is approved) favors a plan with increased demand-side management (DSM) investments. We will work 
with the Missouri Division of Energy (DE), the MPSC Staff, the Office of the Public Counsel (OPC) and 
other parties through the existing DSM Advisory Group to review and consider the viability of adopting 
additional energy efficiency programs for our customers. Within one year of the MPSC’s finding of 
substantial compliance of the Empire IRP that follows MPSC approval of a TRM, we will develop and 
submit an application for approval of a portfolio of DSM programs under MEEIA, so long as any such 
portfolio is a part of our adopted preferred resource plan in our IRP, or has been analyzed through the 
integration process required and the portfolio and any DSM submitted in the application is fully compliant 
with the MEEIA statute and applicable regulations. 
 
Kansas 


 
2018 Rate Case:  On December 10, 2018 Empire Electric filed a rate case application in Kansas seeking 
a base rate increase of approximately $4.9 million and a 10.2% ROE. The incremental increase in total 
revenue requirement is $2.5 million ($1.7 million for new transmission investments, plus $0.8 million for 
the net new increase in base rate revenues). A Unanimous Settlement Agreement was filed June 12 and 
a settlement hearing was held on June 25, 2019.  The agreement provides that Empire’s base rates will 
remain the same with slight modifications to rate design and recommended approval of the Transmission 
Delivery Charge Rider which has an initial revenue requirement of $2.4M and will be updated annually.  In 
addition, the Settlement agreed to approval of a Tax Change Rider, Regulatory Asset/Liability for a 
change out of all Mercury Vapor Municipal Street Lights, approval of LED Municipal Street Lighting Tariff, 
new depreciation rates, continuation of Pension and OPEB trackers and a one-time tax credit for all 
customer classes.  Finally, Empire agreed to notify and file an application once a determination has been 
made regarding the retirement of the Asbury generating plant.  The Commission approved the 
Unanimous Settlement on July 30, 2019; new rates were implemented with an effective date of August 1, 
2019. 
 
Oklahoma 
 
In February 2019 Empire filed an Amended Notice of Intent with the Oklahoma Corporation Commission 
seeking to modify rates and charges for its Oklahoma customers.  The Company filed a rate case 
application on March 29, 2019 seeking an incremental base rate increase of approximately $2.3 million 
based on a 10.2% ROE with a capital structure of 48.05% debt and 51.95% equity. In addition, Empire 
requested several riders including an Economic Development Rider, a Low Income Assistance Program 
Rider, a Tax Credit Rider and an LED Municipal Street Lighting Tariff.  A favorable settlement was filed in 
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the case on August 21, that provides for a $1.4 million rate increase, at a 7.27% rate of return supported 
by a 9.5% ROE at a 48.05% debt/51.95% equity capital structure and establishment of the requested 
riders. A Commission held a hearing on the settlement on August 26, 2019.  The Company implemented 
rates October 1, 2019. Commission approval by order was achieved October 9, 2019. 
 
Arkansas 
 
2018 Rate Decrease:  On September 28, 2018, the APSC issued an order approving an annual rate 
decrease of approximately $0.5 million for our Arkansas electric customers. This rate decrease, effective 
October 1, 2018, reflects a reduction in the corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% resulting from the federal 
Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017. 
 
Customer Savings Plan 
 
In 2017, Empire proposed to its regulators in Missouri, Kansas, Oklahoma and Arkansas a customer 
savings plan which would phase out its Asbury coal generation facility and develop additional wind 
generation in or near its service territory that will utilize all available Production Tax Credits. The plan calls 
for the development of up to 600 MW of sustainable, cost-effective wind power to serve the needs of 
electricity customers within the Empire electric service territory and forecasts cost savings for customers 
of approximately $169 million and $325 million over a 20-year and 30-year period, respectively. 
 
On July 11, 2018, Empire received an order from the MPSC supporting various requests related to its 
proposed plan, which has allowed the Company to continue to pursue the development of up to 600 MW 
of wind power and recognizes that “millions of dollars of customer savings could be of considerable 
benefit to Empire’s customers and the entire state”. 
 
On October 18, 2018 and November 18, 2018, Empire filed with the MPSC a request for Certificates of 
Convenience and Necessity (“CC&N”), in each case for 300 MW of the 600 MW contemplated as part of 
the initiative.  
 
On June 19, 2019, Empire received the CC&N to acquire, once completed, three wind farms generating 
up to 600 MW of wind energy located in Barton, Dade, Lawrence, and Jasper Counties in Missouri and in 
Neosho County, Kansas. Receipt of the CC&N allows construction to commence on the three wind 
generation sites. 
Liberty Utilities Co. has acquired a majority interest in the entities that own the two Missouri projects and, 
in partnership with a third party developer, will continue to develop and construct the two Missouri 
projects. A second third party developer is developing the wind project in Kansas. Empire has entered 
into contracts to acquire the three wind projects upon completion 
 
On March 1, 2020, the Asbury generation facility stopped operations.  Per Commission Orders, the 
Company will record a regulatory asset for the impact that Asbury’s retirement has on rates for both OK 
and KS in March 2020.  Furthermore, the Company is planning to record either a regulatory asset or 
regulatory liability related to Asbury per an expected MO Commission Order requiring the Company to 
establish an Accounting Authority Order.  The MO Commission has not yet issued an Order as to what 
items related to Asbury are to be included in the AAO.  The MO order to determine what should be 
included in the AAO and to establish an AAO is expected to be issued in June of this year. AR has not 
issued an Order for any regulatory treatment related to Asbury. 
 
Empire entered into purchase agreements to acquire, once completed, three wind farms generating up to 600 
MW of wind energy located in Barton, Dade, Lawrence, and Jasper Counties in Missouri ("Missouri Wind 
Projects") and in Neosho County, Kansas ("Kansas Wind Project").  The agreements contain development 
milestones and termination provisions that primarily apply prior to the commencement of construction. Total 
costs are estimated at $1,100,000 and the acquisitions are anticipated to close following completion of the 
respective projects. These assets, net of third-party tax equity investment, are expected to be included in the 
rate base of the Empire Electric System. 
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In November 2019, Liberty Utilities Co acquired an interest in the entities that own the two Missouri Wind 
Projects and, in partnership with a third-party developer, will continue development and construction of such 
projects until they are acquired by the Empire Electric System following completion. As part of the investment in 
the joint ventures, Liberty Utilities Co. entered into guarantee agreements for obligations under letters of credit, 
engineering and procurement contracts, and turbine supply agreements for the two projects.   
 
In November 2019, a tax equity agreement was executed for the Kansas Wind Project. The Class A 
partnership units will be owned by two third-party tax equity investors who have committed to fund on a future 
date. With their interests, the tax equity investors will receive the majority of the tax attributes associated with 
the Kansas Wind Project. Initial tax equity funding is expected to be received in Q1 2021. 
 
FERC 
 
We have in place a cost-based transmission formula rate (TFR). On June 13, 2013, we, the KCC and the 
cities of Monett, Mt. Vernon and Lockwood, Missouri and Chetopa, Kansas, filed a unanimous Settlement 
Agreement (“the Agreement”) with the FERC. The Agreement included a TFR that would establish a 
return on equity (ROE) of 10.0%. The Agreement calls for the TFR to be updated annually with the new 
updated TFR rates effective on July 1 of each year. FERC conditionally approved the Agreement on 
November 18, 2013, and we made a compliance filing with FERC on December 18, 2013 in connection 
with this conditional approval.  The FERC approved our compliance filing on June 12, 2014. 
 
We have in place a cost-based generation formula rate (GFR).  Our GFR requires an update to be 
completed annually for rates effective June 1. On October 29, 2014, Empire made a “limited” Section 205 
filing to request some minor changes in the existing GFR formula to incorporate the impact of the recent 
implementation of the SPP IM.  As a result of this filing, our customers’ share of the margins we receive 
from sales into the IM will be passed on to them through the monthly fuel and purchased power cost 
adjustment mechanism rather than making one-time adjustments at each annual update. This filing was 
approved by FERC on January 13, 2015.   
 
Gas Segment 
 
Missouri 
 
2018 Rate Decrease:  On October 17, 2018, the MPSC issued a notice approving an annual rate 
decrease of approximately $0.8 million for our Missouri gas customers. This rate decrease, effective 
October 24, 2018, reflects a reduction in the corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% resulting from the 
federal Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017. 
 
MARKETS AND TRANSMISSION 


Electric Segment 
 
Day Ahead Market:  As part of the IM, Empire and other SPP market participants submit generation offers 
and demand bids for the sale and purchase of power into the SPP market. The SPP serves as a 
centralized commitment and dispatch of SPP members’ generation resources while balancing economics 
and reliability. The SPP reports that approximately 95% of all next day generation needed throughout the 
SPP territory is being cleared through the IM. When we sell more generation to the market than we 
purchase for a given settlement period, the net sale is included as part of electric revenues. When we 
purchase more generation from the market than we sell, the net purchase is recorded as a component of 
fuel and purchased power on our consolidated financial statements. The net financial effect of these IM 
transactions is included in our fuel adjustment mechanisms and therefore has little impact on gross 
margin. We also acquire TCRs through annual and monthly processes in an attempt to mitigate 
congestion costs associated with the power we purchase from the IM. These rights are recorded as 
reductions to purchased power costs. 
 







THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY 
A Liberty Utilities Company 


Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 


25 
 


FERC Order No. 1000:  In July 2011, the FERC issued Order No. 1000 (Transmission Planning and Cost 
Allocation by Transmission Owning and Operating Public Utilities) which requires all public utility 
transmission providers to allow transmission developers outside their retail distribution service territory to 
participate in regional transmission planning.  As prescribed within the applicable amended SPP Open 
Access Transmission Tariff, Order No. 1000 eliminates the federal right of first refusal for entities that 
develop transmission projects within their own retail distribution service territories to construct new 
transmission facilities selected in a regional transmission plan which meet the criterion set forth in the 
amended tariff process. This order will directly affect our rights to build new 161kV and above 
transmission facilities within our retail service territory. 
 
Order No. 1000 also directed transmission providers to develop policy and procedures for regional and 
interregional transmission planning as well as regional and interregional transmission cost allocation for 
approved transmission projects. We continue to participate in the SPP processes to understand the 
impact of these FERC orders on our ability to construct new facilities within our service territory as well as 
their influence on promoting construction of transmission projects on or near our borders with our 
neighbors. SPP completed and filed with the FERC a required interregional policy and procedure 
compliance filing, and while the FERC partially approved SPP’s compliance filing, remaining issues have 
been addressed in a subsequent filing that is currently waiting FERC approval.  
 
In the most recent ITP (Integrated Transmission Plan) completed by the SPP, there were two projects 
which were identified as applicable to Order 1000. We participated throughout the study process and look 
forward to the results of the project portfolio which was approved within the ITP Portfolio of projects, with 
resultant NTCs and RFPs to be issued in the near horizon. 
 
SPP/Midcontinent Independent System Operator (MISO) Joint Operating Agreement and Plum Point 
Delivery:  Due to Plum Point’s physical location and interconnection, transmission service from 
Entergy/MISO is required for delivery.  On December 19, 2013, Entergy voluntarily integrated its 
generation, transmission, and load into the MISO regional transmission organization. Based on the 
current terms and conditions of MISO membership, Entergy’s participation in MISO has increased 
transmission delivery costs for our Plum Point power station as well as utilized our transmission system 
without compensation.   
 
As a result, we have participated with the SPP members and other impacted utilities in two separate 
FERC settlement proceedings in an effort to reduce the costs to our customers. On October 13, 2015, 
SPP members, SPP, MISO and MISO members filed a settlement at the FERC regarding MISO’s 
unreserved and uncompensated use of the SPP members’ systems. As approved by the FERC, the 
agreement provides compensation and governance for the continued shared use of the transmission 
system among MISO, SPP and other impacted utilities. The regional through and out transmission 
delivery rate (RTOR) dispute regarding Plum Point also proceeded through settlement discussions and a 
resulting settlement agreement was filed with the FERC on February 25, 2016. The settlement closed on 
June 23, 2016 and we withdrew all claims on July 6, 2016. We received a total of $2.1 million in MISO 
Through-and Out refunds in 2016 with rate reductions continuing through 2023-2025. 
 
Gas Segment 
 
Non-residential gas customers whose annual usage exceeds certain amounts may purchase natural gas 
from a source other than EDG. EDG does not have a non-regulated energy marketing service that sells 
natural gas in competition with outside sources. EDG continues to receive non-gas related revenues for 
distribution and other services if natural gas is purchased from another source by our eligible customers. 
 
Other - Rate Matters 
 
In accordance with ASC guidance on regulated operations, we currently have deferred approximately 
$2.2 million of expense related to rate cases in regulatory assets under other noncurrent assets and 
deferred charges. These amounts will be amortized over varying periods based upon the completion of 
the specific cases.  Based on past history, we expect all these expenses to be recovered in rates. 
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4. STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY 
 
Dividends  
 
Beginning in 2017, the Board of Directors declares dividends, if any, to be paid to the parent company. 
The dividends paid in 2018 and 2019 were $95.0 million and $30.0 million, respectively. 
 
 
The EDE Mortgage contains a dividend restriction which permits dividends as long as:  i) as of the date of 
such dividend declaration such dividend or distribution would comply with the terms of the EDE Mortgage; 
and ii) EDE maintains a ratio of total indebtedness to total capitalization equal to or greater than 0.625 to 
1 as of the last day of the calendar month immediately preceding the date of such  payment, giving 
proforma effect to the payment of such dividend. 
  
5. LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the balance of long-term debt outstanding was as follows (in 
thousands):  
 
  2019  2018 
First mortgage bonds (EDE):     
     4.65% Series due 2020 (1)            $         100,000  $        100,000 
     3.58% Series due 2027 (1)  88,000  88,000 
     3.59% Series due 2030 (1)  60,000  60,000 
     3.73% Series due 2033 (1)   30,000  30,000 
     5.875% Series due 2037 (1)  80,000  80,000 
     5.20% Series due 2040 (1)  50,000  50,000 
     4.32% Series due 2043 (1)  120,000  120,000 
     4.27% Series due 2044 (1)  60,000  60,000 
First mortgage bonds (EDG):     
     6.82% Series due 2036 (1)  55,000  55,000 
  643,000  643,000 
     
Senior Notes, 6.70% Series due 2033 (1)  62,000  62,000 
Senior Notes, 5.80% Series due 2035 (1)  40,000  40,000 
Promissory Note, 4.53% due June 1, 2033  90,000  90,000 
Lease obligations  2,513  2,864 
     Less unamortized debt expense  (6,643)  (7,192) 
     Less unamortized net discount  (432)  (479) 
  830,438  830,193 
     
     Current unamortized debt expense  -  - 
     Less current obligations of long-term debt  -  - 
     Less current lease obligations  (387)  (382) 
TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT  $           830,051              $            829,811 
     
(1) We may redeem some or all of the notes at any time at 100% of their principal amount, plus a make-whole premium, plus 


accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. 
 
EDE Mortgage Indenture 
 
Substantially all of the property, plant and equipment of The Empire District Electric Company (but not its 
subsidiaries) is subject to the lien of the EDE Mortgage. Restrictions in the EDE mortgage bond indenture 
could affect our liquidity. The principal amount of all series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one 
time under the Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust of The Empire District Electric Company (EDE 
Mortgage) is limited by terms of the mortgage to $1.0 billion. Based on the $1.0 billion limit, and our 
current level of outstanding first mortgage bonds, we are limited to the issuance of $412.0 million of new 
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first mortgage bonds. The EDE Mortgage contains a requirement that for new first mortgage bonds to be 
issued, our net earnings (as defined in the EDE Mortgage) for any twelve consecutive months within the 
fifteen months preceding issuance must be two times the annual interest requirements (as defined in the 
EDE Mortgage) on all first mortgage bonds then outstanding and on the prospective issue of new first 
mortgage bonds.  In addition to the interest coverage requirement, the EDE Mortgage provides that new 
bonds must be issued against, among other things, retired bonds or 60% of net property additions. The 
annual interest coverage requirement and retired bonds or 60% of net property additions test would 
permit the issuance of more than $412.0 million of first mortgage bonds; however, as discussed above, 
we are otherwise limited to the issuance of no more than $412.0 million of new first mortgage bonds.  As 
of December 31, 2019, we are in compliance with all restrictive covenants of the EDE Mortgage. 
 
On June 1, 2018, EDE’s $90 million 6.375% Series first mortgage bonds matured and were repaid with 
the proceeds of a promissory note of like amount issued to Liberty Utilities Co. The Liberty Utilities Co. 
promissory note carries a fixed rate of 4.53% and matures on June 1, 2033.   
 
EDG Mortgage Indenture 
 
The principal amount of all series of first mortgage bonds outstanding at any one time under the Indenture 
of Mortgage and Deed of Trust of The Empire District Gas Company (EDG Mortgage) is limited by terms 
of the mortgage to $300.0 million. Substantially all of the property, plant and equipment of EDG is subject 
to the lien of the EDG Mortgage. The EDG Mortgage contains a requirement that for new first mortgage 
bonds to be issued, the amount of such new first mortgage bonds shall not exceed 75% of the cost of 
property additions acquired after the date of the Missouri Gas acquisition. The mortgage also contains a 
limitation on the issuance by EDG of debt (including first mortgage bonds, but excluding short-term debt 
incurred in the ordinary course under working capital facilities) unless, after giving effect to such issuance, 
EDG’s ratio of EBITDA (defined as net income plus interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and certain 
other non-cash charges) to interest charges for the most recent four fiscal quarters is at least 2.0 to 1.0. 
As of December 31, 2019, this test would allow us to issue approximately $23.0 million principal amount 
of new first mortgage bonds at an assumed interest rate of 5.5%. As of December 31, 2019, we are in 
compliance with all restrictive covenants of the EDG Mortgage. 
 
Our long-term debt obligations over the next five years are as follows (in thousands): 
 
   


Payments Due By Period 
 
 


 
Long-Term Debt Payout Schedule 
(Excluding Unamortized Discount) 


(in thousands) 


  
 
 
 


Total 


  
 


Regulated 
Entity Debt 
Obligations 


  
 
 


Capital Lease 
Obligations 


  
 


Operating 
Lease 


Obligations 
2020  $                382                $                     -                               $                356                                    $                26 
2021  100,433  100,000  412  21 
2022  440  -  440   
2023  470  -  470   
2024  502  -  502   
Thereafter  735,286  735,000  286   
Total long-term debt obligations  837,513  $         835,000             $           2,466                                $               47 
 Less current obligations and 
          unamortized discount 


  
7,462 


        


TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT  $         830,051                             
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6. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 
 
At December 31, 2019, Empire had no short-term borrowings. During 2019 and 2018, our short-term 
borrowings outstanding averaged (in millions):  
 
  2019  2018 
Average borrowings outstanding  $ 2.5  $5.5 
Highest month end balance  $18.75  $21.8 
 
The weighted average interest rates and the weighted average interest rate of borrowings outstanding at 
December 31, 2019 and 2018 were: 
 
  2019  2018 
Weighted average interest rate  N/A  1.97% 
Weighted average interest rate of 
borrowings outstanding 


  
N/A 


  
2.84% 


 
Effective February 23, 2018, our $200 million 5-year Credit Agreement, which was set to expire in 
October 2019, was terminated. Empire maintained its commercial paper program but the program is 
supported by a credit facility maintained by its parent company, Liberty Utilities Co. On February 23, 
2018, Liberty Utilities Co. entered into a new 5-year $500 million credit facility (“Liberty Utilities Credit 
Facility”) which is available to Liberty for, among other things, working capital and general corporate 
purposes, including supporting the working capital needs of its subsidiaries.   
 


7. RETIREMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
We record retirement benefits in accordance with the ASC guidance on accounting for pension and other 
postemployment benefits, and have recorded the appropriate liabilities to reflect the unfunded status of 
our benefit plans, with offsetting entries to a regulatory asset, because we believe it is probable the 
unfunded amount of these plans will be afforded rate recovery. Additionally, the MPSC agreed that the 
effects of purchase accounting entries related to pension and other post-retirement benefits would be 
recoverable in future rate proceedings. These amounts, which are recorded as regulatory assets, are 
being amortized. The tax effects of these entries are reflected as deferred tax assets and liabilities and 
regulatory liabilities.   
 
Annually, we evaluate the discount rate, retirement age, compensation rate increases, expected return on 
plan assets, healthcare cost trend rate, and other actuarial assumptions related to the pension benefit 
and post-retirement medical plan. When selecting the discount rate we utilize a modeling process that 
involves selecting a portfolio of above median, AA or better, bonds whose cash flows match the timing 
and extent of the expected cash flows of the Empire pension plan. In evaluating these assumptions, many 
factors are considered, including, current market conditions, asset allocations, changes in demographics 
and the views of leading financial advisors and economists. In evaluating the expected retirement age 
assumption, we consider the retirement ages of past employees eligible for pension and medical benefits 
together with expectations of future retirement ages. It is reasonably possible that changes in these 
assumptions will occur in the near term and, due to the uncertainties inherent in setting assumptions, the 
effect of such changes could be material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements. A roll 
forward technique is used to value the year ending pension obligations. The roll forward technique values 
the year-end obligation by rolling forward the beginning-of-year obligation using the demographic 
assumptions disclosed below. The economic assumptions are updated as of the end of the year. All of 
the benefit plans have been measured as of December 31, 2019, consistent with previous years. See 
Note 1.   
 
Pensions  
 
Our noncontributory defined benefit pension plan includes all employees meeting minimum age and 
service requirements. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2014 accrue benefits based on a cash 
balance methodology.  Employees hired prior to January 1, 2014 were given a one-time option to convert 
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to the cash balance methodology, or remain with our traditional average annual basic earnings formula, 
by December 31, 2014. Both benefit formulas allow for a lump-sum distribution of vested benefits. Lump-
sum distributions totaled approximately $10.3 million and $29.1 million during 2019 and 2018, 
respectively. In 2018, lump-sum distributions required settlement accounting according to ASC 715, and 
resulted in a settlement loss of approximately $2.5 million. 
 
Annual contributions to the plan are at least equal to the greater of either minimum funding requirements 
of ERISA or the accrued cost of the plan, as required by the MPSC.  
 
Our net pension liability decreased $5.3 million in 2019, which was recorded as a decrease in regulatory 
assets as we believe it is probable of recovery through customer rates based on rate orders received in 
our jurisdictions. Our contribution is estimated to be approximately $11.7 million for 2020. We expect 
future pension funding commitments to continue at least at the level of our accrued cost, as required by 
our regulator. The actual minimum funding requirements will be determined based on the results of the 
actuarial valuations and, in the case of 2021, the performance of our pension assets during 2020. 
 
We also have a supplemental retirement program (“SERP”) for designated former officers of the 
Company, which we fund from Company funds as the benefits are paid. The liability for this plan 
increased $4.2 million in 2019. Subsequent to the closing of the Merger, the SERP plan was frozen. See 
Note 15 for further discussion of the Merger Agreement. 
 
 Expected benefit payments are as follows (in millions): 
 


 
Year 


  
Payments from Trust 


 Payments from 
Company Funds 


2020  $  15.2  $   0.9 
2021  15.5  1.4 
2022  16.6  1.4 
2023  17.1  1.4 
2024  17.1  1.4 
2025-2029  87.8  6.8 
 
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)  
 
We provide certain healthcare and life insurance benefits to eligible retired employees, their dependents 
and survivors through trusts we have established. Participants generally become eligible for retiree 
healthcare benefits after reaching age 55 with 5 years of service. Employees hired after January 1, 2014 
will be offered unsubsidized retiree healthcare benefits upon retirement. 
 
Our net liability increased $7.3 million in 2019, which was recorded as an increase in regulatory assets as 
we believe it is probable of recovery through customer rates based on rate orders received in our 
jurisdictions. Our funding policy is to contribute annually an amount at least equal to the actuarial cost of 
postemployment benefits. We expect to be required to fund approximately $3.25 million in 2020.   
 
Estimated benefit payments are as follows (in millions): 


 
Year 


  
Payments from Trust 


2020  $  4.5 
2021  4.7 
2022  4.9 
2023  5.1 
2024  5.5 
2025-2029  31.8 
 
The following tables set forth the Company’s benefit plans’ projected benefit obligations, the fair value of 
the plans’ assets and the funded status (in thousands). 
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Reconciliation of Projected Benefit 
Obligations: 


 Pension  SERP  OPEB 
 2019  2018  2019  2018  2019  2018 


Benefit obligation at beginning of year  $217,951  $243,288  $  21,725  $  23,042  $112,182  $ 110,075 
Service cost      6,484       8,506  -  -  3,011       3,525 
Interest cost      9,201      8,895  770  883  5,110       4,331 
Net actuarial (gain)/loss     29,245     (5,098)  4,127  (1,426)  26,271      (1,446) 
Cash Balance Plan Spin-off     (3,171)            -  -  -  -             - 
Plan Amendment     (7,798)            -  -  -  -             - 
Transfers from another location/plan      3,171            -  -  -  -             - 
Plan participant’s contribution            -            -  -  -  1,452       1,431 
Benefits and expenses paid   (18,649)  (37,640)   (658)   (774)  (6,110)     (5,776) 
Federal subsidy             -            -  -  -  414            42 
Benefit obligation at end of year  $236,434   $217,951   $  25,964       $  21,725       $142,330  $ 112,182 
 
Reconciliation of Fair Value of 


Plan Assets: 
 Pension  SERP  OPEB 
 2019  2018       2019  2018  2019  2018 


Fair value of plan assets at 
beginning of year      


 $153,531 $   196,861  $           -      $           -     $    93,027  $ 106,699 


Actual return on plan assets – 
gain/(loss) 


  
 30,552 


 
     (18,171) 


                           -  
20,500 


  
(9,369) 


Employer contribution   11,872       12,481           658          774         6,562  - 
Cash Balance Plan Spin-off   (1,126)              -            -               - -  - 
Transfers from another 
location/plan 


          
      1,126 


 
             - 


           
            - 


             
  - 


 
- 


  
- 


Benefits paid   (18,649)     (37,640)         (658)        (774)     (4,658)      (4,345) 
Federal subsidy         -              -             -               -           414           42 
Fair value of plan assets at end 
of year 


  
$177,306 


  
$ 153,531 


  
$              - 


  
$           - 


 
 


 
$ 115,845 


  
$  93,027 


 
Reconciliation of Funded 


Status: 


  
     Pension 


             
           SERP 


          
                  OPEB 


 2019  2018  2019  2018  2019  2018 
Fair value of plan assets   $ 177,306   $153,531   $            -  $            -  $  115,845     $    93,027    
Projected benefit obligations  (236,434)  (217,951)  (25,964)     (21,725)  (142,330)   (112,182) 
             
Funded status  $ (59,128)  $(64,420)  $(25,964)  $ (21,725)  $ (26,485)  $ (19,155) 
 
The employee pension plan accumulated benefit obligation at December 31, 2019 and 2018 is presented 
in the following table (in thousands): 
 
  Pension Benefits  SERP 
  2019  2018  2019  2018 
Accumulated benefit obligation  $212,185  $190,278  $  25,964  $  21,725 
 
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of the following (in thousands): 
 
 
 


Pension  SERP  OPEB 
2019  2018  2019  2018  2019  2018 


Other deferred charges $           -  $               -  $           -  $               -  $            -  $            
- 


Accounts payable and accrued              
     liabilities $           -  $               -  $              $            $            -  $            


- 
Pension and other 
postemployment 
     benefit obligations 


 
$  59,128 


  
$     64,420 


  
$    25,964 


  
$     21,725 


  
$   26,485 


  
$ 19,155 
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Net periodic benefit pension cost for 2019 and 2018, some of which is capitalized as a component of 
labor cost and some of which is deferred as a regulatory asset (See Note 3), is comprised of the following 
components (in thousands): 
 
Net Periodic Pension Benefit       Pension                  OPEB       SERP 


Cost: 2019  2018  2019  2018  2019  2018 
Service cost $     6,484  $     8,506  $    3,011  $    3,525  $            -  $           - 
Interest cost 9,201  8,895  5,110  4,331  770  883 
Expected return on plan assets   (9,239)    (13,632)  (5,424)  (6,310)  -  - 
Amortization of prior service             
    cost/(benefit)(1) -  -  -  -  -  - 
Amortization of actuarial loss(1) 1,953  357  469  -  204  359 
Net periodic benefit cost $   8,399  $   4,126  $    3,166  $    1,546  $        974  $     1,242 
(1)Amounts are amortized from our regulatory asset originally recorded upon recognizing our net pension liability on the consolidated 
balance sheets. 
 
The table below presents other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in the 
regulatory asset accounts for the year (in thousands): 
       Amount Recognized 


 
 


Regulatory 
Assets 


  
Beginning 
Balance 
12/31/18 


   
Current Year 


Actuarial 
(Gain)/Loss 


  
Amortization 
of Actuarial 


Gain 


 Amortization 
of Prior 
Service 


(Cost)/Credit 


  
Ending 
Balance 
12/31/19 


Pension $ 105,816                  7,931     (1,953) (7,798)  $ 103,996     
SERP  $     8,033                    4,128        (204)   $   11,957         
OPEB $   11,485                     11,196        (470)  $   22,211           
 
The measurement date used to determine the pension and other postemployment benefits is December 
31.  The assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation and the periodic costs are as follows: 
 


Weighted-average Assumptions Used to Determine the Benefit Obligation as of December 31: 
  Pension Benefits  OPEB 
  2019  2018  2019  2018 


Discount rate  3.20%  4.22%  3.31%  4.28% 
Rate of compensation increase  4.00%  4.00%  4.00%  4.00% 
 


Weighted-average Assumptions used to Determine the Net Benefit Cost (Income) as of January 1: 
                 Pension Benefits                                             OPEB 
  2019  2018   2019  2018   


Discount rate  4.22%  3.54%   4.28%  3.63%   
Expected return on plan assets  7.00%  7.25%   6.75%  6.75%   
Rate of compensation increase  4.00%  4.00%   4.00%  3.00%   
 
The expected long-term rate of return assumption was based on historical return and adjusted to estimate 
the potential range of returns for the current asset allocation. The assumed 2019 cost trend rate used to 
measure the expected cost of healthcare benefits and benefit obligation is 6.25%. Each trend rate 
decreases 0.125% through 2031 to an ultimate rate of 4.75% in 2031 and subsequent years. 
 
The healthcare cost trend rate affects projected benefit obligations. A 1% change in assumed healthcare 
cost growth rates would have the following effects (in thousands): 
 
  1% Increase  1% Decrease 
Effect on total of service and interest cost  $   1,737   $   (1,332)  
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligation  $ 27,500  $ (21,426) 
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Fair Value Measurements of Plan Assets 
 
See Note 13 for a discussion of fair value measurements. The Company believes that it is appropriate for 
the pension fund to assume a moderate degree of investment risk with diversification of fund assets 
among different classes (or types) of investments, as appropriate, as a means of reducing risk. Although 
the pension fund can and will tolerate some variability in market value and rates of return in order to 
achieve a greater long-term rate of return, primary emphasis is placed on preserving the pension fund’s 
principal. Full discretion is delegated to the investment managers to carry out investment policy within 
stated guidelines. The guidelines and performance of the managers are monitored by the Company’s 
Investment Committee. The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets 
measured at fair value using significant other observable, or significant unobservable inputs. 
 


Short-term investments:  Valued at cost, which approximates fair value.  
 
Common/Collective trusts:  Valued at the fair value based on audited financials of the trusts.   
 
U.S. corporate and foreign issue debt:  Valued at quoted market prices when available in an active 
market.  If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing 
models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows. 
 
Equity long/short hedge funds:  Valued at the net asset value reported in the annual audited financial 
statements and updated monthly based on changes in the value of the underlying funds reported by 
the fund manager. 


 
Plan Assets 
 
We utilize fair value in determining the market-related values for the different classes of our pension plan 
assets. The market-related value is determined based on smoothing actual asset returns in excess of (or 
less than) expected return on assets over a 5-year period. 
 
The Company’s investment strategy for its pension plan assets is to maintain a diversified portfolio of 
assets with the primary goal of meeting long-term cash requirements as they become due. 


Asset Allocation 
 


Asset Class  Target 
(%) 


 Range 
(%) 


Equity securities  78%  50%- 78% 
Debt securities  22%  22%- 50% 
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Pension Plan Assets 
 
The following fair value hierarchy table presents information about the pension fund assets measured at 
fair value as of December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 (in thousands): 
 
  Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2019 
  Quoted Prices 


in Active 
Markets for 


Identical Assets  
(Level 1) 


 
Significant Other 


Observable 
Inputs 


(Level 2)  


Significant 
Unobservable 


Inputs 
(Level 3)  Total 


 


Percentage 
of Plan 
Assets 


Equity Securities  $            135,401             $                -  $                    -  $ 135,401              76.9% 
Debt Securities  38,560                    -  -      38,560    21.9% 
Other  2,113                    -  -        2,113      1.2% 
  $            176,074  $              $                    -  $ 176,074  100.0% 
 
 
  Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2018 
  Quoted 


Prices in 
Active 


Markets for 
Identical 
Assets  


(Level 1) 


 


Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 


(Level 2)  


Significant 
Unobservable 


Inputs 
(Level 3)  Total 


 


Percentage 
of Plan 
Assets 


Equity Securities  $       119,094  $                   -  $                    -  $ 119,094     77.6% 
Debt Securities            34,378  -        34,378     22.4% 
  $       153,472      $              $                    -  $ 153,472      100.0% 
 
 


OPEB plan assets 
 
The following fair value hierarchy table presents information about the OPEB fund assets measured at 
fair value as of December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 (in thousands): 
 
  Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2019 
   


 
Quoted 


Prices in 
Active 


Markets for 
Identical 
Assets  


(Level 1) 


  
 


Significant 
Other 


Observable 
Inputs 


 (Level 2) 


  
 
 


Significant 
Unobservable 


Inputs  
(Level 3) 


  
 
 
 
 
 


Total 


 


Percentage 
of Plan 
Assets 


Equity Securities  $           89,085             $                    -  $                    -  $     89,085              76.9% 
Debt Securities               25,370                    -  -         25,370       21.9% 
Other  1,390                    -  -  1,390    1.2% 
  $         115,845  $                    -  $                    -  $   115,845     100.0% 
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  Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2018 
   


 
Quoted 


Prices in 
Active 


Markets for 
Identical 
Assets  


(Level 1) 


  
 


Significant 
Other 


Observable 
Inputs 


 (Level 2) 


  
 
 


Significant 
Unobservable 


Inputs  
(Level 3) 


  
 
 
 
 
 


Total 


 


Percentage 
of Plan 
Assets 


Equity Securities  $       72,189  $                -  $                    -  $   72,189    77.6% 
Debt Securities       20,838                -  -       20,838    22.4% 
  $       93,027  $                -  $                    -  $   93,027     100.0% 
   
 


401(k) Plan and ESOP     


Our Employee 401(k) Plan and ESOP (the 401(k) Plan) allows participating employees to defer up to 
25% of their annual compensation up to an Internal Revenue Service specified limit. For employees 
participating in the cash balance formula of the pension plan, discussed above, we match 100% of their 
deferrals, not to exceed 6% of the employee’s eligible compensation. We record the compensation 
expense at the time the matching contributions are made to the plan. Subsequent to the Merger, as part 
of the APUC 401(k) Plan, matching employer contributions are made in cash. 
 
8. EQUITY COMPENSATION  
We recognized the following amounts in compensation expense and tax benefits for all of our stock-
based awards and programs for the applicable years ended December 31 (in thousands): 
 
  2019  2018 
     
Compensation expense  $               2,183  $               2,234 
Tax benefit recognized  534  546 
 
 
 
Algonquin offers a Performance Stock Unit (PSU) plan to officers and directors as part of its long-term 
incentive program. PSUs are granted annually for three-year overlapping performance cycles. PSUs vest 
at the end of the three-year cycle and will be calculated based on established performance criteria. At the 
end of the three-year performance periods, the number of common shares issued can range from 2% to 
237% of the number of PSUs granted. Dividends accumulating during the vesting period are converted to 
PSUs based on the market value of the shares on that date and are recorded in equity as the dividends 
are declared. None of these PSUs have voting rights. Any PSUs not vested at the end of a performance 
period will expire. The PSUs provide for settlement in cash or shares at the election of the Company. As 
the Company does not expect to settle these instruments in cash, these options are accounted for as 
equity awards.  
 
Compensation expense associated with PSUs is recognized rateably over the performance period. 
Achievement of the performance criteria is estimated at the consolidated balance sheet date. 
Compensation cost recognized is adjusted to reflect the performance conditions estimated to-date. 
Empire’s compensation expense for 2019 and 2018 was $0.5 million. 
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Employee share purchase plan 
 
Under APUC’s employee share purchase plan (“ESPP”), eligible employees may have a portion of their 
earnings withheld to be used to purchase the APUC’s common shares. APUC will match (a) 20% of the 
employee contribution amount for the first five thousand dollars per employee contributed annually and 
10% of the employee contribution amount for contributions over five thousand dollars up to ten thousand 
dollars annually, for Canadian employees, and (b) 15% of the employee contribution amount for the first 
fifteen thousand dollars per employee contributed annually, for U.S. employees. Common shares 
purchased through the match portion shall not be eligible for sale by the participant for a period of one 
year following the contribution date on which such shares were acquired.  At APUC’s option, the common 
shares may be (i) issued to participants from treasury at the average share price or (ii) acquired on behalf 
of participants by purchases through the facilities of the TSX by an independent broker. The aggregate 
number of common shares reserved for issuance from treasury by APUC under the ESPP shall not 
exceed 2,000,000 common shares. 
 
APUC uses the fair value based method to measure the compensation expense related to the Company’s 
contribution. Empire’s compensation expense for 2019 and 2018 was less than $0.1 million. 
 
 
9. INCOME TAXES  
 
Income tax expense components for the years ended December 31 are as follows (in thousands): 
 


  2019  2018 
Current income taxes:     
     Federal  $           7,162      $             25,017 
     State         3,397                               (375) 
TOTAL      10,559                          24,642 
     
Deferred income taxes:     
     Federal      14,254                            (6,031) 
     State        2,863                                    (859) 
TOTAL     17,117                              (6,890) 
     
Investment tax credit amortization         (116)                           - 
TOTAL INCOME TAX EXPENSE  $        27,560  $             17,752 


 


Deferred Income Taxes 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected on our consolidated balance sheets as follows (in 
thousands): 
 


  December 31, 
Deferred Income Taxes  2019  2018 


NET DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES  $       279,283                $          259,844            
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Temporary differences related to deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are summarized as 
follows (in thousands): 
  December 31, 


Temporary Differences  2019  2018 
Deferred tax assets:     
     Plant related basis differences       $          19,874               $             18,846 
     Regulated liabilities related to income taxes       57,308  57,989 
     Disallowed plant costs  843  889 
     Gains on hedging transactions  664  705 
     Other  (509)      (509) 
Total deferred tax assets  $           78,180               $             77,920 
     
Deferred tax liabilities:     
     Depreciation, amortization and other plant-related differences    $         302,874             $           289,198 
     Regulated assets related to income  22,099  22,429 
     Loss on reacquired debt  1,556  1,719 
     Amortization of intangible assets  9,504  8,855 
     Pensions and other post-retirement benefits  7,358  3,192 
     Deferred construction accounting costs  6,002  2,654 
     Other  8,070  9,717 
Total deferred tax liabilities  357,463  337,764 
NET DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES  $        279,283             $           259,844 
 
 
Effective Income Tax Rates 
 
The difference between income taxes and amounts calculated by applying the federal legal rate to 
income tax expense for continuing operations were as follows: 
 
 
 


Effective Income Tax Rates  2019  2018 
Federal statutory income tax rate  21.0%  21.0% 
Increase (decrease) in income tax rate resulting from:     
     State income tax (net of federal benefit)  3.5  3.5 
     Investment tax credit amortization  (0.3)  (0.3) 
     Effect of rate-making on property related differences  (0.2)  0.2 
     Federal and state income tax rate reductions  0.0  0.1 
     Transaction-related costs and other deferred tax adjustments              1.3          (12.7) 
     Other  (2.0)  0.2 
EFFECTIVE INCOME TAX RATE  23.3%   12.0% 


 
Our effective income tax rates for 2019 was driven by the impacts of U.S. federal and Missouri state 
income tax rates and other related deferred tax adjustments. 
 
We do not have any unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2019. We did not recognize any 
significant interest or penalties in any of the periods presented. We do not expect any significant changes 
to our unrecognized tax benefits over the next twelve months. 
 
Tax information included in these consolidated financial statements reflects the results of operations of 
the Empire District companies on a standalone basis. Upon our acquisition on January 1, 2017, we joined 
the Liberty Utilities consolidated group for filing federal and state income tax returns. As such, Empire’s 
current income and carried forward tax attributes were combined with those of the other Liberty Utilities 
companies. The liability for current income taxes is carried in “Taxes accrued” on the balance sheet for 
standalone statement presentation. This liability will be resolved by intercompany payment to Liberty 
Utilities rather than by direct payment to tax jurisdictions. Of the $40.5 million in Taxes accrued, 
approximately $36.7 million relates to Empire’s stand-alone income tax liability.    
 







THE EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY 
A Liberty Utilities Company 


Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 


37 
 


At the beginning of 2018, we had a net operating loss (NOL) carryforward of $38.3 million which was 
consumed in 2018.  
 
In 2010, we received $17.7 million of investment tax credits based on our investment in Iatan 2, which, if 
unused, will expire in 2030. We utilized $10.4 million of these credits in the 2013 tax year. In 2018, on a 
standalone basis, we utilized the remaining $7.3 million of the credits. The tax credits will have no 
significant income statement impact because they will flow to our customers as we amortize the tax 
credits over the life of the plant. 
 
Federal Tax Reform 
 
In 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("Tax Act") implemented significant changes to U.S. tax legislation, 
including a reduction in the U.S. federal corporate income tax from 35% to 21%, effective January 1, 
2018. The Company’s U.S. entities were required to re-measure their deferred tax assets and liabilities at 
the new corporate income tax rate as at the date of enactment. 
 
In accordance with GAAP, the tax effects of changes in tax laws were recognized in the period in which 
the law was enacted. GAAP also requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be measured at the tax 
rate that is expected to apply when temporary differences are realized or settled. To the extent deferred 
tax balances are included in rate base, the revaluation of deferred taxes was deferred as a regulatory 
liability on the consolidated balance sheets and will be refunded to customers. For deferred tax balances 
not included in rate base, the revaluation of deferred taxes was recorded as income tax expense. As of 
December 31, 2017, the Company estimated the impact of TCJA to be a decrease in accumulated 
deferred income taxes $214.2 million, creation of a noncurrent regulatory liability of $193.0 million, and 
recognition of an income tax benefit of $5.9 million. During the year ended December 31, 2018, we 
reduced the regulatory liability by $7.0 million associated with TCJA items.  A majority of the excess 
deferred taxes are related to the depreciable lives and methods associated with Plant assets and will be 
amortized under the Average Rate Assumption Method (ARAM) as prescribed by the Internal Revenue 
Code. During 2019, the Company decreased income tax expense by $1.9 million for amortization of the 
regulatory liability.  
 
On June 1, 2018, the state of Missouri enacted legislation lowering its corporate income tax rate to 4%, 
effective January 1, 2020. As with TCJA, this change creates an obligation to refund excess deferred 
income taxes to customers. During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company reduced 
accumulated deferred income taxes by $15.2 million, recognized a regulatory liability of $14.6 million, and 
recorded a tax benefit of $0.6 million. 
 
 
10. COMMONLY OWNED FACILITIES 
 
Iatan 
 
We own a 12% undivided interest in the coal-fired Units No. 1 and No. 2 at the Iatan Generating Station 
located near Weston, Missouri, 35 miles northwest of Kansas City, Missouri, as well as a 3% interest in 
the site and a 12% interest in certain common facilities.  We are entitled to 12% of each unit’s available 
capacity and are obligated to pay for a like percentage of the operating costs of the units. KCP&L and 
KCP&L Greater Missouri Operations Co. own 70% and 18% respectively, of Unit 1, and 54% and 18%, 
respectively, of Unit 2. KCP&L operates the units for the joint owners.   
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At December 31, 2019 and 2018, our property, plant and equipment accounts included the amounts in 
the following chart (in millions): 
 


Iatan  2019  2018 
Cost of ownership in plant in service  $ 405.6  $   400.0 
Accumulated depreciation  $ 129.6  $   122.9 
Expenditures(1)   $   24.1  $     24.8 


(1) Recognized in operating, maintenance, and fuel expenditures excluding depreciation expense. 
 
State Line Combined Cycle Unit 
 
We share joint ownership with Westar Generating, Inc, (WGI), a subsidiary of Westar Energy, Inc., of a 
nominal 500-megawatt combined cycle unit at the State Line Power Plant (State Line Combined Cycle 
Unit). We are responsible for the operation and maintenance of the State Line Combined Cycle Unit, and 
are entitled to 60% of the available capacity and are responsible for approximately 60% of its costs.   
 
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, our property, plant and equipment accounts included the amounts in 
the following chart (in millions):  
 


State Line Combined Cycle Unit  2019  2018 
Cost of ownership in plant in service   $  170.4  $   165.0 
Accumulated depreciation   $    50.7  $     50.3 
Expenditures(1)    $    36.3  $     40.6 


(1) Recognized in operating, maintenance, and fuel expenditures excluding depreciation expense. 


Plum Point Energy Station 
 
We own a 7.52% undivided interest in the coal-fired Plum Point Energy Station located near Osceola, 
Arkansas.  We are entitled to 7.52% of the station’s capacity, and are obligated to pay for a like 
percentage of the station’s operating costs.   
 
At December 31, 2019 and 2018, our property, plant and equipment accounts included the amounts in 
the following chart (in millions): 
 


Plum Point Energy Station  2019  2018 
Cost of ownership in plant in service  $ 109.5  $   109.6 
Accumulated depreciation  $   21.9  $     19.4 
Expenditures(1)   $     8.8  $     10.1 


(1) Recognized in operating, maintenance and fuel expenditures excluding depreciation expense. 
 
All of the dollar amounts listed above represent our ownership share of costs.   
 
11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
We are a party to various claims and legal proceedings arising out of the normal course of our business. 
We regularly analyze this information, and provide accruals for any liabilities, in accordance with the 
guidelines presented in the ASC on accounting for contingencies. In the opinion of management, it is not 
probable, given the Company’s defenses, that the ultimate outcome of these claims and lawsuits will have 
a material adverse effect upon our financial condition, or results of operations or cash flows. 
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Coal, Natural Gas and Transportation Contracts 
 
The following table sets forth our firm physical gas, coal and transportation contracts for the periods 
indicated as of December 31, 2019 (in millions): 
 
  Firm physical gas 


and transportation 
contracts 


  


     
January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020  $ 18.3   
January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2022     30.0   
January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2024     24.9   
January 1, 2025 and beyond       7.8   
 
We have entered into long and short-term agreements to purchase coal and natural gas for our energy 
supply and natural gas operations. Under these contracts, the natural gas supplies are divided into firm 
physical commitments and derivatives that are used to hedge future purchases. The firm physical gas 
and transportation commitments are detailed in the table above. 


Purchased Power 
 
We have three purchased power agreements. 
 
The Plum Point Energy Station (Plum Point) is a 670-megawatt, coal-fired generating facility near 
Osceola, Arkansas. We own, through an undivided interest, 50 megawatts of the unit’s capacity. We also 
have a long-term agreement for the purchase of an additional 50 megawatts of capacity from Plum Point. 
Commitments under this agreement are approximately $236.1 million through August 31, 2039, the end 
date of the agreement.   
 
We have a long-term purchased power agreement, which expires in 2028, with Cloud County Windfarm, 
LLC, owned by EDP Renewables North America LLC, Houston, Texas to purchase the energy generated 
at the approximately 105-megawatt Phase 1 Meridian Way Wind Farm located in Cloud County, Kansas. 
Annual payments are contingent upon output of the facility and can range from zero to a maximum of 
approximately $14.6 million based on a 20-year average cost. 
 
We also have a long-term contract, which expires in 2025, with Elk River Windfarm, LLC, owned by 
IBERDROLA RENEWABLES, Inc., to purchase the energy generated at the 150-megawatt Elk River 
Windfarm located in Butler County, Kansas. Annual payments are contingent upon output of the facility 
and can range from zero to a maximum of approximately $16.9 million based on a 20-year average cost. 
 
We do not own any portion of these windfarms. Payments for these agreements are recorded as 
purchased power expenses, and, because of the contingent nature of these payments, are not included in 
the operating lease obligations shown below. 
 
The Empire District Electric Company has entered into a financial hedge agreement on November 7, 
2019, with Neosho Ridge Wind, LLC, which owns the Neosho Ridge Wind Farm that is under construction 
in Neosho County, Kansas.  Empire has agreed to purchase the parent company of Neosho Ridge Wind, 
LLC, and has entered into a separate agreement with tax equity providers to finance a portion of the 
purchase price.   The hedge agreement has a 10-year term, commencing on July 1, 2021.  No electricity 
is actually bought or sold under the hedge.  Rather, it is a financially settled fixed-for-floating swap 
transaction.  More specifically, for each month of the term, if the aggregate fixed price amount for a 
specified notional quantity of electricity is greater than the aggregate market price amount for the same 
quantity, then Empire pays Neosho Ridge Wind, LLC the difference.  If the aggregate market price 
amount is greater than the aggregate fixed price amount, then Neosho Ridge Wind, LLC pays Empire the 
difference.  One purpose of the hedge is to provide a predictable revenue stream to Neosho Ridge Wind, 
LLC, which the tax equity providers required as a condition to providing their investment.  Empire has also 
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entered into a companion non-energy products purchase agreement with Neosho Ridge Wind, LLC, 
under which Empire purchases all renewable energy credits and other non-energy attributes from the 
electricity generated at the Neosho Ridge Wind Farm for a fixed price per MWh. See Note 3 for more 
details related to the Customer Savings Plan. 


Leases 
 
The implementation of ASC 842 did not have an impact on our existing finance leases, and was immaterial 
related to our operating leases.  We have purchased power agreements with Cloud County Windfarm, LLC 
and Elk River Windfarm, LLC, which are considered operating leases for GAAP purposes. Details of 
these agreements are disclosed in the Purchased Power section of this note. 
 
We also currently have operating leases for office facilities related to our gas segment. In addition, we 
have capital leases for 106 railcars to provide coal delivery for our ownership and purchased power 
agreement shares of the Plum Point generating facility. 
 
The gross amount of assets recorded under capital leases totaled $5.2 million at December 31, 2019. 
 
Our lease obligations over the next five years are as follows (in thousands): 
 


 Capital Leases  Operating Leases 
2020         $   492                             $       26                            
2021              537                      21 
2022              537   
2023              537   
2024              537   
Thereafter              296   
Total minimum payments            2,936               $     47 
Less amount representing interest              467   
Present value of net minimum lease payments        $ 2,469                         


 
Expenses incurred related to operating leases were $0.4 million for 2019 and $1.0 million for 2018, 
respectively, excluding payments for wind generated purchased power agreements. The accumulated 
amount of amortization for our capital leases was $3.1 million and $2.8 million at December 31, 2019 and 
2018, respectively. 


Environmental Matters    
 
We are subject to various federal, state, and local laws and regulations with respect to air and water 
quality and with respect to hazardous and toxic materials and hazardous and other wastes, including their 
identification, transportation, disposal, record-keeping and reporting, as well as remediation of 
contaminated sites and other environmental matters. We believe that our operations are in material 
compliance with present environmental laws and regulations. While we are not in a position to accurately 
estimate compliance costs for any new requirements, we expect these costs to be material, although 
recoverable in rates. 
 
Compliance Plan 
 


In order to comply with current and forthcoming environmental regulations, we implemented our 
compliance plan and strategy which largely follows our Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) filed with the 
MPSC in mid-2019.  The Preferred IRP Plan meets customers’ growing demand and interest in 
renewable energy, improved environmental performance, and distributed energy resources. Compliance 
costs we have incurred associated with the MATS, CAIR and CSAPR regulations are being recovered in 
our rates and we anticipate any future costs to continue to be recoverable in our rates.  
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The following list summarizes the most significant environmental regulations affecting our operations: 
 


Regulations 
Air Emissions - NOx and SO2  
     ACID RAIN 
     CAIR (Clean Air Interstate Rule) 
     CSAPR (Cross State Air Pollution Rule) 
     MATS (Mercury Air Toxic Standards) 
     NAAQS (National Ambient Air Quality Standards) 
Greenhouse Gases (GHGs) – CO2  
    ACE (Affordable Clean Energy) 
Surface Impoundments 
     Coal Ash Impoundments:    
Water Discharges 
 
MATS: After the completion of the 2013 Compliance Plan, our facilities operate in compliance with the 
MATS rule. At the end of 2018, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) proposed a major change in 
the way the federal government calculates the costs and benefits associated with the reduction of air 
pollutants. The EPA is not reversing the MATS standards (with which we have already complied), the 
agency plans to alter the underlying calculations to set a precedent for future public health rules.  All 
plants that are subject to the MATS rule continue to operate in compliance with the current regulation. 
 
Greenhouse Gases:   In June 2019, EPA issued the final ACE rule and repealed the Clean Power Plan. 
The components of the rule defines the best system of emission reduction, provides a list of candidate 
technologies, updates EPA’s New Source Review Permitting program, and aligns Clean Air act section 
111(d) general implementing regulations to give states adequate time and flexibility to develop their state 
plans. Liberty-Empire is meeting with the MDNR and other Missouri utilities to determine the best path 
forward for compliance. Although the Asbury plant will not be impacted, Iatan and Plum Point will come 
under the requirements of the ACE rule will comply with the state standards once they are determined by 
Missouri and Arkansas, and approved by the EPA. 
 
Surface Impoundments: The EPA’s final revision of the Clean Water Act (CWA) Steam Electric Effluent 
Limitation Guidelines (ELGs) for coal-fired power plants set technology-based ELGs based on the nature 
of the pollutants being discharged and the facilities involved. These ELG guidelines are currently 
incorporated into the Asbury Plant waste discharge permit.  The EPA rule defines bottom ash transport 
water, fly ash transport water, and scrubber wastes as wastewaters which cannot be discharged after 
December 21, 2023.  
 
The EPA’s final rule to regulate the disposal of coal combustion residuals (CCRs) as a non-hazardous 
solid waste under subtitle D of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) impacts our Asbury 
plant. Empire has published a Closure Plan for the Asbury Plant CCR Impoundment.  The plan schedule 
assumes Closure initiation in November 2020 with completion of the closure by October 2025. If we are 
unable to implement the Closure Plan for the Asbury Plant CCR Impoundment at this time, compliance 
will result in the need to construct at least one cell of a new landfill and complete the conversion of the 
existing bottom ash handling from a wet to a dry system to comply with both the CCR and ELG rules. 
Final closure of the existing ash impoundment, for which an asset retirement obligation of $15.5 million 
has been recorded, is anticipated after the new landfill is operational. In lieu of the expected 
impoundment closure, the new cell construction and the conversion of the existing ash handling system 
are expected to cost up to $3 million and $17 million, respectively. Separately, an asset retirement 
obligation of $4.4 million has been recorded for our interest in the coal ash impoundment at the Iatan 
Generating Station. We expect compliance costs to be recoverable in our rates.  
 
On December 28, 2016, the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) approved our permit 
application to construct a utility waste landfill on a 217-acre site adjacent to the Asbury plant. 
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Water Discharges: We operate under the Kansas and Missouri Water Pollution Plans pursuant to the 
Federal Clean Water Act (CWA).  Our plants are in material compliance with applicable regulations and 
have received all necessary discharge permits. On September 17, 2018 KDHE issued a Certificate of 
Determination stating the Riverton Generating Station cooling water intake structure (CWIS) is in 
compliance with the EPA final rule under the CWA Section 316(b) for existing CWIS, which became 
effective on October 14, 2014, to meet new regulatory requirements for aquatic life protections. An 
industry coalition has filed an appeal of the rule and additional court challenges are expected. Impacts at 
Iatan 1 could range from flow velocity reductions, traveling screen modifications or the installation of a 
closed cycle cooling tower retrofit.  Iatan Unit 2 and Plum Point Unit 1 are covered by the regulation, but 
were constructed with cooling towers, the proposed Best Technology Available. We expect them to be 
unaffected or minimally affected by the final rule. 


Renewable Energy        
 
The Missouri Clean Energy Initiative (Proposition C) requires Empire and other investor-owned utilities in 
Missouri to generate or purchase electricity from renewable energy sources, such as solar, wind, biomass 
and hydro power, or purchase Renewable Energy Credits (RECs), in amounts equal to at least 5% of 
retail sales in 2014-2017, at least 10% in 2018-2020 and at least 15% by 2021. We are currently in 
compliance with this regulatory requirement as a result of generation from our Ozark Beach Hydroelectric 
Project and purchased power agreements previously mentioned with Cloud County Windfarm, LLC and 
Elk River Windfarm, LLC. Proposition C also requires that 2% of the energy from renewable energy 
sources must be solar. On May 6, 2015, the MPSC approved tariffs we filed on May 5, 2015 to establish 
solar rebate payment procedures and revise our net metering tariffs to accommodate the payment of 
solar rebates. Solar rebates are sufficient to allow compliance with the current 2% requirement. As of 
December 31, 2019, we had processed 2,659 solar rebate applications resulting in solar rebate-related 
costs totaling approximately $19.9 million under the tariff. We have recorded the $19.9 million as a 
regulatory asset (See Note 3). The law provides a number of methods that may be utilized to recover the 
associated expenses. We expect any costs to be recoverable in rates. 
 
 
12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  
 
We engage in hedging activities in an effort to minimize our risk from the volatility of natural gas prices. 
We enter into both physical and financial contracts with counterparties relating to our future natural gas 
requirements that lock in prices (with respect to a range of predetermined percentages of our expected 
future natural gas needs) in an attempt to lessen the volatility in our fuel expenditures and gain cost 
predictability.  
 
We recognize that if risk is not timely and adequately balanced or if counterparties fail to perform 
contractual obligations, actual results could differ materially from intended results. 
 
All financial derivative instruments are recognized at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets (See 
Note 1). The unrealized losses or gains from derivatives used to hedge our fuel and purchased power 
costs in our electric segment are recorded in regulatory assets or liabilities. All gains and losses from 
derivatives related to the gas segment are also recorded in regulatory assets or liabilities. This is in 
accordance with the ASC guidance on regulated operations, given that those gains or losses are 
probable of refund or recovery, respectively, through our fuel adjustment mechanisms. 
 
Risks and uncertainties affecting the determination of fair value include:  market conditions in the energy 
industry, especially the effects of price volatility, regulatory and global political environments and 
requirements, fair value estimations on longer term contracts, the effectiveness of the derivative 
instruments in hedging the change in fair value of the hedged item, estimating underlying fuel demand 
and counterparty ability to perform. If we estimate that we have over-hedged forecasted demand, the gain 
or loss on the over-hedged portion will be recognized immediately as fuel and purchased power expense 
in our consolidated statement of income and subject to our fuel adjustment mechanism. 
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As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, we have recorded the following assets and liabilities representing 
the fair value of derivative financial instruments held as of December 31, (in thousands): 
 


ASSET DERIVATIVES  2019  2018 
Non-Designated Hedging 


Instruments Due to Regulatory Accounting 
  


Balance Sheet Classification 
 Fair 


Value 
 Fair 


Value 
     Natural gas contracts, gas segment  Current assets   $        16  $       30 
  Noncurrent assets and deferred charges- 


Other 
   


             - 
   


            - 
       
     Natural gas contracts, electric segment  Current assets               -           14 
  Noncurrent assets and deferred charges- 


Other 
  


- 
  


- 
Total derivative assets     $        16  $       44 
 
 


LIABILITY DERIVATIVES                                                               2019  2018 
Non-Designated as Hedging Instruments Due to 


Regulatory Accounting 
  


Balance Sheet Classification 
 Fair 


Value 
 Fair 


Value 
     Natural gas contracts, gas segment  Current liabilities  $          88  $     89 
  Non-current liabilities and deferred 


     credits 
  


- 
  


- 
       
     Natural gas contracts, electric segment  Current liabilities  467  350 
  Noncurrent liabilities and deferred 


      credits 
  


774 
  


522 
Total derivative liabilities     $     1,329  $   961 
 
Electric Segment 
 
At December 31, 2019, approximately $0.5 million of unrealized losses are applicable to financial 
instruments which will settle within the next twelve months.   
 
The following tables set forth “mark-to-market” pre-tax gains/(losses) from non-designated derivative 
instruments for the electric segment for each of the years ended December 31 (in thousands): 
` 
Non-Designated Hedging Instruments – 


Due to Regulatory Accounting  
Electric Segment 


 Balance Sheet 
Classification of 
Gain/(Loss) on 


Derivative 


  
Amount of Gain/(Loss) Recognized on Balance 


Sheet 


    2019  2018 
Commodity contracts   Regulatory 


(assets)/liabilities 
  


$        (1,830)                     
  


$              1,259 
       
Total – Electric Segment    $        (1,830)                        $              1,259 
 
 
Non-Designated Hedging Instruments – 
Due to Regulatory Accounting 


Electric Segment 


 Statement of 
Operations 


Classification of 
Gain/(Loss) on 


Derivative 


  
Amount of Gain/(Loss) Recognized in Income on 


Derivative 


    2019  2018 
Commodity contracts  Fuel and 


purchased power 
expense 


  
 


$               (1,523)                            


  
 


$               82 
Total – Electric Segment    $               (1,523)                             $               82 
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We also enter into fixed-price forward physical contracts for the purchase of natural gas, coal and 
purchased power.  These contracts are not subject to fair value accounting because they qualify for the 
normal purchase normal sale exemption. We have a process in place to determine if any future executed 
contracts that otherwise qualify for the normal purchase normal sale exception contain a price adjustment 
feature and will account for these contracts accordingly. 
 
As of December 31, 2019, the following volumes and percentage of our anticipated volume of natural gas 
usage for our electric operations for 2020 and the next four years are shown below at the following 
average prices per Dekatherm (Dth). We utilize the following procurement guidelines for our electric 
segment, allowing the flexibility to hedge up to 100% of the current year’s and 80% of any future year’s 
expected requirements while being cognizant of volume risk. The 80% guideline is an annual target and 
volumes up to 100% can be hedged in any given month. For years beyond year four, additional factors of 
long-term uncertainty (including with respect to required volumes and counterparty credit) are also 
considered. (Dth in thousands).      
           Dth Hedged                            
Procurement 


Year % Hedged Physical Financial Average Price Guidelines 
2020 18% 1,840 1,500 $   2.789 Up to 100% 
2021 11% 65 2,000 $   2.866 60% 
2022 0%       -       -           $          - 40% 
2023 0%       -       - $          - 20% 
2024 0%       -                         -                             $          - 10% 


Gas Segment 
 
We attempt to mitigate our natural gas price risk for our gas segment by a combination of (1) injecting 
natural gas into storage during the off-heating season months, (2) purchasing physical forward contracts 
and (3) purchasing financial derivative contracts. We target to have 95% of our storage capacity full by 
November 1 for the upcoming winter heating season. As the winter progresses, gas is withdrawn from 
storage to serve our customers.  As of December 31, 2019, we had 1.2 million Dths in storage on the 
three pipelines that serve our customers. This represents 64% of our storage capacity.  
 
The following table sets forth our long-term hedge strategy of mitigating price volatility for our customers 
by hedging a minimum of expected gas usage for the current winter season and the next two winter 
seasons by the beginning of the ACA year at September 1 and illustrates our hedged position as of 
December 31, 2019 (Dth in thousands). 
 


 
Season 


Minimum % 
Hedged 


Dth Hedged 
Financial 


Dth Hedged 
Physical 


 
Dth in Storage 


 
Actual % Hedged 


 Current 50% 300 -     1,236     71% 
 Second Up to 50%      - -            - - 
 Third Up to 20%     - -            - -   


 
 
A PGA clause is included in our rates for our gas segment operations, therefore, we mark to market any 
unrealized gains or losses and any realized gains or losses relating to financial derivative contracts to a 
regulatory asset or regulatory liability account on our consolidated balance sheets. 
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The following table sets forth “mark-to-market” pre-tax gains/(losses) from derivatives not designated as 
hedging instruments for the gas segment for the years ended December 31 (in thousands): 
 


Non-Designated Hedging 
Instruments Due to Regulatory 


Accounting – Gas Segment 


 Balance Sheet Classification of 
Loss on Derivative 


 Amount of Gain/(Loss) 
Recognized on Balance 


Sheet 
    2019  2018 


Commodity contracts  Regulatory (assets)/liabilities  $         (66)                       $         (192) 
       
Total – Gas Segment    $         (66)            $         (192) 
 
Contingent Features 
 
Certain of our derivative instruments contain provisions that are triggered if we fail to maintain an 
investment grade credit rating with any relevant credit rating agency. If our debt were to fall below 
investment grade, the counterparties to the derivative instruments could request increased 
collateralization on derivative instruments in net liability positions. We had no derivative instruments with 
the credit-risk-related contingent features in a net liability position on December 31, 2019 and have 
posted no collateral with counterparties in the normal course of business. Amounts reported as margin 
deposit assets represent our funds held on deposit for our contracts held with our NYMEX broker and 
other financial contracts with other counterparties that resulted from us exceeding agreed-upon credit 
limits established by the counterparties. The following table depicts our margin deposit assets at the 
dates shown. There were no margin deposit liabilities at these dates. 
 


  December 31, 2019  December 31, 2018 
(in millions)   
Margin deposit assets $     1.8 $     2.0 


 
Offsetting of derivative assets and liabilities 
 
We believe that entering into master trading and netting agreements mitigates the level of financial loss 
that could result from a default under derivatives agreements by allowing net settlement of derivative 
assets and liabilities. We generally enter into the following master trading and netting agreements: (1) the 
International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement, a standardized financial natural gas and 
electric contract; and (2) the North American Energy Standards Board Inc. Agreement, a standardized 
contract for the purchase and sale of natural gas. These master trading and netting agreements allow the 
counterparties to net settle sale and purchase transactions. Collateral requirements are calculated at the 
master trading and netting agreement level by the counterparty. 
 
As shown above, our asset and liability commodity contract derivatives are reported at gross on the 
consolidated balance sheets. ASC guidance permits companies to offset fair value amounts recognized 
for the right to reclaim cash collateral (a receivable) or the obligation to return cash collateral (a liability) 
against fair value amounts recognized for derivative instruments that are executed with the same 
counterparty under the same master netting arrangement. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 
December 31, 2018, we did not hold any collateral posted by our counterparties. The only collateral we 
have posted is our margin deposit assets described above. We have elected not to offset our margin 
deposit assets against any of our eligible commodity contracts. 
 
 
13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS  
 
The accounting guidance on fair value measurements establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which 
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers include: (i) Level 1, defined as quoted 
prices in active markets for identical instruments; (ii) Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in 
active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and (iii) Level 3, defined as unobservable 
inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own 
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assumptions. Our Level 2 fair value measurements consist of both quoted price inputs and inputs that are 
derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data.  
 
The guidance also requires that the fair value measurement of assets and liabilities reflect the 
nonperformance risk of counterparties and the reporting entity, as applicable. Therefore, using credit 
default spreads, we factored the impact of our own credit standing and the credit standing of our 
counterparties, as well as any potential credit enhancements (e.g., collateral) into the consideration of 
nonperformance risk for both derivative assets and liabilities. The results of this analysis were not material 
to the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Our commodity contracts are valued using the market value approach on a recurring basis. The following 
fair value hierarchy table presents information about our commodity contracts measured at fair value as 
of December 31: 
  
                                         Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using 
($ in 000s) 
 
 


Description 


 
 


Assets/(Liabilities) 
at Fair Value 


Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 
Identical Assets 


(Level 1) 


Significant Other 
Observable 


Inputs 
(Level 2) 


Significant 
Unobservable 


Inputs 
(Level 3) 


 December 31, 2019 
     
Derivative assets         $            16            $             16                                      $        - $   - 
Derivative liabilities        $      (1,329)      $      (1,329)           $        - $   - 
     
 December 31, 2018 
     
Derivative assets         $          44              $        44 $        - $   - 
Derivative liabilities        $      (961)    $   (961) $        - $   - 
*The only recurring measurements are derivative related. 


Other fair value considerations 
Our cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of these 
instruments, and are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. The carrying amount of our short-
term debt, which is composed of Empire issued commercial paper or revolving credit borrowings, also 
approximates fair value because of their short-term nature. These instruments are classified as Level 2 in 
the fair value hierarchy as they are valued based on market rates for similar market transactions.  
 
The carrying amount of our total long-term debt exclusive of capital leases at December 31, 2019 and 
2018 was $738 million for each year, compared to a fair market value of approximately $852 million and 
$770 million, respectively. In addition, there is an outstanding long term payable to Liberty Utilities Co. of 
$90 million as of December 31, 2019. These estimates were based on a bond pricing model, utilizing 
inputs classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, which include the quoted market prices for the 
same or similar issues or on the current rates offered to us for debt of the same remaining maturities. The 
estimated fair market value may not represent the actual value that could have been realized as of 
December 31, 2019 or that will be realizable in the future. 
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14. REGULATED OPERATING EXPENSE 
 
The following table sets forth the major components comprising “regulated operating expenses” under 
“operating revenue deductions” on our consolidated statements of income for the years ended (in 
thousands): 
 
          December 31, 
  2019  2018 
Power operation expense (other than fuel)  $      17,186  $      18,450 
Electric transmission and distribution expense  29,066  29,316 
Natural gas transmission and distribution expense  2,701  2,788 
Customer accounts and assistance expense  12,683  12,962 
Employee pension expense (1)  6,772  5,163 
Employee healthcare plan (1)  11,203  10,056 
General office supplies and expense   5,882  5,469 
Administrative and general expense  33,007  31,140 
Bad debt expense  2,086  3,071 
Miscellaneous expense  451  598 
TOTAL   $    121,037  $    119,013 
(1) Does not include capitalized portion of costs, but reflects the GAAP expensed cost plus or minus costs deferred to and 


amortized from a regulatory asset and/or a regulatory liability for Missouri, Kansas and Oklahoma jurisdictions. 
 
15. Subsequent Events 
 
On February 24, 2020, The Empire District Electric Company entered into a financial hedge agreement 
with Kings Point Wind, LLC, which owns the Kings Point Wind Project that is under construction in 
Jasper, Barton, Dade and Lawrence Counties, Missouri.  Empire has agreed to purchase the parent 
company of Kings Point Wind, LLC.  The hedge agreement has a 10-year term, commencing on July 1, 
2021.  No electricity is actually bought or sold under the hedge.  Rather, it is a financially settled fixed-for-
floating swap transaction.  More specifically, for each month of the term, if the aggregate fixed price 
amount for a specified notional quantity of electricity is greater than the aggregate market price amount 
for the same quantity, then Empire pays Kings Point Wind, LLC the difference.  If the aggregate market 
price amount is greater than the aggregate fixed price amount, then Kings Point Wind, LLC pays Empire 
the difference.  One purpose of the hedge is to provide a predictable revenue stream to Kings Point Wind, 
LLC, which the tax equity providers will require as a condition to providing their investment.  Empire has 
also entered into a companion non-energy products purchase agreement with Kings Point Wind, LLC, 
under which Empire purchases all renewable energy credits and other non-energy attributes from the 
electricity generated at the Kings Point Wind Project for a fixed price per MWh.   


 
On February 24, 2020, The Empire District Electric Company entered into a financial hedge agreement 
with North Fork Ridge Wind, LLC, which owns the North Fork Ridge Wind Project that is under 
construction in Barton and Jasper Counties, Missouri.  Empire has agreed to purchase the parent 
company of North Fork Ridge Wind, LLC.  The hedge agreement has a 10-year term, commencing on 
July 1, 2021.  No electricity is actually bought or sold under the hedge.  Rather, it is a financially settled 
fixed-for-floating swap transaction.  More specifically, for each month of the term, if the aggregate fixed 
price amount for a specified notional quantity of electricity is greater than the aggregate market price 
amount for the same quantity, then Empire pays North Fork Ridge Wind, LLC the difference.  If the 
aggregate market price amount is greater than the aggregate fixed price amount, then North Fork Ridge 
Wind, LLC pays Empire the difference.  One purpose of the hedge is to provide a predictable revenue 
stream to North Fork Ridge Wind, LLC, which the tax equity providers will require as a condition to 
providing their investment.  Empire has also entered into a companion non-energy products purchase 
agreement with North Fork Ridge Wind, LLC, under which Empire purchases all renewable energy credits 
and other non-energy attributes from the electricity generated at the North Fork Ridge Wind Project for a 
fixed price per MWh.   


 
The ongoing outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus (“COVID-19”) has caused significant volatility and 
weakness in the global economy. During February and March 2020, the Company received force majeure 
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notices from wind turbine suppliers and contractors of potential disruptions and delays resulting from 
COVID-19 in relation to ongoing wind generation development and construction projects. At this time, it is 
not possible to reliably estimate the impact on each project and the Company’s financial results. 


 
Subsequent events were evaluated through March 30, 2020, the date these financial statements were 
issued. 
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From: Mark Timpe
To: Nana Hamilton
Subject: Algonquin/Liberty update
Date: Wednesday, April 22, 2020 2:11:00 PM

Nana,
I have an update I’d like to pass along but it appears as though I only have your office
phone number.  Please let me know when you have a few minutes to spare so we can
connect.

Thanks.

Mark Timpe

mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com


From: Mark Timpe
To: Nana Hamilton
Subject: Empire District Electric Company Q1 2020 Financial Statements
Date: Thursday, May 14, 2020 4:00:00 PM
Attachments: Empire District Electric Company Q1 2020 Financial Statements.pdf

Nana,
Please find the attached Q1 financial statements.

Regards,

Mark

mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com



LIBERTY UTILITIES
The Empire District Electric Company


Consolidated Balance Sheets


FERC BASIS


March 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
ASSETS
   Plant and Property, at Original Cost:
      Electric 2,774,744,055$            3,014,614,205$            
      Natural Gas 100,759,414                  98,631,587                    
      Water 15,128,081                    14,973,733                    
      Non-Regulated 49,903,206                    48,548,469                    
      Construction Work in Progress 103,046,756                  105,582,537                  


3,043,581,513              3,282,350,531               


      Accumulated Depreciation 920,555,481                  982,685,487                  
2,123,026,032              2,299,665,044               


   Current Assets:
      Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,350,216                      3,047,353                       
      Restricted Cash 4,799,657                      4,793,761                       
      Accounts Receivable - Trade, Net of Allowance 39,171,386                    39,067,530                    
      Accrued Unbilled Revenues 18,838,696                    27,736,151                    
      Accounts Receivable - Other 27,273,980                    27,992,878                    
      Materials and Supplies 47,475,183                    41,116,246                    
      Electric Fuel Inventory 13,551,496                    11,558,902                    
      Natural Gas Inventory 326,329                          2,469,225                       
      Unrealized gain in fair value of derivative contracts -                                  16,100                            
      Regulatory Assets 17,379,403                    11,097,876                    
      Prepaid Expenses and Other 10,889,916                    9,169,247                       


182,056,262                  178,065,270                  
   Deferred Charges:
      Regulatory Assets 240,447,584                  234,698,308                  
      Goodwill 39,492,327                    39,492,327                    
      Other 185,088,226                  850,607                          
                                                                                                                                   465,028,137                  275,041,243                  


               Total Assets 2,770,110,431$            2,752,771,556$            


CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
   Common Stock $1 Par Value and Common Stock Rights 43,993,363$                  43,993,363$                  
   Capital in Excess of Par Value 663,017,789 663,017,789
   Retained Earnings 226,953,582 210,348,764
               Total Common Stockholder's Equity 933,964,734 917,359,915


   Long-Term Debt:
      Obligations Under Capital Lease 2,019,767 2,126,453
      First Mortgage Bonds and Secured Debt 637,292,541 637,165,431
      Unsecured Debt 190,781,355 190,759,442
               Total Long-Term Debt 830,093,663 830,051,326


Total Long-Term Debt & Common Stockholder's Equity 1,764,058,397 1,747,411,241


   Current Liabilities:
      Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 91,820,790 139,808,909
      Interunit Account (45,528)
      Short Term Debt 32,000,000
      Customer Deposits 17,123,462 17,225,552
      Interest Accrued 13,861,989 7,080,523
      Taxes Accrued 51,167,058 40,457,272
      Other Current Liabilities 438,278 1,258,342
      Unrealized loss in fair value of derivative contracts 494,425 554,795
      Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 392,123 387,366
      Regulatory Liabilities 6,110,895 10,552,073


213,363,491 217,324,832
   Noncurrent Liabilities and Deferred Credits:
      Regulatory Liabilities 346,083,704 345,933,188
      Deferred Income Taxes 279,064,965 276,415,776
      Unamortized Investment Tax Credits 17,361,869 17,417,301
      Unrealized loss in fair value of derivative contracts 295,000 774,500
      Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Obligations 112,595,723 111,117,557
      Other 37,287,282 36,377,163
                                                                                                                                   792,688,544 788,035,484


               Total Capitalization and Liabilities 2,770,110,431$            2,752,771,556$            


NOTE:  Due to machine rounding, this statement/schedule may not foot or tie to the dollar with other statements/schedules.







LIBERTY UTILITIES
The Empire District Electric Company


Consolidated Statement of Operations


FERC BASIS
March 31, 2020


CURRENT YEAR TO 12 MONTHS
MONTH DATE ENDED


Operating Revenues:
    Electric 39,558,519$              129,822,118$          573,405,885$           
    Natural Gas 3,515,745                  13,437,794               34,681,396                
    Water 170,939                      487,412                    1,975,125                  
    Non Regulated 566,503                      1,691,710                 7,184,346                  


43,811,706                145,439,035             617,246,753             


Operating Expenses:
    Fuel and Purchased Power 10,174,932                32,540,702               149,789,898             
    Cost of Natural Gas Sold and Transported 1,352,758                  5,870,411                 12,884,250                
    Non Regulated - Other 268,745                      859,533                    3,417,024                  
    Regulated - Other 9,610,482                  29,688,602               118,860,417             
    Maintenance and Repairs 2,552,102                  8,798,048                 44,883,672                
    Merger Related Expenses 4,515                          10,576                       32,643                       
    Depreciation and Amortization 7,774,438                  23,129,748               90,599,269                
    Other Taxes 3,829,105                  11,841,829               43,907,163                


35,567,077                112,739,448             464,374,336             
Operating Income 8,244,628                  32,699,587               152,872,417             


Other Income and Deductions:
    Allowance for Equity Funds Used
      During Construction 271,379                      814,933                    4,098,110                  
    Interest Income 54,299                        181,657                    1,147,720                  
    Other Non-operating Income -                              6,161                         28,479                       
    Other Non-operating Expense (639,340)                    (1,996,050)                (8,238,920)                 


(313,662)                    (993,299)                   (2,964,611)                 


Interest Charges:
    Other Long-Term Debt 3,463,931                  10,391,793               41,567,170                
    Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used
       During Construction (137,479)                    (413,292)                   (1,772,897)                 
    Short-term Debt 61,910                        174,613                    190,170                     
    Other 109,589                      371,263                    1,473,782                  


3,497,951                  10,524,377               41,458,226                
Net Income Before Tax 4,433,016                  21,181,912               108,449,580             


    Provision for Income Taxes 1,029,702                  4,577,093                 24,453,396                


Total Net Income 3,403,314$                16,604,818$             83,996,184$             


NOTE:  Due to machine rounding, this statement/schedule may not foot or tie to the dollar with other statements/schedules.







                                              LIBERTY UTILITIES
                                              EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY


                                                 CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS


THREE THREE
MONTHS ENDED MONTHS ENDED


2020 2019 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
   Net Income 16,604,818$        24,476,703$        


   Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Cash Flows:
      Depreciation and amortization 23,120,666         22,495,773         
      Pension and other post-employment benefit costs 5,135,363           4,544,515           
      Deferred income taxes - net 1,389,128           1,109,893           
      Allowance for equity funds used during construction (814,933)             (144,942)             
      Asbury retirement 31,769                -                      
      Other 53,528                -                      
      Non-Cash (gain)/loss on derivatives (49,912)               (11,977)               


   Cash Flows Impacted by Changes in:
      Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues 9,512,497           (346,405)             
      Fuel, materials and supplies (6,208,634)          5,207,318           
      Prepaid expenses, other current assets and deferred charges (1,914,688)          (2,336,287)          
      Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (23,849,760)        (21,374,828)        
      Asset retirement obligations (422,443)             (68,187)               
      Interest, taxes accrued and customer deposits 17,389,162         22,122,403         
      Other liabilities and other deferred credits 2,616,142           (626,101)             


Total Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 42,592,703         55,047,878         


Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
   Capital expenditures - regulated (71,434,794)        (33,078,379)        
   Capital expenditures and other investments - non-regulated (3,754,231)          (342,596)             


Total Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (75,189,025)        (33,420,975)        


Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
   Net short-term (repayments) borrowings 32,000,000         (6,000,000)          
   Other (94,919) (119,355)


Total Net Cash Used in Financing Activities 31,905,081         (6,119,355)          


Net Increase in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash (691,241)             15,507,548         


Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash at Beginning of Period 7,841,114 8,004,839


Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash at End of Period 7,149,873$         23,512,387$        


March 31, 2020


NOTE: Due to machine rounding, this statement/schedule may not foot or tie, to the dollar, with other statements/schedules.
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From: Mark Timpe
To: Nana Hamilton
Subject: Liberty Utilities Co.
Date: Tuesday, April 7, 2020 3:03:00 PM
Attachments: 2019 Q4 -Liberty Utilities Co - Financial Statements w Auditor report.pdf

Nana,
Attached please find the 2019 audited financial statement for Liberty Utilities Co.

Hope all is well with you and yours.

Regards,

Mark

mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com



Consolidated Financial Statements of


Liberty Utilities Co.


For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 







INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Board of Directors of Algonquin Power and Utilities Corp. 
 
Opinion 


We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Liberty Utilities Co. [the “Company”], which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income, equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the 
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 


In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the 
consolidated results of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance 
with United States generally accepted accounting principles. 


Basis for opinion 


We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated 
financial statements 


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 


In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 


Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 


Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 


Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 


As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 


• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 







error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 


• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 


• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 


• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 


• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 


We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 


 


 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
Licensed Public Accountants 
 
Toronto, Canada 
April 3, 2020 
 







Liberty Utilities Co.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income


(thousands of U.S. dollars) Year ended December 31,


2019 2018
Revenue


Electricity sales and distribution $ 783,843 $ 831,196
Gas sales and distribution 421,712 431,453
Water reclamation and distribution 130,488 128,435
Other 12,498 10,156


1,348,541 1,401,240


Expenses


Electricity purchased 247,417 265,150
Gas purchased 163,208 183,012
Water purchased 8,142 8,796
Operations and maintenance 357,990 372,365
Depreciation of utility plant 183,621 169,820
Other 6,119 6,122
Taxes other than income taxes 73,877 65,203


1,040,374 1,070,468


Operating income 308,167 330,772


Interest expense 45,901 43,648
Interest on related-party debt (note 9) 44,606 43,194
Other losses (gains) 5,733 (3,752)
Pension and post-employment non-service costs (note 10) 17,328 4,990
Acquisition-related costs 4,862 1,533


118,430 89,613


Earnings before income taxes 189,737 241,159


Income tax expense (note 13)


Current 9,030 2,765
Deferred 37,672 50,507


46,702 53,272


Net earnings 143,035 187,887
Net effect of non-controlling interests (note 15) (5,770) (3,241)


Net earnings attributable to the shareholder of Liberty Utilities Co. $ 148,805 $ 191,128


Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Change in unrealized pension and other post-employment expense net of tax recovery and
tax expense of $2,735 and $696 respectively (note 10) (6,509) 1,960


Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax recovery of $552 and $545
respectively (note 18 (b)(ii)) (1,555) (1,561)


(8,064) 399


Comprehensive income $ 140,741 $ 191,527


See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Consolidated Balance Sheets


(thousands of U.S. dollars)
December 31,


2019
December 31,


2018


ASSETS


Utility plant, net (note 5) 4,570,776 4,188,273


Intangible assets, net (note 6) 16,657 17,283


Goodwill (note 6) 974,541 954,282


Regulatory assets (note 7) 420,615 400,707


Long-term investments (note 8) 26,886 1,839


Restricted cash (note 1(f)) 18,338 14,237


Other assets 18,969 8,803


6,046,782 5,585,424


Current assets


Cash and cash equivalents 5,788 5,717


Fuel and natural gas in storage 30,804 43,063


Supplies and consumables inventory 58,552 51,389


Accounts receivable, net (note 4) 200,594 208,661


Regulatory assets (note 7) 44,184 59,037


Derivative instruments (note 18) 16 66


Prepaid expenses 24,287 23,454


Long-term investments (note 8) — 1,407


364,225 392,794


$ 6,411,007 $ 5,978,218







Liberty Utilities Co.
Consolidated Balance Sheets


(thousands of U.S dollars)
December 31,


2019
December 31,


2018


LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY


Shareholder's equity


Shareholder's capital (note 12) $ 2,367,347 $ 2,213,390


Retained earnings 85,781 45,706


Accumulated other comprehensive income 6,661 14,725


Total equity attributable to shareholder of Liberty Utilities Co. 2,459,789 2,273,821


Redeemable non-controlling interest (note 15) 25,048 28,814


Long-term debt (note 9) 901,039 1,008,875


Long-term debt from related parties (note 9) 1,001,127 976,750


Deferred income taxes (note 13) 479,254 438,908


Regulatory liabilities (note 7) 555,885 549,208


Other long-term liabilities (note 11) 174,280 171,325


Derivative instruments (note 18) 910 525


Pension and other post-employment benefits obligation (note 10) 222,534 198,600


3,335,029 3,344,191
Current liabilities


Accounts payable 121,813 81,235


Accrued liabilities 154,086 154,369


Due to related parties (note 14) 1,722 5,117


Other long-term liabilities (note 11) 47,755 38,580


Regulatory liabilities (note 7) 39,018 39,005


Pension and other post-employment benefits (note 10) 2,585 1,497


Derivative instruments (note 18) 1,162 589


Long-term debt (note 9) 223,000 11,000


591,141 331,392


Commitments and contingencies (note 16)


Subsequent events (note 20)


$ 6,411,007 $ 5,978,218


See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Consolidated Statements of Equity
 


Liberty Utilities Co.


(thousands of U.S. dollars)
Shareholder's


capital
Retained
earnings


Accumulated
other


comprehensive
income


Non-
controlling
interests Total


Balance, December 31, 2017 $ 2,181,890 $ (75,290) $ 10,927 $ — $ 2,117,527


Adoption of Topic 606 on revenue 
(note 1(r)) — 1,860 — — 1,860


Adoption of ASU 2018-02 on tax 
effects in AOCI — (3,399) 3,399 — —


Net earnings — 191,128 — (3,241) 187,887


Issuance of common shares (note 12) 31,500 — — — 31,500


Redeemable non-controlling interest 
not included in equity (note 15) — — — 3,241 3,241


Dividends paid — (68,593) — — (68,593)


Other comprehensive income — — 399 — 399


Balance, December 31, 2018 $ 2,213,390 $ 45,706 $ 14,725 $ — $ 2,273,821


Net earnings — 148,805 — (5,770) 143,035


Issuance of common shares (note 12) 153,957 — — 153,957


Redeemable non-controlling interest not
included in equity (note 15) — — — 5,770 5,770


Dividends paid — (108,730) — — (108,730)


Other comprehensive loss — — (8,064) — (8,064)


Balance, December 31, 2019 $ 2,367,347 $ 85,781 $ 6,661 $ — $ 2,459,789


See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows


(thousands of U.S. dollars) Years ended December 31,


2019 2018


Cash provided by (used in):


Operating Activities


Net earnings $ 143,035 $ 187,887


Items not affecting cash:


Depreciation of utility plant 183,621 169,820


Deferred taxes 37,672 50,507


Cost of equity funds used for construction purposes (4,907) (2,728)


Pension and post-employment contributions in excess of expense (9,254) (6,867)


Others 14,292 20,119


Changes in non-cash operating items (note 17) (19,022) (21,038)


345,437 397,700


Financing Activities


Increase in long-term debt 779,742 272,450


Decrease in long-term debt (669,956) (285,075)


Dividends paid to parent (108,730) (68,593)


Contributions from non-controlling interests (note 15) 3,403 —


Distributions to non-controlling interests (note 15) (609) —


Issuance of common shares (note 12) 153,957 31,500


Increase in senior unsecured notes from related party (note 9) 36,127 11,750


Decrease in senior unsecured notes from related party (note 9) (11,750) —


Increase in other long-term liabilities 10,168 9,318


Decrease in other long-term liabilities (10,501) (10,410)


181,851 (39,060)


Investing Activities


Additions to utility plant (459,952) (361,900)


Increase in long term investments (734) (388)


Increase in other assets (1,815) (182)


Acquisition of operating entities (note 3) (61,962) —


Receipt of principal on notes receivable 1,347 —


Proceeds from sale of long lived assets — 3,300


(523,116) (359,170)


Increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 4,172 (530)


Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year 19,954 20,484


Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year $ 24,126 $ 19,954


Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 2019 2018


Cash paid during the year for interest expense $ 88,281 $ 90,819


Cash paid during the year for income taxes $ 9,136 $ 1,256


Non-cash transactions: Utility plant in accruals $ 79,819 $ 36,854


See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2019 and 2018


(in thousands of U.S. dollars)


Liberty Utilities Co. (“Liberty Utilities”, “LUC”, or the “Company”) was formed on December 9, 2010.  The Company is an 
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Algonquin Power and Utilities Corp. ("APUC"). The Company operates rate-regulated 
utilities that provide distribution, generation, and transmission services to approximately 804,000 connections in the electric, 
natural gas, water distribution and wastewater sectors.


 1.  Significant accounting policies


(a) Basis of preparation


The accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes have been prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”).


(b) Basis of consolidation


The accompanying consolidated financial statements of LUC include the accounts of LUC and its wholly 
owned subsidiaries. Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. Interests in subsidiaries 
owned by third parties are included in non-controlling interests (note 1(q)).


(c) Business combinations, intangible assets, and goodwill


The Company accounts for acquisitions of entities or assets that meet the definition of a business as business 
combinations. Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. Assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed are measured at their fair value at the acquisition date, except for deferred income taxes 
which are accounted for as described in note 1(s). Acquisition costs are expensed in the period incurred. 
When the set of activities does not represent a business, the transaction is accounted for as an asset acquisition 
and includes acquisition costs.


Intangible assets acquired are recognized separately at fair value if they arise from contractual or other legal 
rights or are separable. Customer relationships are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated 
life of 40 years. 


Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of an acquired business over the fair value of the net 
assets acquired. Goodwill is generally not included in the rate-base on which regulated utilities are allowed 
to earn a return and is not amortized.


As at September 30 of each year, the Company assesses qualitative and quantitative factors to determine 
whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit to which goodwill is attributed is less 
than its carrying amount.  If it is more likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying 
amount or if a quantitative assessment is elected, the Company calculates the fair value of the reporting 
unit. The carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill is considered not recoverable if the carrying amount 
of the reporting unit as a whole exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value. An impairment charge is recorded 
for any excess of the carrying value of the goodwill over the implied fair value.  Goodwill is tested for impairment 
between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the 
fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount.


(d) Accounting for rate regulated operations


The regulated utility operating companies owned by the Company are subject to rate regulation generally 
overseen by the public utility commission of the states in which they operate (the “Regulator”).  The Regulator 
provides the final determination of the rates charged to customers.  LUC’s regulated utility operating 
companies are accounted for under the principles of U.S. Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") 
ASC Topic 980, Regulated Operations (“ASC 980”).  


Under ASC 980, regulatory assets and liabilities are recorded to the extent that they represent probable 
future revenue or expenses associated with certain charges or credits that will be recovered from or refunded 
to customers through the rate making process. Included in note 7, "Regulatory matters" are details of regulatory 
assets and liabilities, and their current regulatory treatment. 







Liberty Utilities Co.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2019 and 2018


(in thousands of U.S. dollars)


 1.  Significant accounting policies (continued)


(d) Accounting for rate regulated operations (continued)


In the event the Company determines that its net regulatory assets are not probable of recovery, it would no 
longer apply the principles of the current accounting guidance for rate regulated enterprises and would be 
required to record an after-tax, non-cash charge or credit against earnings for any remaining regulatory assets 
or liabilities.  The impact could be material to the Company’s reported financial condition and results of 
operations.


The electric, gas and water utilities’ accounts are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of 
Accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”), the Regulator and National 
Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners in the United States.


(e) Cash and cash equivalents


Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of three months 
or less.


(f) Restricted cash


Restricted cash represents reserves and amounts set aside pursuant to requirements of various debt 
agreements, deposits to be returned back to customers, and certain requirements related to generation and 
transmission operations. Cash reserves segregated from LUC’s cash balances are maintained in accounts 
administered by a separate agent and disclosed separately as restricted cash in these consolidated financial 
statements. LUC cannot access restricted cash without the prior authorization of parties not related to LUC.


(g) Accounts receivable


Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company 
maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses inherent in its accounts receivable portfolio.  
In establishing the required allowance, management considers historical losses adjusted to take into account 
current market conditions and customers’ financial condition, the amount of receivables in dispute, and the 
receivables aging and current payment patterns.  Account balances are charged against the allowance after 
all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote.  The Company 
does not have any off-balance sheet credit exposure related to its customers.


(h) Fuel and natural gas in storage


Fuel and natural gas in storage is reflected at weighted average cost or first-in, first-out as required by 
regulators and represents fuel, natural gas and liquefied natural gas that will be utilized in the ordinary 
course of business of the gas utilities and some generating facilities.  Existing rate orders (note 7(e)) and 
other contracts allow the Company to pass through the cost of gas purchased directly to the customers along 
with any applicable authorized delivery surcharge adjustments.  Accordingly, the net realizable value of fuel 
and gas in storage does not fall below the cost to the Company.


(i) Supplies and consumables inventory


Supplies and consumables inventory (other than capital spares and rotatable spares, which are included in 
utility plant) are charged to inventory when purchased and then capitalized to plant or expensed, as 
appropriate, when installed, used or become obsolete.  These items are stated at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value. Through rate orders and the regulatory environment, capitalized construction jobs are 
recovered through rate base and repair and maintenance expenses are recovered through a cost of service 
calculation. Accordingly, the cost usually reflects the net realizable value.


(j) Utility plant


Utility plant, consisting of regulated generation and transmission assets, electrical, gas, water and wastewater 
distribution assets, equipment and land, are recorded at cost. Project development costs including 
expenditures for preliminary surveys, plans, investigations, environmental studies, regulatory applications 
and other costs incurred for the purpose of determining the feasibility of capital expansion projects, are 
capitalized either as plant or regulatory asset when it is determined that recovery of such costs through 
regulated revenue of the completed project is probable.  







Liberty Utilities Co.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2019 and 2018


(in thousands of U.S. dollars)


1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 


(j) Utility plant (continued)


The costs of acquiring or constructing utility plant include the following: materials, labour, contractor and 
professional services, construction overhead directly attributable to the capital project (where applicable) 
and allowance for funds used during construction (“AFUDC”).  Where possible, individual components are 
recorded and depreciated separately in the books and records of the Company. Plant and equipment under 
finance leases are initially recorded at cost determined as the present value of lease payments to be made 
over the lease term.


AFUDC represents the cost of borrowed funds and a return on other funds.  Under ASC 980, an allowance 
for funds used during construction projects that are included in rate base is capitalized.  This allowance is 
designed to enable a utility to capitalize financing costs during periods of construction of property subject 
to rate regulation.  The AFUDC capitalized that relates to equity funds is recorded as other gains on the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.


Improvements that increase or prolong the service life or capacity of an asset are capitalized. Maintenance 
and repair costs are expensed as incurred.


Contributions in aid of construction represent amounts contributed by customers, governments and developers 
to assist with the funding of some or all of the cost of utility capital assets.  It also includes amounts initially 
recorded as advances in aid of construction (note 11(a)) but where the advance repayment period has expired.  
These contributions are recorded as a reduction in the cost of utility assets and are amortized at the rate of 
the related asset as a reduction to depreciation expense.


The Company’s depreciation is based on the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets in each category 
and is determined using the straight-line method.  The ranges of estimated useful lives and the weighted 
average useful lives are summarized below:


  Range of useful lives
Weighted average


useful lives


  2019 2018 2019 2018


Distribution assets
Gas 5 – 100 5 – 100 45 41
Electrical 5 – 78 5 – 78 41 40
Water & wastewater 5 – 75 5 – 75 39 39


Equipment 5 – 44 5 – 43 13 14


In accordance with regulator-approved accounting policies, when depreciable utility plant is replaced or 
retired, the original cost plus any removal costs incurred (net of salvage) are charged to accumulated 
depreciation with no gain or loss reflected in results of operations.  Gains and losses will be charged to results 
of operations in the future through adjustments to depreciation expense.


(k) Commonly owned facilities


Empire owns undivided interests in three electric generating facilities with ownership interest ranging from 
7.52% to 60% with a corresponding share of capacity and generation from the facility used to serve Empire's 
customers. Empire's investment in the undivided interest is recorded as plant in service and recovered through 
rate base. Empire's share of operating costs is recognized in operating, maintenance and fuel expenditures 
excluding depreciation expense.


(l)        Impairment of long-lived assets 


LUC reviews utility plant and intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 


Recoverability of assets expected to be held and used is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an 
asset to undiscounted expected future cash flows.  If the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount, 
the asset is written down to its fair value.







Liberty Utilities Co.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2019 and 2018


(in thousands of U.S. dollars)


1. Significant accounting policies (continued)


(m) Variable interest entities


The Company performs analyses to assess whether its operations and investments represent variable interest 
entities ("VIEs").  To identify potential VIEs, management reviews contracts under leases, long-term purchase 
power agreements, and jointly owned facilities. VIEs for which the Company is deemed the primary beneficiary 
are consolidated. In circumstances where LUC is not deemed the primary beneficiary, the VIE is not 
consolidated (note 8).


(n) Long-term investments and notes receivable


Investments in which LUC has significant influence, but not control, are accounted for using the equity 
method.  Equity-method investments are initially measured at cost including transaction costs and interest 
when applicable.  LUC records its share in the income or loss of its equity-method investees in other gains 
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.


Notes receivable are financial assets with fixed or determined payments that are not quoted in an active 
market. Notes receivable are initially recorded at cost, which is generally face value. Subsequent to acquisition, 
the notes receivable are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method.  The Company holds 
these notes receivable as long-term investments and does not intend to sell these instruments prior to 
maturity.  Interest from long-term investments is recorded as earned and when collectability of both the 
principal and interest are reasonably assured.


If a loss in value of a long-term investment is considered other than temporary, an allowance for impairment 
on the investment is recorded for the amount of that loss. An allowance for impairment loss on notes receivable 
is recorded if it is expected that the Company will not collect all principal and interest contractually due.  
The impairment is measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the 
note’s effective interest rate.


(o) Pension and other post-employment plans


The Company has established defined contribution pension plans, defined benefit pension plans, other post-
employment benefit (“OPEB”) plans, and supplemental retirement program ("SERP") plans for its various 
employee groups.  Employer contributions to the defined contribution pension plans are expensed as 
employees render service.  The Company recognizes the funded status of its defined benefit pension plans 
and OPEB and SERP plans on the consolidated balance sheets.  The Company’s expense and liabilities are 
determined by actuarial valuations, using assumptions that are evaluated annually as of December 31, 
including discount rates, mortality, assumed rates of return, compensation increases, turnover rates and 
healthcare cost trend rates.  The impact of modifications to those assumptions and modifications to prior 
services are recorded as actuarial gains and losses in accumulated other comprehensive income ("AOCI") 
and amortized to net periodic cost over future periods using the corridor method.  When settlements of the 
Company's pension plans occur, the Company recognizes associated gains or losses immediately in earnings 
if the cost of all settlements during the year is greater than the sum of the service cost and interest cost 
components of the pension plan for the year.  The amount recognized is a pro rata portion of the gains and 
losses in AOCI equal to the percentage reduction in the projected benefit obligation as a result of the 
settlement.  


The costs of the Company’s pension for employees are expensed over the periods during which employees 
render service and the service costs are recognized as part of operation and maintenance expenses in the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income. The components of net periodic benefit cost other than 
the service cost component are included in pension and post-employment non-service costs in the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.







Liberty Utilities Co.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2019 and 2018


(in thousands of U.S. dollars)


1. Significant accounting policies (continued)


(p) Asset retirement obligations


The Company recognizes a liability for asset retirement obligations based on the fair value of the liability 
when incurred, which is generally upon acquisition, during construction, or through the normal operation of 
the asset.  Concurrently, the Company also capitalizes an asset retirement cost, equal to the estimated fair 
value of the asset retirement obligation, by increasing the carrying value of the related long-lived asset.  The 
asset retirement costs are depreciated over the asset’s estimated useful life and are included in depreciation 
on the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, or regulatory assets when the amount is recoverable 
through rates. Increases in the asset retirement obligation resulting from the passage of time are recorded 
as accretion of asset retirement obligation in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, or 
regulatory assets when the amount is recoverable through rates. Actual expenditures incurred are charged 
against the obligation.


In general, the water distribution and/or waste-water treatment services facilities, the electric distribution 
facilities, and the gas distribution facilities are operated with the assumption that their services will be 
required in perpetuity and there are no contractual requirements to decommission the entire facility.  In 
order to remain in compliance with the applicable regulatory bodies, the Company has regular maintenance 
programs at each facility to ensure its equipment is properly maintained and replaced on a cyclical basis.  
These maintenance expenses, expenses associated with replacing aging waste-water treatment facilities and 
expenses associated with providing new sources of water can generally be included in the facility's rate base 
and thus the facility is allowed to earn a return on its investment.


(q) Leases


The Company adopted accounting standard update ("ASU") 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) ("ASC 842") during 
2019 using a modified retrospective approach. 


The Company leases buildings, vehicles, rail cars, and office equipment for use in its day-to-day operations. 
The Company has options to extend the lease term of many of its lease agreements, with renewal periods 
ranging from one to five years. As at the consolidated balance sheet date, the Company is not reasonably 
certain that these renewal options will be exercised.


The Company enters into easement agreements for the operation of its utilities. For all easements that existed 
or were expired as of January 1, 2019, the practical expedient was taken to not change the legacy accounting 
for these easement contracts. For new easement contracts entered into subsequent to January 1, 2019, the 
Company considers whether they contain a lease.


The implementation of ASC 842 did not have an impact on the Company's existing finance leases. The 
weighted-average discount rate as of December 31, 2019 for the Company's finance lease assets and liabilities 
is 6.45% and the weighted-average remaining lease term of the Company's finance leases is 5.5 years. 


New right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of $3,836 were recognized for the Company's operating leases 
as at January 1, 2019. The weighted-average discount rate as of December 31, 2019 for operating lease 
assets and liabilities was 3.52% and the weighted-average remaining lease term is 3.09 years.


The right-of-use assets are included in utility plant while lease liabilities are included in other liabilities on 
the consolidated balance sheets.


The Company's operating leases payments for the next five years and thereafter is as follows:


Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Thereafter Total
$ 896 $ 668 $ 322 $ 295 $ 277 $ 719 $ 3,177


The lease payments for the Company's finance leases are expected to be approximately $539 annually for 
the next five years, and $318 thereafter.







Liberty Utilities Co.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2019 and 2018


(in thousands of U.S. dollars)


1. Significant accounting policies (continued)


(r) Non-controlling interests


Non-controlling interests represent the portion of equity ownership in subsidiaries that is not attributable to 
the equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests are initially recorded at fair value and 
subsequently adjusted for the proportionate share of earnings and other comprehensive income (“OCI”) 
attributable to the non-controlling interests and any dividends or distributions paid to the non-controlling 
interests.


If a transaction results in the acquisition of all, or part, of a non-controlling interest in a consolidated 
subsidiary, the acquisition of the non-controlling interest is accounted for as an equity transaction.  No gain 
or loss is recognized in net earnings or comprehensive income as a result of changes in the non-controlling 
interest, unless a change results in the loss of control by the Company.


Two subsidiaries of the Company have non-controlling Class A equity investors (“Class A Interest") which are 
entitled to allocations of earnings, tax attributes and cash flows in accordance with contractual agreements. 
The partnership agreements have liquidation rights and priorities that are different from the underlying 
percentage ownership interests. In those situations, simply applying the percentage ownership interest to 
U.S. GAAP net income in order to determine earnings or losses would not accurately represent the income 
allocation and cash flow distributions that will ultimately be received by the investors. As such, the share of 
earnings attributable to the non-controlling interest holders in these entities is calculated using the 
Hypothetical Liquidation at Book Value (“HLBV”) method of accounting (note 15).


The HLBV method uses a balance sheet approach. A calculation is prepared at each balance sheet date to 
determine the amount that Class A Equity Investors would receive if an equity investment entity were to 
liquidate all of its assets and distribute that cash to the investors based on the contractually defined liquidation 
priorities. The difference between the calculated liquidation distribution amounts at the beginning and the 
end of the reporting period is the Class A Equity Investors' share of the earnings or losses from the investment 
for that period. Due to certain mandatory liquidation provisions of the partnership agreements, this could 
result in a net loss to the Company's consolidated results in periods in which the Class A Equity Investors 
report net income. The calculation varies in its complexity depending on the capital structure and the tax 
considerations of the investments.


Equity instruments subject to redemption upon the occurrence of uncertain events not solely within the 
Company's control are classified as temporary equity and presented as redeemable non-controlling interests 
on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company records temporary equity at issuance based on cash 
received less any transaction costs. As needed, the Company reevaluates the classification of its redeemable 
instruments, as well as the probability of redemption. If the redemption amount is probable or currently 
redeemable, the Company records the instruments at their redemption value. Increases or decreases in the 
carrying amount of a redeemable instrument are recorded within deficit. When the redemption feature lapses 
or other events cause the classification of an equity instrument as temporary equity to be no longer required, 
the existing carrying amount of the equity instrument is reclassified to permanent equity at the date of the 
event that caused the reclassification.


(s) Recognition of revenue


The Company accounts for revenue in accordance with ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers, which was adopted on January 1, 2018 using the modified retrospective method, applied to 
contracts that are not completed at the date of initial application. The adoption of the new standard resulted 
in an adjustment of $2,488 or $1,860 net of taxes to increase opening retained earnings for previously 
deferred revenue related to the Empire fiber business.


Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to the Company’s 
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange 
for those goods or services.


 







Liberty Utilities Co.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements


December 31, 2019 and 2018


(in thousands of U.S. dollars)


1. Significant accounting policies (continued)


(s) Recognition of revenue (continued)


 The Company's revenues consist primarily of the distribution of electricity, natural gas, and water. 


Revenue related to utility electricity and natural gas sales and distribution is recognized over time as the 
energy is delivered. At the end of each month, the electricity and natural gas delivered to the customers from 
the date of their last meter read to the end of the month is estimated and the corresponding unbilled revenue 
is recorded. These estimates of unbilled revenue and sales are based on the ratio of billable days versus 
unbilled days, amount of electricity or natural gas procured during that month, historical customer class 
usage patterns, weather, line loss, unaccounted-for gas and current tariffs. Unbilled receivables are typically 
billed within the next month. Some customers elect to pay their bill on an equal monthly plan. As a result, 
in some months cash is received in advance of the delivery of electricity. Deferred revenue is recorded for 
that amount. The amount of revenue recognized in the period from the balance of deferred revenue is not 
significant. 


Water reclamation and distribution revenue are recognized over time when water is processed or delivered 
to customers. At the end of each month, the water delivered and wastewater collected from the customers 
from the date of their last meter read to the end of the month are estimated and the corresponding unbilled 
revenue is recorded. These estimates of unbilled revenue are based on the ratio of billable days versus 
unbilled days, amount of water procured and collected during that month, historical customer class usage 
patterns and current tariffs. Unbilled receivables are typically billed within the next month.


On occasion, a utility is permitted to implement new rates that have not been formally approved by the 
regulatory commission, which are subject to refund. The Company recognizes revenue based on the interim 
rate and if needed, establishes a reserve for amounts that could be refunded based on experience for the 
jurisdiction in which the rates were implemented.


Revenue for certain of the Company’s regulated utilities is subject to alternative revenue programs approved 
by their respective regulators. Under these programs, the Company charges approved annual delivery revenue 
on a systematic basis over the fiscal year. As a result, the difference between delivery revenue calculated 
based on metered consumption and approved delivery revenue is disclosed as alternative revenue in and is 
recorded as a regulatory asset or liability to reflect future recovery or refund, respectively, from customers 
(note 7). The amount subsequently billed to customers is recorded as a recovery of the regulatory asset. The 
Company's revenues include $(4,405) (2018 - $7,425) related to alternative revenue programs for the year 
ended December 31, 2019 that do not represent revenues recognized from contracts with customers.


(t) Income taxes


Liberty Utilities Co. participates in the filing of a consolidated federal income tax return with its parent, 
Liberty Utilities (America) Co. and subsidiaries.   The income tax provision of Liberty Utilities Co. reflected 
in these financial statements is based on a separate return method.


Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those 
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  A valuation allowance is recorded against 
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is considered more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will not 
be realized.  The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in earnings 
in the period that includes the date of enactment (note 13). Investment tax credits are deferred and amortized 
as a reduction to income tax expense over the estimated useful lives of the properties.  Other income tax 
credits are treated as a reduction to income tax expense in the year the credit arises.


The organizational structure of LUC and its subsidiaries is complex and the related tax interpretations, 
regulations and legislation in the tax jurisdictions in which they operate are continually changing. As a result, 
there can be tax matters that have uncertain tax positions. The Company recognizes the effect of income tax 
positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being sustained.  Recognized income tax positions 
are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized.  Changes in recognition 
or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)


(u) Financial instruments and derivatives


Accounts receivable and notes receivable are measured at amortized cost.  Long-term debt is measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method, adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums 
or discounts.


Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets are accounted for as part 
of the asset’s carrying value at inception.  Transaction costs related to a recognized debt liability are presented 
in the consolidated balance sheets as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, 
consistent with debt discounts and premiums. Costs of arranging the Company’s revolving credit facilities 
and intercompany loans are recorded in other assets.  Deferred financing costs, premiums and discounts on 
long-term debt are amortized using the effective interest method while deferred financing costs relating to 
the revolving credit facilities and intercompany loans are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the respective instrument.


The Company uses derivative financial instruments as one method to manage exposures to fluctuations in 
interest rates and commodity prices.  LUC recognizes all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities 
on the consolidated balance sheets at their respective fair values.  The fair value recognized on derivative 
instruments executed with the same counterparty under a master netting arrangement are presented on a 
gross basis on the consolidated balance sheets.  The amounts that could net settle are not significant.


For derivatives designated in a cash flow hedge relationship, the change in fair value is recognized in OCI.  
The amount recognized in AOCI is reclassified to earnings in the same period as the hedged cash flows affect 
earnings under the same line item in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as the hedged 
item. If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, 
terminated, exercised, or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.  
The amount remaining in AOCI is transferred to the consolidated statements of comprehensive income in 
the same period that the hedged item affects earnings.  If the forecasted transaction is no longer expected 
to occur, then the balance in AOCI is recognized immediately in earnings.


Calpeco Electric System, Granite State Electric System and Empire District Electric Company, wholly owned 
subsidiaries of the Company, enter into power purchase contracts for load serving requirements.  These 
contracts meet the exemption for normal purchase and normal sales and as such, are not required to be 
recorded at fair value as derivatives and are accounted for on an accrual basis.  Counterparties are evaluated 
on an ongoing basis for non-performance risk to ensure it does not impact the conclusion with respect to 
this exemption.


(v) Fair value measurements


The Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the 
use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible.  The Company determines fair value based on assumptions 
that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability in the principal or most advantageous 
market.  When considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements, the following fair 
value hierarchy distinguishes between observable and unobservable inputs, which are categorized in one of 
the following levels:


• Level 1 Inputs: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
accessible to the reporting entity at the measurement date.


• Level 2 Inputs: Other than quoted prices included in level 1, inputs that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.


• Level 3 Inputs: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability used to measure fair value to the extent 
that observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is little, if 
any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date.


(w) Commitments and contingencies


Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from environmental remediation, claims, assessments, litigation, 
fines, penalties and other sources are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the 
amount can be reasonably estimated.  Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are expensed 
as incurred.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)


(x) Use of estimates


The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of these consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the 
year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. During the years presented, management has made 
a number of estimates and valuation assumptions, including the useful lives and recoverability of plants, 
intangible assets and goodwill; the recoverability of notes receivable and long-term investments; the 
recoverability of deferred tax assets; assessments of unbilled revenue; pension and OPEB obligations; timing 
effect of regulated assets and liabilities; contingencies related to environmental matters; the fair value of 
assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination; and, the fair value of financial instruments. These 
estimates and valuation assumptions are based on present conditions and management’s planned course of 
action, as well as assumptions about future business and economic conditions. Should the underlying 
valuation assumptions and estimates change, the recorded amounts could change by a material amount.


2.  Recently issued accounting pronouncements 


(a) Recently adopted accounting pronouncements 


The FASB issued ASU 2018-15, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other Internal- Use Software (Subtopic 350-40): 
Customer's Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement that is a Service 
Contract to provide additional guidance to address diversity in practice. This update aligns the requirements 
for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract with the 
requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software. The 
Company adopted this update prospectively as at the beginning of the third quarter. There were no significant 
impacts to the consolidated financial statements as a result of the adoption of this update.


The FASB issued ASU 2018-16, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Inclusion of the Secured Overnight 
Financing Rate ("SOFR") Overnight Index Swap ("OIS") Rate as a Benchmark Interest Rate for Hedge 
Accounting Purposes to identify a suitable alternative to the U.S. dollar LIBOR that is more firmly based on 
actual transactions in a robust market. This update permits the use of the OIS rate based on SOFR as a U.S. 
benchmark interest rate for hedge accounting purposes. This update was adopted concurrently with ASU 
2017-12. The Company will follow the pronouncements prospectively for qualifying new or redesignated 
hedging relationships.


The FASB issued ASU 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Targeted Improvements to Accounting 
for Hedging Activities, to improve the financial reporting of hedging relationships to better portray the 
economic results of an entity's risk management activities in its financial statements. The update also makes 
certain targeted improvements to simplify the application of the hedge accounting guidance. The FASB also 
issued ASU 2019-04 that contains further codification improvements to ASU 2017-12. The adoption of 
these updates in 2019 had no impact on Company's consolidated financial statements. The Company has 
also made certain amendments and simplifications to hedge effectiveness testing procedures and 
documentation to be followed prospectively where applicable in accordance with the pronouncements in the 
update.
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2.  Recently issued accounting pronouncements (continued)


(a) Recently adopted accounting pronouncements (continued)


The FASB issued ASC 842 to increase transparency and comparability among organizations utilizing leases. 
This ASU requires lessees to recognize the assets and liabilities arising from all leases on the balance sheet, 
but the effect of leases in the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of cash flows is largely 
unchanged. The FASB also issued subsequent amendments to ASC 842 that provide further practical 
expedients as well as codification clarifications and improvements. The adoption of this new lease standard 
in 2019 using a modified retrospective approach resulted in an adjustment of $3,836 to right-of-use assets 
and operating lease liabilities included in other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets, with 
no restatement of the comparative period.


The Company implemented new processes and procedures for the identification, analysis, and measurement 
of new lease contracts. A new software solution was implemented to assist with contract management, 
information tracking, and measurement as it relates to the new standard. The Company elected the following 
practical expedients as part of its adoption:


1. "Package of three" practical expedient that permits the Company not to reassess the scope, 
classification and initial direct costs of its expired and existing leases;


2. Land easements practical expedient that permits the Company not to reassess the accounting for 
land easements previously not accounted for under ASC 840; and


3. Hindsight practical expedient that allows the Company to use hindsight in determining the lease 
term for existing contracts.


In addition, the Company made an accounting policy election to not recognize a lease liability or right-of-
use asset on its consolidated balance sheets for short-term leases (lease term less than 12 months). 


(b) Recently issued accounting guidance not yet adopted 


The FASB issued ASU 2020-01, Investments - Equity Securities (Topic 321), Investments — Equity Method 
and Joint Ventures (Topic 323), and Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Clarifying the Interactions between 
Topic 321, Topic 323, and Topic 815 to reduce diversity in practice and increase comparability of accounting 
for certain transactions. The amendments clarify when to consider observable price changes for the 
measurement of certain equity securities without a readily determinable fair value. They also clarify the scope 
of forward contracts and purchased options on these certain securities. The amendments in this update are 
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within those years. Early 
adoption is permitted, including early adoption in any interim period. The Company currently does not have 
any transactions that would be within the scope of this update but will continue to assess the impact of this 
update in the future.


The FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes
as part of its initiative to reduce complexity in the accounting standards. The amendments remove certain 
exceptions to the general principles in Topic 740 and improve consistent application for other areas of Topic 
740 by clarifying and amending existing guidance. The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal 
years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within those years. Early adoption is permitted, 
but all amendments must be early adopted simultaneously. The Company is currently assessing the impact 
of this update.


The FASB issued ASU 2018-18, Collaborative Arrangements (Topic 808): Clarifying the Interaction between 
Topic 808 and Topic 606 to reduce diversity in practice on how entities account for transactions on the basis 
of different views of the economics of a collaborative arrangement. The update clarifies that the arrangement 
should be accounted for under ASC 606 when a participant is a customer in the context of a unit of account, 
adds unit of account guidance in ASC 808 that is consistent with ASC 606, and precludes the recognition 
of revenue from a collaborative arrangement with ASC 606 revenue if the participant is not directly related 
to sales to third parties. The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 
15, 2019, and interim periods within those years. The Company does not expect a significant impact on its 
consolidated financial statements as a result of the adoption of this update.
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2.  Recently issued accounting pronouncements (continued)


(b) Recently issued accounting guidance not yet adopted (continued)


The FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Business Combinations (Topic 350): Intangibles — Goodwill and Other 
(Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. The update is intended to simplify how an entity 
is required to test goodwill for impairment by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. Step 2 
measures a goodwill impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of a reporting unit’s goodwill with 
the carrying amount of that goodwill. The standard is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning 
after December 15, 2019. The Company does not expect a significant impact on its consolidated financial 
statements as a result of the adoption of this update.


The FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit 
Losses on Financial Instruments to provide financial statement users with more decision-useful information 
about the expected credit losses on financial instruments and other commitments to extend credit held by 
a reporting entity at each reporting date. To achieve this objective, the amendments in this update replace 
the incurred loss impairment methodology in current U.S. GAAP with a methodology that reflects expected 
credit losses. The standard is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 
2019. The FASB issued codification improvements to ASC Topic 326 in ASU 2018-19 to provide guidance 
on scoping of operating lease assets and further specific clarifications and corrections in ASU 2019-04 and 
ASU 2019-11. The FASB issued further updates to Topic 326 in ASU 2019-05 and ASU 2020-02 to provide 
transition relief that allows companies to irrevocably elect the fair value option for certain instruments held 
at amortized cost, and to provide certain updates to the SEC paragraphs of the topic. The Company is finalizing 
its analysis on the impact of adoption of this standard on its consolidated financial statements. The Company 
does not expect a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements as a result of the adoption of 
this update.


3. Business acquisitions


(a) Acquisition of the St. Lawrence Gas Company, Inc.


The Company completed the acquisition of St. Lawrence Gas Company, Inc. ("St. Lawrence Gas") on   
November 1, 2019. St. Lawrence Gas is a regulated utility that provides natural gas in northern New York 
State. The total purchase price for the transaction is $61,820, and subject to certain closing adjustments.


The costs related to the acquisition have been expensed through the consolidated statements of 
comprehensive income.


The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at 
the acquisition date:


Working capital $ 3,403


Property, plant and equipment 49,936


Goodwill 20,259


Regulatory assets 3,562


Deferred income tax assets, net 1,614


Other assets 6,418


Regulatory liabilities (10,412)


Pension and post-employment benefits (12,376)


Other liabilities (584)


Total net assets acquired $ 61,820


Cash and cash equivalents 1,225


Total net assets acquired, net of cash and cash equivalents $ 60,595
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3. Business acquisitions (continued)


(a) Acquisition of the St. Lawrence Gas Company, Inc. (continued)


The determination of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed is based upon management's 
preliminary estimates and certain assumptions. Due to the timing of the acquisition, the Company has not 
finalized the fair value measurement. The Company will continue to review information and perform further 
analysis prior to finalizing the fair value of the consideration paid and the fair value of assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed.


Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the aggregate fair value of net assets acquired. 
The contributing factors to the amount recorded as goodwill include future growth, potential synergies, and 
cost savings in the delivery of certain shared administrative and other services.


Property, plant and equipment, exclusive of computer software, are amortized in accordance with regulatory 
requirements over the estimated useful life of the assets using the straight-line method. The weighted average 
useful life of St. Lawrence Gas' assets is 49 years.


(b) Acquisition of Turquoise Solar Facility


Liberty Utilities (Turquoise Holdings) LLC (“Turquoise Holdings”) is owned by Liberty Utilities (Calpeco 
Electric) LLC ("Calpeco Electric System"). The 10 MWac solar generating facility is located in Washoe County, 
Nevada ("Turquoise Solar Facility"). On May 24, 2019, a tax equity agreement was executed. The Class A 
partnership units are owned by a third-party tax equity investor who funded $1,403 on the execution date 
and $2,000 on December 31, 2019. The final instalments are expected to be made in 2020. With its 
interest, the tax equity investor will receive the majority of the tax attributes associated with the Turquoise 
Solar Facility. Because the Class A tax equity investor has the right to withdraw from Turquoise Holdings and 
require the Company to redeem its remaining interests for cash, the Company accounts for this interest as 
“Redeemable non-controlling interest” outside of permanent equity on the consolidated balance sheets (note 
15). Redemption is not considered probable as of December 31, 2019.


On December 31, 2019, as the Turquoise Solar Facility was placed in service, Turquoise Holdings obtained 
control of the property, plant and equipment for a total purchase price of $20,830.


(c) Agreement to acquire Mid-West Wind Development Project


The Empire District Electric Company ("Empire Electric System"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, 
entered into purchase agreements to acquire, once completed, three wind farms generating up to 600 MW 
of wind energy located in Barton, Dade, Lawrence, and Jasper Counties in Missouri ("Missouri Wind Projects") 
and in Neosho County, Kansas ("Kansas Wind Project"). The agreements contain development milestones 
and termination provisions that primarily apply prior to the commencement of construction. Total costs are 
estimated at $1,100,000 and the acquisitions are anticipated to close following completion of the respective 
projects. These assets, net of third-party tax equity investment, are expected to be included in the rate base 
of the Empire Electric System.


In November 2019, LUC acquired an interest in the entities that own the two Missouri Wind Projects and, 
in partnership with a third-party developer, will continue development and construction of such projects until 
they are acquired by the Empire Electric System following completion. As part of the investment in the joint 
ventures, LUC entered into guarantee agreements for obligations under letters of credit, engineering and 
procurement contracts, and turbine supply agreements for the two projects. The Company accounts for its 
interest in these two projects using the equity method (note 8(a)).


In November 2019, a tax equity agreement was executed for the Kansas Wind Project. The Class A partnership 
units will be owned by two third-party tax equity investors who have committed to fund on a future date. 
With their interests, the tax equity investors will receive the majority of the tax attributes associated with the 
Kansas Wind Project. Initial tax equity funding is expected to be received in Q1 2021.
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3. Business acquisitions (continued)


(d) Agreement to acquire New York American Water


On November 20, 2019, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire American Water's regulated 
operations in the State of New York ("New York American Water"). New York American Water is a regulated 
water and wastewater utility serving customers across seven counties in southeastern New York. The total 
purchase price for the transaction is approximately $608,000, subject to certain closing adjustments. The 
transaction is expected to close sometime in 2021 and remains subject to regulatory approval and other 
typical closing conditions.


(e) Approval to acquire the Perris Water Distribution System


On August 10, 2017, the Company agreed to acquire two water distribution systems serving customers from 
the City of Perris, California. The anticipated purchase price of $11,500 is expected to be established as 
rate base during the regulatory approval process.  The City of Perris residents voted to approve the sale on 
November 7, 2017. The Liberty Utilities Group filed an application requesting approval for the acquisition 
of the assets of the water utilities with the California Public Utility Commission on May 8, 2018. Final 
approval is expected in 2020.


4. Accounts receivable


Accounts receivable as of December 31, 2019 include unbilled revenue of $79,880 (2018 - $79,742).  Accounts 
receivable as of December 31, 2019 are presented net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,850 (2018 - $5,281).


5.          Utility plant


Utility plant consists of the following: 


  2019 2018


Land $ 58,711 $ 58,205
Utility plant 4,957,211 4,525,593
Construction work in progress 274,624 195,361
Contributions in aid of construction (CIAC) (134,825) (127,843)


5,155,721 4,651,316
Accumulated depreciation (620,586) (495,681)
Accumulated depreciation, CIAC 35,641 32,638


(584,945) (463,043)
Net utility plant $ 4,570,776 $ 4,188,273


In addition to all distribution assets, utility plant includes the following:


• Cost of $1,450,946 (2018 - $1,386,960) and accumulated depreciation of $97,080 (2018 - $69,960) related 
to regulated generation and transmission assets. 


• Cost of $514,709 (2018 - $503,664) and accumulated depreciation of $31,349 (2018 - $21,697) related to 
commonly owned facilities (note 1(k)). Total expenditures incurred on these facilities for the year ended December 
31, 2019 were $69,210 (2018 - $75,427). 


• Cost of $3,076 (2018 - $3,076) and accumulated depreciation of $1,003 (2018 - $669) related to assets under 
finance lease. 


• Expansion costs of $1,000 on which the Company does not currently earn a return.


For the year ended December 31, 2019, contributions received in aid of construction of $7,137 (2018 - $6,057) 
have been credited to the cost of the assets.
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5.          Utility plant (continued)


AFUDC capitalized to the cost of the assets in 2019 and 2018 are as follows:


2019 2018


AFUDC capitalized on plant:
Allowance for borrowed funds $ 2,745 $ 1,684
Allowance for equity funds 4,896 2,728


Total $ 7,641 $ 4,412


6.          Intangible assets and goodwill


Intangible assets consist of the following: 


  2019 2018


Customer relationships - cost $ 26,751 $ 26,751


Accumulated amortization (10,094) (9,468)


Net book value $ 16,657 $ 17,283


Estimated amortization expense for intangible assets for each of the next five years is $629.


Changes in goodwill are as follows:  


Balance, December 31, 2018 and 2017 $ 954,282


Business acquisitions (note 3(a)) 20,259


Balance, December 31, 2019 $ 974,541


7. Regulatory matters


The Company’s regulated utility operating companies are subject to regulation by the public utility commissions of 
the states in which they operate.  The respective public utility commissions have jurisdiction with respect to rate, 
service, accounting policies, issuance of securities, acquisitions and other matters.  These utilities operate under 
cost-of-service regulation as administered by these state authorities.  The Company’s regulated utility operating 
companies are accounted for under the principles of ASC 980.  Under ASC 980, regulatory assets and liabilities that 
would not be recorded under U.S. GAAP for non-regulated entities are recorded to the extent that they represent 
probable future revenue or expenses associated with certain charges or credits that will be recovered from or refunded 
to customers through the rate-setting process.


During 2019, the Company completed the acquisition of St. Lawrence Gas, operating public utility engaged in the 
distribution of natural gas in the state of New York. St. Lawrence Gas is subject to regulation by the New York Public 
Service Commission. In general, the commission sets rates at a level that allows the utility to collect total revenues 
or revenue requirements equal to the cost of providing service, plus an appropriate return on invested capital.
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7. Regulatory matters (continued)


At any given time, the Company can have several regulatory proceedings underway. The financial effects of these 
proceedings are reflected in the consolidated financial statements based on regulatory approval obtained to the extent 
that there is a financial impact during the applicable reporting period. The following regulatory proceedings were 
recently completed:


Utility State
Regulatory


proceeding type
Annual revenue


increase Effective date


Peach State Gas System Georgia Georgia Rate
Adjustment
Mechanism


$2,367 February 1, 2019


New England Natural Gas
System


Massachusetts Gas System
Enhancement
Plan


$2,413 May 1, 2019


Empire Electric System Kansas General Rate
Review


$2,449 August 1, 2019


Empire Electric System Oklahoma General Rate
Review


$1,400 October 1, 2019


CalPeco Electric System California Catastrophic
Events
Memorandum
Account


$3,525 January 1, 2020
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7. Regulatory matters (continued)


Regulatory assets and liabilities consist of the following:


2019 2018


Regulatory assets


Environmental remediation (a) $ 82,300 $ 82,295
Pension and post-employment benefits (b) 143,292 135,580
Income taxes (c) 38,397 34,822
Debt premium (d) 42,150 48,847
Fuel and commodity cost adjustments (e) 20,400 26,310
Rate adjustment mechanism (f) 35,601 37,202
Clean Energy and other customer programs (g) 26,369 24,095
Deferred capitalized costs (h) 13,629 13,986
Asset retirement obligation (i) 23,841 21,048
Long-term maintenance contract (j) 13,264 8,283
Rate review costs (k) 6,472 5,813
Other 19,084 21,463


Total regulatory assets $ 464,799 $ 459,744
Less: current regulatory assets (44,184) (59,037)
Non-current regulatory assets $ 420,615 $ 400,707


Regulatory liabilities


Income taxes (c) $ 321,960 323,384
Cost of removal (l) 196,423 193,564
Rate-base offset (m) 8,719 10,900
Fuel and commodity costs adjustments (e) 16,645 21,352
Rate adjustment mechanism (f) 7,932 4,210
Deferred capitalized costs - fuel related (h) 7,097 7,258
Pension and post-employment benefits (b) 22,256 11,791
Other 13,871 15,754


Total regulatory liabilities $ 594,903 $ 588,213
Less: current regulatory liabilities (39,018) (39,005)
Non-current regulatory liabilities $ 555,885 $ 549,208


(a) Environmental remediation 


Actual expenditures incurred for the clean-up of certain former gas manufacturing facilities (note 11(b)) are 
recovered through rates over a period of 7 years and are subject to an annual cap.
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7. Regulatory matters (continued)


(b) Pension and post-employment benefits


As part of certain business acquisitions, the regulators authorized a regulatory asset or liability being set up 
for the amounts of pension and post-employment benefits that have not yet been recognized in net periodic 
cost and were presented as AOCI prior to the acquisition. The balance is recovered through rates over the 
future service years of the employees at the time the regulatory asset was set up (an average of 10 years) or 
consistent with the treatment of OCI under ASC 712, Compensation Non-retirement Post-employment 
Benefits and ASC 715, Compensation Retirement Benefits before the transfer to regulatory asset occurred. 
The annual movements in AOCI for Empire Electric and Gas systems' and St. Lawrence Gas system's pension 
and OPEB plans (note 10(a)) are also reclassified to regulatory accounts since it is probable the unfunded 
amount of these plans will be afforded rate recovery.  Finally, the regulators have also approved tracking 
accounts for a number of the utilities. The amounts recorded in these accounts occur when actual expenses 
differ from those adopted and recovery or refunds are expected to occur in future periods.


(c) Income taxes


The income taxes regulatory assets and liabilities represent income taxes recoverable through future revenues 
required to fund flow-through deferred income tax liabilities and amounts owed to customers for deferred 
taxes collected at a higher rate than the current statutory rates. 


On June 1, 2018, the State of Missouri enacted legislation that, effective for tax years beginning on or after                  
January 1, 2020, reduces the corporate income tax rate from 6.25% to 4%, among other legislative changes.  
A reduction of regulatory asset and an increase to regulatory liability were recorded for excess deferred taxes 
probable of being refunded to customers of $15,586.


(d) Debt premium


Debt premium on acquired debt is recovered as a component of the weighted average cost of debt.


(e) Fuel and commodity cost adjustments


The revenue from the utilities includes a component which is designed to recover the cost of electricity and 
natural gas through rates charged to customers.  To the extent actual costs of power or natural gas purchased 
differ from power or natural gas costs recoverable through current rates, that difference is deferred and 
recorded as a regulatory asset or liability on the consolidated balance sheets. These differences are reflected 
in adjustments to rates and recorded as an adjustment to cost of electricity and natural gas in future periods, 
subject to regulatory review.  Derivatives are often utilized to manage the price risk associated with natural 
gas purchasing activities in accordance with the expectations of state regulators.  The gains and losses 
associated with these derivatives (note 18 (b)(i)) are recoverable through the commodity costs adjustment.


(f) Rate adjustment mechanism


Revenue for Calpeco Electric System, Park Water System, Peach State Gas System, New England Gas System, 
Midstates Natural Gas system, and EnergyNorth Natural Gas System is subject to a revenue decoupling 
mechanism approved by their respective regulator; which requires charging approved annual delivery revenue 
on a systematic basis over the fiscal year. As a result, the difference between delivery revenue calculated 
based on metered consumption and approved delivery revenue is recorded as a regulatory asset or liability 
to reflect future recovery or refund, respectively, from customers. In addition, retroactive rate adjustments 
for services rendered but to be collected over a period not exceeding 24 months are accrued upon approval 
of the Final Order. 


(g) Clean Energy and other customer programs


The regulatory asset for Clean Energy and customer programs includes initiatives related to solar rebate 
applications processed and resulting rebate-related costs. The amount also includes other energy efficiency 
programs. 


(h) Deferred capitalized costs


Deferred capitalized costs reflect deferred construction costs and fuel-related costs of specific generating 
facilities of Empire Electric System. These amounts are being recovered over the life of the plants.
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7. Regulatory matters (continued)


(i) Asset retirement


Asset retirement obligations are recorded for legally required removal costs of utility plant. The costs of 
retirement of assets as well as the on-going liability accretion and asset depreciation expense are expected 
to be recovered through rates.


(j) Long-term maintenance contract


To the extent actual costs of long-term maintenance incurred for one of Empire Electric System's power 
plants differ from the costs recoverable through current rates, that difference is deferred and recorded as a 
regulatory asset or liability on the consolidated balance sheets.


(k) Rate review costs


The costs to file, prosecute and defend rate review applications are referred to as rate review costs.  These 
costs are capitalized and amortized over the period of rate recovery granted by the regulator.


(l) Cost of removal


Rates charged to customers cover for costs that are expected to be incurred in the future to retire the utility 
plant. A regulatory liability tracks the amounts that have been collected from customers net of costs incurred 
to date.


(m) Rate-base offset


The regulators imposed a rate-base offset that will reduce the revenue requirement at future rate proceedings. 
The rate-base offset declines on a straight-line basis over a period of 10-16 years. 


As recovery of regulatory assets is subject to regulatory approval, if there were any changes in regulatory positions 
that indicate recovery is not probable, the related cost would be charged to earnings in the period of such determination.  
The Company generally earns carrying charges on the regulatory balances related to commodity cost adjustment, 
retroactive rate adjustments and rate review costs.


8. Long-term investments


Long-term investments consist of the following:


  2019 2018


Equity method investees (a) $ 25,426 $ 967


Development loans receivable from equity-method investees (a) 614 —


Notes receivable 846 2,279


Total long-term investments $ 26,886 $ 3,246


Less: current portion — (1,407)


$ 26,886 $ 1,839


(a) Equity-method investees: 


The Company sold its interest in the Northeast Energy Center LLC Joint Venture in 2018.


Empire Electric System entered into purchase agreements to acquire, once completed, three wind farms 
generating up to 600 MW of wind energy for a total costs estimated at $1,100,000 (note 3(c)).


In November 2019, Liberty Utilities acquired an interest in the entities that own the Missouri Wind Projects 
and, in partnership with a third-party developer, will continue development and construction of such projects 
until they are acquired by the Empire Electric System following completion.  The joint ventures are considered 
VIEs due to the level of equity at risk. The Company is not considered the primary beneficiary of the joint 
ventures and as such, accounts for its interest in these two projects using the equity method. As part of the 
investment in the joint ventures, the Company committed to loan and credit support facilities through 
guarantee agreements for obligations under letters of credit, engineering and procurement contracts, and 
turbine supply agreements for the two projects.
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8. Long-term investments (continued)


(a) Equity-method investee: (continued) 


Summarized combined information for LUC's investments in these VIEs is as follows:


Total assets $ 97,096


Total liabilities 52,065


Net assets 45,031


LUC's ownership interest in the entities 15,086


Difference between investment carrying amount and underlying equity in net assets (a) 9,305


LUC's investment carrying amount for the entities $ 24,391


(a) The difference between the investment carrying amount and the underlying equity in net assets relates 
primarily to development fees and the fair value of guarantees provided by the Company.


LUC's maximum exposure in regards to VIEs is as follows:


Carrying amount $ 24,391


Development loans receivable 614


Commitments on behalf of VIEs 415,518


$ 440,523


9. Long-term debt and long-term debt from related parties


Long-term debt consists of the following:


Borrowing type


Weighted
average
coupon Maturity Par value 2019 2018


Senior unsecured revolving
credit facility (a) — 2023 N/A $ — $ 97,000


Commercial paper (b) — 2020 N/A 218,000 6,000


Senior unsecured utility notes 6.00% 2020-2035 $ 217,000 233,686 240,161


Senior secured utility bonds 4.75% 2020-2044 $ 662,500 672,353 676,714


$ 1,124,039 $ 1,019,875


Less: current portion (223,000) (11,000)


$ 901,039 $ 1,008,875


Long-term debt from related parties consists of the following:


Borrowing type


Weighted
average
coupon Maturity Par value 2019 2018


Senior unsecured notes from
related parties (c) 4.39% 2020-2047 $ 1,001,127 1,001,127 976,750
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9. Long-term debt and long-term debt from related parties (continued)


Long-term debt issued at a subsidiary level (project notes or utility bonds) relating to a specific operating facility is 
generally collateralized by the respective facility with no other recourse to the Company. Long-term debt issued at a 
subsidiary level whether or not collateralized generally has certain financial covenants, which must be maintained 
on a quarterly basis.  Non-compliance with the covenants could restrict cash distributions/dividends to the Company 
from the specific facilities.


Short-term obligations of $217,940 that are expected to be refinanced using the long-term credit facilities are 
presented as long-term debt.


Recent financing activities:


(a) Senior unsecured revolving credit facility


On February 23, 2018, the Company increased commitments under its credit facility to $500,000 and 
extended the maturity to February 23, 2023.  Concurrent with this amendment, the Company closed Empire's 
credit facility. Liberty Utilities' credit facility will now be used as a backstop for Empire's commercial paper 
program and as a source of liquidity for Empire.


(b) Commercial paper


On July 1, 2019, the Company established a new $500,000 commercial paper program. The amounts drawn 
at any time under this program may have maturities up to 270 days from the date of issuance and are 
expected to be replaced with new commercial paper upon maturity. This program is backstopped by the 
Liberty Utilities' bank credit facility.


(c) Senior unsecured notes from related party


In December 2019, the Company issued two intercompany notes of $16,440 and $19,687 to a related 
party. The notes mature in 2020 and 2022, respectively and have interest rate of 2.11% and 2.26%, 
respectively. On December 26, 2018, the Company issued a $11,750 unsecured promissory note to a related 
party. This note bore interest at the same rate as the Company's senior unsecured revolving credit facility 
and matured on December 24, 2019.


As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had $965,000 in intercompany notes payable to related 
parties in connection with the issuance of $965,000 in notes to third party investors by Liberty Utilities 
Finance GP1 ("GP1"). The Company provided an unconditional guarantee for these notes issued by GP1 to 
third party investors, and under the terms of the issuances is required to comply with financial covenants. 
The notes issued by GP1 are of maturities ranging between 2020 and 2047 with interest rates ranging from 
3.23% to 4.89%.


The Company has also provided unconditional guarantees of $260,000 for additional notes issued by GP1 
to third party investors, and under the terms of the GP1 notes, is required to comply with financial covenants. 
The notes issued by GP1 mature in 2020 and 2045 with interest rates of 2.78% and 4.13%.


(d) Senior unsecured credit facilities


The Company provides an unconditional guarantee for borrowing made by a parent entity under a $135,000 
term credit facility. As at December 31, 2019, the credit facility has $75,000 outstanding. On June 27, 
2019, the maturity of the credit facility was extended to July 6, 2020.


10. Pension and other post-employment benefits


The Company provides defined contribution pension plans to its employees.  The Company's contributions for 2019 
were $6,978 (2018 - $6,831).


In conjunction with the utility acquisitions, the Company assumes defined benefit pension, supplemental executive 
retirement plans and OPEB plans for qualifying employees in the related acquired businesses. The legacy plans of the 
electricity and gas utilities are non-contributory defined pension plans covering substantially all employees of the 
acquired businesses. Benefits are based on each employee’s years of service and compensation. The Company also 
provides a defined benefit cash balance pension plan covering substantially all its new employees and current employees 
at its water utilities, under which employees are credited with a percentage of base pay plus a prescribed interest rate 
credit. The OPEB plans provide health care and life insurance coverage to eligible retired employees. Eligibility is 
based on age and length of service requirements and, in most cases, retirees must cover a portion of the cost of their 
coverage.
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10. Pension and other post-employment benefits (continued)


(a) Net pension and OPEB obligation


The following table sets forth the projected benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets, and funded status 
of the Company’s plans as of December 31:


  Pension benefits OPEB


  2019 2018 2019 2018


Change in projected benefit obligation


Projected benefit obligation, beginning
of year $ 483,253 $ 530,681 $ 168,325 $ 176,975


Projected benefit obligation assumed
from business combination 20,196 — 11,646 —


Modifications to plans (7,705) — — —


Service cost 12,224 15,028 4,587 5,791


Interest cost 20,222 19,078 7,575 6,727


Actuarial loss (gain) 65,443 (29,975) 33,605 (14,800)


Contributions from retirees — — 1,913 1,878


Gain on curtailment — (1,875) — —


Medicare Part D — — 414 42


Benefits paid (30,244) (49,684) (8,848) (8,288)


Projected benefit obligation, end of year $ 563,389 $ 483,253 $ 219,217 $ 168,325


Change in plan assets


Fair value of plan assets, beginning of
year 339,100 403,943 115,542 130,487


Plan assets acquired in business
combination 8,004 — 15,688 —


Actual return (loss) on plan assets 68,025 (36,987) 25,464 (10,603)


Employer contributions 22,190 21,825 8,628 2,026


Medicare Part D subsidy receipts — — 414 42


Benefits paid (30,244) (49,681) (6,863) (6,410)


Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 407,075 $ 339,100 $ 158,873 $ 115,542


Unfunded status $ (156,314) $ (144,153) $ (60,344) $ (52,783)


Amounts recognized in the consolidated
balance sheets consist of:


Non-current assets — — 8,438 3,161


Current liabilities (1,417) (532) (1,168) (965)


Non-current liabilities (154,921) (143,621) (67,613) (54,979)


Net amount recognized $ (156,338) $ (144,153) $ (60,343) $ (52,783)


The accumulated benefit obligation for the pension plans was $524,957 and $438,025 as of December 31, 
2019 and 2018, respectively.
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10. Pension and other post-employment benefits (continued)


(a) Net pension and OPEB obligation (continued)


Information for pension and OPEB plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:


Pension OPEB


2019 2018 2019 2018


Accumulated benefit obligation $ 502,843 $ 438,025 $ 202,422 $ 163,375


Fair value of plan assets $ 407,074 $ 339,099 $ 133,711 $ 107,430


Information for pension and OPEB plans with a projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:


Pension OPEB


2019 2018 2019 2018


Projected benefit obligation $ 563,411 $ 475,339 $ 202,422 $ 163,375


Fair value of plan assets $ 407,074 $ 339,099 $ 133,711 $ 107,430


In 2019, the Company merged the Empire pension plan into the Company's cash balance plan and defined 
benefit plans, and changed benefits for certain Empire participants. The total impact of these plan amendments 
resulted in a decrease to the projected benefit obligation of $7,798, which is recorded as a prior service credit 
in OCI.


In 2018, the Company permanently froze the accrual of benefits for participants in the Park Water System's 
existing pension plan. Subsequent to the effective date, these employees began accruing benefits under the 
Company’s cash balance plan. The plan amendments resulted in a decrease to the projected benefit obligation 
of $1,875, which is recorded as a prior service credit in OCI.


(b) Pension and post-employment actuarial changes


Change in AOCI (before tax) Pension OPEB


 
Actuarial


losses (gains)
Past service


gains
Actuarial


losses (gains)
Past service


gains


Balance, December 31, 2017 $ 24,769 $ (5,074) $ (3,450) $ (470)
Additions to AOCI 35,275 (1,796) 3,522 —


      Amortization in current period (1,074) 649 272 262
Loss on plan settlements (2,547) — — —
Reclassification to regulatory
accounts (note 7(b)) (22,166) — (14,232) —


Balance, December 31, 2018 $ 34,257 $ (6,221) $ (13,888) $ (208)
AOCI from business combination — (285) — —
Additions to AOCI 17,905 (7,705) 14,871 —
Amortization in current period (3,530) 784 409 208
Reclassification to regulatory
accounts (note 7(b)) (10,122) 7,247 (10,538) —


Balance, December 31, 2019 $ 38,510 $ (6,180) $ (9,146) $ —


The movements in AOCI for Empire's and St. Lawrence Gas' pension and OPEB plans are reclassified to 
regulatory accounts since it is probable the unfunded amount of these plans will be afforded rate recovery 
(note 7(b)).
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10. Pension and other post-employment benefits (continued)


(c) Assumptions


Weighted average assumptions used to determine net benefit obligation for 2019 and 2018 were as 
follows:


  Pension benefits OPEB


  2019 2018 2019 2018


Discount rate 3.19% 4.19% 3.29% 4.26%
Interest crediting rate (for cash balance plans) 4.48% 4.43% N/A N/A


Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% N/A N/A
Health care cost trend rate


Before age 65 6.125% 6.25%
Age 65 and after 6.125% 6.25%
Assumed ultimate medical inflation rate 4.75% 4.75%
Year in which ultimate rate is reached 2031 2031


The mortality assumption for December 31, 2019 was updated to Pri-2012 mortality table and to the projected 
generationally scale MP-2019, adjusted to reflect the ultimate improvement rates in the 2019 Social Security 
Administration intermediate assumptions.


In selecting an assumed discount rate, the Company uses a modeling process that involves selecting a portfolio 
of high-quality corporate debt issuances (AA- or better) whose cash flows (via coupons or maturities) match 
the timing and amount of the Company’s expected future benefit payments.  The Company considers the 
results of this modeling process, as well as overall rates of return on high-quality corporate bonds and changes 
in such rates over time, to determine its assumed discount rate.  


The rate of return assumptions are based on projected long-term market returns for the various asset classes 
in which the plans are invested, weighted by the target asset allocations.


Weighted average assumptions used to determine net benefit cost for 2019 and 2018 were as follows: 


  Pension benefits OPEB


  2019 2018 2019 2018


Discount rate 4.19% 3.57% 4.25% 3.60%
Expected return on assets 6.87% 7.13% 6.51% 6.52%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 3.00% N/A N/A
Health care cost trend rate


Before age 65 6.25% 6.25%


Age 65 and after 6.25% 6.25%


Assumed ultimate medical inflation rate 4.75% 4.75%


Year in which ultimate rate is reached 2031 2024
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10. Pension and other post-employment benefits (continued)


(d) Benefit costs


The following table lists the components of net benefit cost for the pension and OPEB plans. Service cost 
recorded as part of operating expenses and non-service costs are recorded as part of other losses in the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.  The employee benefit costs related to businesses acquired 
are recorded in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income from the date of acquisition.


  Pension benefits OPEB


  2019 2018 2019 2018


Service cost $ 12,224 $ 15,028 $ 4,587 $ 5,791
Non-service costs


Interest cost 20,222 18,717 7,575 6,727
Expected return on plan assets (20,485) (27,820) (6,725) (7,451)
Amortization of net actuarial loss
(gain) 3,530 1,119 (409) (272)


Amortization of prior service credits (784) (649) (209) (262)
Amortization of regulatory assets/
liabilities 12,078 10,899 2,535 3,982


$ 14,561 $ 2,266 $ 2,767 $ 2,724


Net benefit cost $ 26,785 $ 17,294 $ 7,354 $ 8,515


(e) Plan assets


The Company’s investment strategy for its pension and post-employment plan assets is to maintain a diversified 
portfolio of assets with the primary goal of meeting long-term cash requirements as they become due.


The Company's target asset allocation is as follows:


Asset class Target (%) Range (%)


Equity securities 68% 50%-78%
Debt securities 32% 22%-50%


100%


The fair values of investments as of December 31, 2019 by asset category, are as follows:  


Asset class Level 1 Percentage


Equity securities $ 414,985 73%
Debt securities 141,229 25%
Other 9,732 2%


565,946 100%


As of December 31, 2019, the funds do not hold any material investments in its parent company, APUC. 


(f) Cash flows


The Company expects to contribute $24,140 to its pension plans and $5,736 to its post-employment benefit 
plans in 2020.


The expected benefit payments over the next ten years are as follows:


2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025-2029


Pension plan $ 34,461 $ 34,385 $ 35,383 $ 36,897 $ 37,848 $ 192,648
OPEB 7,469 7,867 8,379 8,903 9,361 52,864
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11. Other long-term liabilities


Other long-term liabilities consist of the following:


2019 2018


Advances in aid of construction (a) $ 60,828 $ 63,703


Environmental remediation obligation (b) 58,061 55,621


Asset retirement obligations (c) 25,743 20,005


Customer deposits (d) 31,502 29,974


Unamortized investment tax credits (e) 18,234 17,491


Hook up fees (f) 9,610 5,709


Lease liabilities (note 1(p)) 5,463 2,975


Other 12,594 14,427


222,035 209,905


Less: current portion (47,755) (38,580)


$ 174,280 $ 171,325


(a)  Advances in aid of construction 


 The Company has various agreements with real estate development companies (the “developers”) conducting 
business within the Company’s utility service territories, whereby funds are advanced to the Company by the 
developers to assist with funding some or all of the costs of the development. 


In many instances, developer advances can be subject to refund but the refund is non-interest bearing.  
Refunds of developer advances are made over periods generally ranging from 5 to 40 years.  Advances not 
refunded within the prescribed period are usually not required to be repaid.  After the prescribed period has 
lapsed, any remaining unpaid balance is transferred to contributions in aid of construction and recorded as 
an offsetting amount to the cost of utility plant.  In 2019, $5,465 (2018 - $3,687) was transferred from 
advances in aid of construction to contributions in aid of construction.


(b) Environmental remediation obligation  


 A number of the Company's utilities were named as potentially responsible parties for remediation of several 
sites at which hazardous waste is alleged to have been disposed as a result of historical operations of 
Manufactured Gas Plants (“MGP”) and related facilities.  The Company is currently investigating and 
remediating, as necessary, those MGP and related sites in accordance with plans submitted to the agency 
with authority for each of the respective sites.


The Company estimates the remaining undiscounted, unescalated cost of these MGP-related environmental 
cleanup activities will be $58,484 (2018 - $59,181) which at discount rates ranging from 1.7% to 2.1% 
represents the recorded accrual of $58,061 as of December 31, 2019 (2018 - $55,621). Approximately 
$36,382 is expected to be incurred over the next four years with the balance of cash flows to be incurred 
over the following 31 years.
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11. Other long-term liabilities (continued)


(b) Environmental remediation obligation (continued)


Changes in the environmental remediation obligation are as follows: 


2019 2018


Opening balance $ 55,621 $ 54,322
  Remediation activities (1,678) (2,163)
  Accretion 1,065 1,479
  Changes in cash flow estimates 981 4,051
  Revision in assumptions 2,072 (2,068)
Closing balance $ 58,061 $ 55,621


By rate orders, the Regulator provided for the recovery of actual expenditures for site investigation and 
remediation over a period of 7 years and accordingly, as of December 31, 2019, the Company has reflected 
a regulatory asset of $82,300 (2018 - $82,295) for the MGP and related sites (note 7(a)).


(c)   Asset retirement obligations


  Asset retirement obligations mainly relate to legal requirements to (i) cut (disconnect from the distribution 
system), purge (cleanup of natural gas and Polychlorinated Biphenyls "PCB" contaminants) and cap gas 
mains within the gas distribution and transmission system when mains are retired in place, or sections of 
gas main are removed from the pipeline system; (ii) clean and remove storage tanks containing waste oil and 
other waste contaminants; (iii) remove certain river water intake structures and equipment; (iv) dispose of 
coal combustion residuals and PCB contaminants and (v) remove asbestos upon major renovation or 
demolition of structures and facilities.  


Changes in the asset retirement obligations are as follows: 


2019 2018


Opening balance $ 20,005 $ 22,255
  Retirement activities (443) (5,130)
  Accretion 675 653
  Change in cash flow estimates 5,506 2,227
Closing balance $ 25,743 $ 20,005


As the cost of retirement of utility assets, liability accretion and asset depreciation expense are expected to 
be recovered through rates, a corresponding regulatory asset is recorded (note 7(j)).


(d)  Customer deposits


 Customer deposits result from the Company’s obligation by state regulators to collect a deposit from customers 
of its facilities under certain circumstances when services are connected.  The deposits are refundable as 
allowed under the facilities’ regulatory agreement.


(e) Unamortized investment tax credits


The unamortized investment tax credits were assumed in connection with the acquisition of Empire. The 
investment tax credits are associated with an investment made in a generating station. The credits are being 
amortized over the life of the generating station.


(f) Hook-up fees


 Hook-up fees represent deposits on future line extension developments.
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12. Shareholder’s capital


Common shares


The Company is authorized to issue 50,000 common shares.  The holders of the common shares are entitled to 
dividends, if, as and when declared by the Board of Directors to one vote per share at meetings of the holders of 
common shares; and upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company to receive pro rata the remaining 
property and assets of the Company; subject to the rights of any shares having priority over the common shares, of 
which none are authorized or outstanding.


Number of common shares outstanding is as follows:


2019 2018


Common shares, beginning of year 13,705 13,620
Shares issued during the year 301 85


Common shares, end of year 14,006 13,705


During 2019, the Company issued 301 shares (2018 - 85) for proceeds of $153,957 (2018 - $31,500).


13. Income taxes


The provision for income taxes in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income represents an effective tax 
rate different than the enacted statutory rate of 26.42% (2018 - 26.34%). The differences are as follows:


2019 2018


Expected income tax expense at enacted statutory rate $ 50,129 $ 63,521


Increase (decrease) resulting from:


Allowance for equity funds used during construction (1,301) (719)


Non-deductible acquisition costs 1,054 404


Non-controlling interests share of income 1,525 854


Base erosion anti-abuse tax — 3,366


Adjustments relating to prior periods (1,040) 3,685


Tax reform and related deferred tax adjustments — (18,363)


Amortization of excess accumulated deferred income taxes (2,238) —


Other (1,427) 524


Income tax expense $ 46,702 $ 53,272


In 2017, the Tax Cuts and Job Act ("Tax Act") implemented significant changes to U.S. tax legislation, including a  
reduction in the U.S. federal corporate income tax from 35% to 21%, effective January 1, 2018. The Company's 
U.S. entities were required to remeasure their deferred tax assets and liabilities at the new corporate income tax rate 
as at the date of enactment. In 2018, an adjustment related to the implementation of U.S. Tax Reform resulted in 
a non-cash accounting benefit of $18,363, which was recorded in the Company's 2018 consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income.
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13. Income taxes (continued)


The tax effect of temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
and their respective tax bases that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 are presented below:


2019 2018


Deferred tax assets:


Environmental obligation $ 14,834 $ 14,122


Acquisition-related costs — 1,420


Regulatory accounts 160,200 161,560


Financial derivatives — 482


Pension and OPEB 54,113 48,586


Other 25,347 26,429


Total deferred tax assets $ 254,494 $ 252,599


Deferred tax liabilities:


Utility plant (604,280) (569,473)


Intangible assets — (4,681)


Outside basis in partnership (10,725) (3,693)


Regulatory accounts (118,743) (113,660)


Total deferred tax liabilities (733,748) (691,507)


Net deferred tax liabilities $ (479,254) $ (438,908)


Deferred income taxes are classified in the consolidated financial statements as:


2019 2018


Non-current deferred income taxes $ (479,254) $ (438,908)


As of December 31, 2019, the Company had no non-capital loss carry forwards available to reduce future year’s 
taxable income.


The valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $nil.  In the judgment 
of management, it is more likely than not that the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable 
income to realize the deferred tax assets.  In assessing the realizability of future tax assets, management 
considers the projected taxable income, scheduled reversal of future tax liabilities, and tax planning strategies 
in making this assessment.


14. Related party transactions


Due to related parties represents advances for current operating costs and reimbursement for management and 
accounting services provided by entities related to LUC as well as other third party costs incurred by entities related 
to LUC on behalf of the Company.  These amounts do not bear interest and have no fixed repayment terms.  Total 
amounts allocated for 2019 and 2018 were $44,697 and $37,295, respectively. 


As at December 31, 2019, the amounts payable to related parties total $1,722 (2018 - $5,117).


The Company entered into certain financing transactions with related parties (note 9).
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15. Redeemable non-controlling interest


Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries that are redeemable upon the occurrence of uncertain events not solely within 
the Company's control are classified as temporary equity on the consolidated balance sheets.  The redeemable non-
controlling interests in subsidiaries balance is determined using the hypothetical liquidation at book value method 
subsequent to initial recognition, however, if the redemption amount is probable or currently redeemable, the Company 
records the instruments at their redemption value. Redemption is not considered probable as of December 31, 2019.


Changes to redeemable non-controlling interest are as follows:


2019 2018


Opening balance $ 28,814 $ 32,252


Contributions from redeemable non-controlling interests 3,403 —


Net income attributable to redeemable non-controlling interests (5,770) (3,241)


Dividends and distributions declared to redeemable non-controlling interests (1,399) (197)


Closing balance $ 25,048 $ 28,814


During 2019, contributions from Class A tax equity partnership investors of $3,403 were received for the Turquoise 
Solar Facility (note 3(b)).


16. Commitments and contingencies


(a) Contingencies


LUC and its subsidiaries are involved in various claims and litigation arising out of the ordinary course and 
conduct of its business.  Although such matters cannot be predicted with certainty, management does not 
consider LUC’s exposure to such litigation to be material to these consolidated financial statements.  Accruals 
for any contingencies related to these items are recorded in the consolidated financial statements at the 
time it is concluded that its occurrence is probable and the related liability is estimable.


Condemnation Expropriation Proceedings


Liberty Utilities (Apple Valley Ranchos Water) Corp. is the subject of a condemnation lawsuit filed by the 
town of Apple Valley. A court will determine the necessity of the taking by Apple Valley and, if established,  
a jury will determine the fair market value of the assets being condemned.  Resolution of the condemnation 
proceedings is expected to take two to three years. Any taking by government entities would legally require 
fair compensation to be paid, however, there is no assurance that the value received as a result of the 
condemnation will be sufficient to recover the Company's net book value of the utility assets taken.
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16. Commitments and contingencies (continued)


(b)  Commitments


In addition to the commitments related to the proposed acquisitions and development projects disclosed in 
notes 3 and 8, the following significant commitments exist as of December 31, 2019.


The Company has outstanding purchase commitments for power purchases, gas supply and service 
agreements, service agreements and capital project commitments. 


Detailed below are estimates of future commitments under these arrangements: 


Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Thereafter Total


Power
purchase (i) $ 30,672 $ 11,422 $ 11,338 $ 11,566 $ 11,796 $ 179,412 $ 256,206


Gas supply
and service
agreements (ii) 79,392 60,699 49,217 46,406 41,538 135,926 413,178


Service
agreements 10,228 1,955 1,717 1,811 1,776 — 17,487


Capital
projects 84,572 114,806 — — — — 199,378


Total $ 204,864 $ 188,882 $ 62,272 $ 59,783 $ 55,110 $ 315,338 $ 886,249


(i)  Power purchase: LUC’s electric distribution facilities have commitments to purchase physical 
quantities of power for load serving requirements. The commitment amounts included in the table 
above are based on market prices as of December 31, 2019.  However, the effects of purchased 
power unit cost adjustments are mitigated through a purchased power rate-adjustment mechanism.


(ii) Gas supply and service agreements: LUC’s gas distribution facilities have commitments to purchase 
physical quantities of natural gas under contracts for purposes of load serving requirements.


17. Non-cash operating items


The changes in non-cash operating items consist of the following:


2019 2018


Accounts receivable $ 10,172 $ (4,497)
Related party balances (3,998) (1,618)
Fuel and natural gas in storage 13,756 1,351
Supplies and consumable inventory (6,292) (6,894)
Income taxes receivable (42) 961
Prepaid expenses (399) (1,937)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (15,526) 7,469
Asset retirement and environmental obligation (2,494) (7,329)
Current income tax liability (6,036) 346
Net regulatory assets and liabilities (8,163) (8,890)


$ (19,022) $ (21,038)
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December 31, 2019 and 2018


(in thousands of U.S. dollars)


18. Financial instruments


(a) Fair value of financial instruments


December 31, 2019
Carrying
amount


Fair
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Notes receivable $ 1,460 $ 1,581 $ — $ 1,581 $ —


Derivative instrument -
Commodity contract 16 16 — 16 —


Total financial assets $ 1,476 $ 1,597 $ — $ 1,597 $ —


Long-term debt $ 1,124,039 $ 1,219,868 $ — $ 1,219,868 $ —


Long-term debt from related
parties 1,001,127 1,112,021 — 1,112,021 —


Derivative instrument -
Commodity contract 2,072 2,072 — 2,072 —


Total financial liabilities $ 2,127,238 $ 2,333,961 $ — $ 2,333,961 $ —


December 31, 2018
Carrying
amount


Fair
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Notes receivable $ 2,279 $ 2,350 $ — $ 2,350 $ —


Derivative instrument -
Commodity contract 101 101 — 101 —


Total financial assets $ 2,380 $ 2,451 $ — $ 2,451 $ —


Long-term debt $ 1,019,875 $ 1,012,808 $ — $1,012,808 $ —


Long-term debt from related
parties 976,750 981,751 — 981,751 —


Derivative instrument -
Commodity contract 1,114 1,114 — 1,114 —


Total financial liabilities $ 1,997,739 $ 1,995,673 $ — $1,995,673 $ —


The Company has determined that the carrying value of its short-term financial assets and liabilities 
approximates fair value as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 due to the short-term maturity of these 
instruments.


The fair value of notes receivable (level 2) has been determined using a discounted cash flow method, using 
estimated current market rates for similar instruments adjusted for estimated credit risk as determined by 
management. 


The Company's level 2 fair value of long-term debt at fixed interest rates has been determined using a 
discounted cash flow method and current interest rates.


The Company’s level 2 fair value derivative instruments primarily consist of swaps, options and forward 
physical derivatives where market data for pricing inputs are observable. Level 2 pricing inputs are obtained 
from various market indices and utilize discounting based on quoted interest rate curves which are 
observable in the marketplace.


Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, using available information about the financial 
instrument.  These estimates are subjective in nature and often cannot be determined with precision.
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18. Financial instruments (continued)


(b) Derivative instruments


Derivative instruments are recognized on the consolidated balance sheets as either assets or liabilities and 
measured at fair value at each reporting period.


(i) Commodity derivatives


The Company uses derivative financial instruments to reduce the cash flow variability associated with the 
purchase price for a portion of future natural gas purchases associated with its regulated gas and electric 
service territories.  The Company’s strategy is to minimize fluctuations in gas sale prices to regulated 
customers.


The following are commodity volumes, in dekatherms (“dths”) associated with the above derivative contracts:


  2019


Financial contracts: Swaps 2,134,739
        Options 150,000


                             Forward contracts 2,500,000
4,784,739


The accounting for these derivative instruments is subject to guidance for rate-regulated enterprises.  
Therefore, the fair value of these derivatives is recorded as current or long-term assets and liabilities, with 
offsetting positions recorded as regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.  
Most of the gains or losses on the settlement of these contracts are included in the calculation of the fuel 
and commodity cost adjustments (note 7 (e)).  As a result, the changes in fair value of these natural gas 
derivative contracts and their offsetting adjustment to regulatory assets and liabilities had no earnings impact.


The following table presents the impact of the change in the fair value of the Company’s natural gas derivative 
contracts had on the consolidated balance sheets:


2019 2018


Regulatory assets:
Swap contracts $ 28 $ 66
Option contracts $ 38 $ —


      Forward contracts $ 1,830 $ —
Regulatory liabilities:


Swap contracts $ 743 $ 218
Option contracts $ — $ 134


  Forward contracts $ — $ 1,259
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18. Financial instruments (continued)


(b) Derivative instruments (continued)


 (ii) Cash flow hedges


In 2017, the Company settled forward contracts to purchase $250,000 10-year U.S. Treasury bills at an 
interest rate of 1.8395% and $250,000 30-year U.S. Treasury bills at an interest rate of 2.5539% designated 
as hedges to the interest rate risk related to $479,000 of senior unsecured notes. The effective portion of 
the hedge was recorded in OCI at the time and is reclassified to interest expense as the underlying hedged 
transactions are incurred.


The following table summarizes OCI attributable to derivative financial instruments designated as a cash 
flow hedge, net of tax: 


2019 2018


Effective portion of cash flow hedge $ — $ —
Gain reclassified from AOCI (1,555) (1,561)
OCI attributable to shareholders of LUC $ (1,555) $ (1,561)


The Company expects $1,555 of gains net of taxes currently in AOCI to be reclassified into interest expense 
within the next twelve months, as the underlying hedged transactions settle.


(ii) Other derivatives


For derivatives that are not designated as hedges, the changes in the fair value are immediately recognized 
in earnings. The effects on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of derivative financial 
instruments not designated as hedges for the year ended December 31, 2019 is $nil (2018 - $nil).


(c) Risk management


In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to financial risks that potentially impact its 
operating results.  The Company employs risk management strategies with a view of mitigating these risks 
to the extent possible on a cost effective basis.  Derivative financial instruments are used to manage certain 
exposures to fluctuations in interest rates and commodity prices. The Company does not enter into derivative 
financial agreements for speculative purposes.


This note provides disclosures relating to the nature and extent of the Company’s exposure to risks arising 
from financial instruments, including credit risk and liquidity risk, and how the Company manages those 
risks.  


Credit risk


Credit risk is the risk of an unexpected loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations. The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of 
credit risk are primarily cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes receivable and derivative 
instruments. The Company limits its exposure to credit risk with respect to cash equivalents by ensuring 
available cash is deposited with its senior lenders all of which have a credit rating of A or better.


Credit risk related to the accounts receivable balance of $200,594 is spread over thousands of customers. 
The Company has processes in place to monitor and evaluate this risk on an ongoing basis including 
background credit checks and security deposits from new customers. In addition, the state regulators allow 
for a reasonable bad debt expense to be incorporated in the rates and therefore recovered from rate payers.
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18. Financial instruments (continued)


(c) Risk management (continued)


Credit risk (continued)


As of December 31, 2019, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for these financial instruments 
was as follows: 


  2019


Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 24,126
Accounts receivable 205,444
Allowance for doubtful accounts (4,850)
Notes receivable 1,460


$ 226,180


In addition, the Company continuously monitors the creditworthiness of the counterparties to its interest 
rate derivative contracts prior to settlement, and assesses each counterparty’s ability to perform on the 
transactions set forth in the contracts.  The counterparties consist primarily of financial institutions.  This 
concentration of counterparties may impact the Company's overall exposure to credit risk, either positively 
or negatively, in that the counterparties may be similarly affected by changes in economic, regulatory or 
other conditions.


  Liquidity risk


Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.  
The Company's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, to the extent possible, that it will always 
have sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities when due. As of December 31, 2019, in addition to cash on hand 
of $24,126 the Company had $233,791 available to be drawn on its senior debt facilities.  Each of the 
Company’s revolving credit facilities contain covenants which may limit amounts available to be drawn.


The Company's liabilities mature as follows:


Due less than
1 year


Due 2-3
years


Due 4-5
years


Due after 5
years Total


Long-term debt $ 399,500 $ — $ 5,000 $ 693,000 $ 1,097,500


Long-term debt from related
parties 41,440 214,687 160,000 585,000 1,001,127


Advances in aid of construction 1,165 — — 59,663 60,828


Interest on long-term debt 
obligations 91,209 157,151 132,952 731,487 1,112,799


Purchase obligations 277,621 — — — 277,621


Environmental obligation 14,970 20,850 1,128 21,536 58,484


Commodity contracts 1,162 910 — — 2,072


Other obligations 30,841 — — 54,689 85,530


Total obligations $ 857,908 $ 393,598 $ 299,080 $ 2,145,375 $ 3,695,961


19. Comparative figures


Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement presentation adopted 
in the current year.
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20.   Subsequent events


The ongoing outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus (“COVID-19”) has caused significant volatility and weakness 
in the global economy. During February and March 2020, the Company received force majeure notices from wind 
turbine suppliers and contractors of potential disruptions and delays resulting from COVID-19 in relation to ongoing 
wind generation development and construction projects. At this time, it is not possible to reliably estimate the impact 
on each project and the Company’s financial results.


The Company has evaluated other subsequent events from the balance sheet date through April 3, 2020 the date 
at which the financial statements were available to be issued.
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From: Mark Timpe
To: Nana Hamilton
Subject: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
Date: Monday, August 17, 2020 5:52:00 PM
Attachments: EDE Q2 2020 financial statements.pdf

Nana,
I hope you and yours are doing well.  Attached please find the Q2 financial statements for
Empire.  Since we were unable to have the mid-year visit in NY around the EEI Treasurer’s
meeting as we had previously planned, we need to find some time to give you and the team
an update on Empire.  In the near future, I’ll start work on a presentation which can be
discussed during the call and we can discuss timing for the visit.

Best Regards,

Mark

mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com



LIBERTY UTILITIES
The Empire District Electric Company


Consolidated Balance Sheets


FERC BASIS


June 30, 2020 December 31, 2019
ASSETS
   Plant and Property, at Original Cost:
      Electric 2,806,300,361$       3,014,614,205$        
      Natural Gas 101,471,687            98,631,587              
      Water 28,398                     14,973,733              
      Non-Regulated 50,504,324              48,548,469              
      Construction Work in Progress 122,504,064            105,582,537            


3,080,808,835         3,282,350,531         


      Accumulated Depreciation 927,102,251            982,685,487            
2,153,706,584         2,299,665,044         


   Current Assets:
      Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,505,848                3,047,353                
      Restricted Cash 4,803,213                4,793,761                
      Accounts Receivable - Trade, Net of Allowance 37,236,805              39,067,530              
      Accrued Unbilled Revenues 23,068,812              27,736,151              
      Accounts Receivable - Other 25,804,141              27,992,878              
      Materials and Supplies 59,842,637              41,116,246              
      Electric Fuel Inventory 16,748,970              11,558,902              
      Natural Gas Inventory 1,259,125                2,469,225                
      Unrealized gain in fair value of derivative contracts 150                          16,100                     
      Regulatory Assets 16,877,919              11,097,876              
      Prepaid Expenses and Other 9,017,991                9,169,247                


196,165,610            178,065,270            
   Deferred Charges:
      Regulatory Assets 236,498,277            234,698,308            
      Goodwill 39,492,327              39,492,327              
      Other 185,426,039            850,607                   
                                                                                                           461,416,643            275,041,243            


               Total Assets 2,811,288,837$       2,752,771,556$        


CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
   Common Stock $1 Par Value and Common Stock Rights 43,993,363$            43,993,363$            
   Capital in Excess of Par Value 663,017,789 663,017,789
   Retained Earnings 236,227,589 210,348,764
               Total Common Stockholder's Equity 943,238,741 917,359,915


   Long-Term Debt:
      Obligations Under Capital Lease 1,928,573 2,126,453
      First Mortgage Bonds and Secured Debt 537,396,026 637,165,431
      Unsecured Debt 190,803,268 190,759,442
               Total Long-Term Debt 730,127,867 830,051,326


Total Long-Term Debt & Common Stockholder's Equity 1,673,366,608 1,747,411,241


   Current Liabilities:
      Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 154,955,737 139,808,909
      Short Term Debt 100,000,000 -                           
      Customer Deposits 17,160,230 17,225,552
      Interest Accrued 7,128,994 7,080,523
      Taxes Accrued 55,017,552 40,457,272
      Other Current Liabilities 486,031 1,258,342
      Unrealized loss in fair value of derivative contracts 265,225 554,795
      Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 396,435 387,366
      Regulatory Liabilities 4,020,720 10,552,073


339,430,923 217,324,832
   Noncurrent Liabilities and Deferred Credits:
      Regulatory Liabilities 351,040,651 345,933,188
      Deferred Income Taxes 281,144,722 276,415,776
      Unamortized Investment Tax Credits 17,313,108 17,417,301
      Unrealized loss in fair value of derivative contracts 170,000 774,500
      Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Obligations 111,001,431 111,117,557
      Other 37,821,394 36,377,163
                                                                                                           798,491,306 788,035,484


               Total Capitalization and Liabilities 2,811,288,837$       2,752,771,556$        


NOTE:  Due to machine rounding, this statement/schedule may not foot or tie to the dollar with other statements/schedules.







LIBERTY UTILITIES
The Empire District Electric Company


Consolidated Statement of Operations


FERC BASIS


Operating Revenues:
    Electric
    Natural Gas
    Water
    Non Regulated


Operating Revenue Deductions:
    Operating Expenses:
       Fuel and Purchased Power
       Cost of Natural Gas Sold and Transported
       Non Regulated - Other
       Regulated - Other
    Maintenance and Repairs
    Merger Related Expenses
    Depreciation and Amortization
    Other Taxes


Operating Income


Other Income and Deductions:
    Allowance for Equity Funds Used
      During Construction
    Interest Income
    Other Non-operating Income
    Other Non-operating Expense


Interest Charges:
    Other Long-Term Debt
    Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used
       During Construction
    Short Term Debt
    Other


Net Income Before Tax


    Provision for Income Taxes


Total Net Income


6 MONTHS 6 MONTHS
ENDED ENDED Percent
6-30-20 6-30-19 Difference Change


248,005,940$      285,610,094$      (37,604,155)$       -13.17%
19,124,872           22,987,599           (3,862,727)            -16.80%


991,083                1,031,871             (40,788)                 -3.95%
3,379,210             3,077,238             301,972                9.81%


271,501,105        312,706,802        (41,205,697)         -13.18%


58,205,882           73,413,885           (15,208,003)         -20.72%
7,351,534             10,250,636           (2,899,101)            -28.28%
1,925,051             1,413,821             511,230                36.16%


61,014,740           61,235,629           (220,890)               -0.36%
19,657,313           25,950,529           (6,293,217)            -24.25%


15,308                  71,931                  (56,623)                 -78.72%
46,609,197           44,512,297           2,096,900             4.71%
22,055,039           22,132,853           (77,815)                 -0.35%


216,834,063        238,981,581        (22,147,518)         -9.27%
54,667,042           73,725,221           (19,058,179)         -25.85%


1,572,244             666,222                906,022                135.99%
295,822                823,987                (528,166)               -64.10%


45,772                  15,011                  30,762                  204.93%
(4,398,908)            (3,160,344)            (1,238,564)            39.19%
(2,485,070)            (1,655,124)            (829,946)               50.14%


20,350,545           20,783,585           (433,040)               -2.08%


(917,027)               (756,615)               (160,412)               21.20%
272,708                69,083                  203,625                294.75%
703,856                732,274                (28,418)                 -3.88%


20,410,081           20,828,326           (418,245)               -2.01%
31,771,891           51,241,771           (19,469,880)         -38.00%


5,893,066             11,367,290           (5,474,224)            -48.16%


25,878,826$        39,874,481$        (13,995,655)$       -35.10%


NOTE:  Due to machine rounding, this statement/schedule may not foot or tie to the dollar with other statements/schedules.







                                              LIBERTY UTILITIES
                                              EMPIRE DISTRICT ELECTRIC COMPANY


                                                 CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS


SIX SIX
MONTHS ENDED MONTHS ENDED


2020 2019 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
   Net Income 25,878,826$        39,874,481$        


   Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Cash Flows:
      Depreciation and amortization 43,881,475          46,197,778          
      Pension and other post-employment benefit costs 7,198,271            6,129,010            
      Deferred income taxes - net 2,990,662            (281,949)              
      Allowance for equity funds used during construction (1,572,244)           (666,222)              
      Asbury retirement 4,931,210            -                       
      Other 369,816               -                       
      Non-Cash (gain)/loss on derivatives (75,198)                77,808                 


   Cash Flows Impacted by Changes in:
      Accounts receivable and accrued unbilled revenues 8,777,702            10,012,903          
      Fuel, materials and supplies (22,706,357)         1,609,164            
      Prepaid expenses, other current assets and deferred charges (2,708,866)           (5,348,342)           
      Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 44,840,151          (24,426,069)         
      Asset retirement obligations (593,615)              (155,277)              
      Interest, taxes accrued and customer deposits 14,543,429          26,193,629          
      Other liabilities and other deferred credits 5,410,959            (350,139)              


Total Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 131,166,221        98,866,775          


Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
   Capital expenditures - regulated (128,121,282)       (79,064,682)         
   Capital expenditures and other investments - non-regulated (4,383,481)           (1,102,345)           


Total Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (132,504,763)       (80,167,027)         


Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
   Net short-term (repayments) borrowings 100,000,000        (4,750,000)           
   Repayment of First Mortgage Bonds (100,000,000) -                       
   Dividends -                       (15,000,000)         
   Other (193,510) (209,772)


Total Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities (193,510)              (19,959,772)         


Net Increase in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash (1,532,052)           (1,260,024)           


Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash at Beginning of Period 7,841,114 8,004,839


Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash at End of Period 6,309,062$          6,744,815$          


June 30, 2020


NOTE: Due to machine rounding, this statement/schedule may not foot or tie, to the dollar, with other statements/schedules.
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From: Mark Timpe
To: "Hamilton, Nana"
Subject: RE: Liberty Utilities Co.
Date: Tuesday, April 7, 2020 7:17:00 PM

Nana,
The responses we’ve been giving to questions like this is that it’s really a little too early to
get a clear picture of the impact.  More to come for sure.

Regards,

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana [mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, April 7, 2020 3:18 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Liberty Utilities Co.

Thank you Mark.

How are you doing? Are you seeing any negative impacts to Empire of the current covid-19 fueled
economic downturn? We think the utility sector is generally resilient during financial crises but to
the extent that we enter into a prolonged recession there may be financial losses that utilities will
need to work with regulators to recover.

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 7, 2020 4:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Liberty Utilities Co.

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
Attached please find the 2019 audited financial statement for Liberty Utilities Co.

Hope all is well with you and yours.

Regards,

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance

mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com


purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------



From: Mark Timpe
To: "Hamilton, Nana"
Subject: RE: Moody"s Cyber Risk Issuer Survey
Date: Tuesday, March 17, 2020 11:26:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.jpg

Nana,
Thanks; I’ve reached out to Ryan for more information.

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana [mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, March 17, 2020 11:14 AM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Cc: Finnegan, Ryan <Ryan.Finnegan@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Moody's Cyber Risk Issuer Survey

Mark,
This data will be considered MNPI and will be protected in the same manner as we protect all the
other MNPI you provide us on Empire.
I don’t think there is a separate governing document for this cyber data specifically but please feel
free to reach out to your commercial contact (Ryan Finnegan - Ryan.Finnegan@moodys.com) for
information on what governs all the MNPI you provide us.

Regards,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Friday, March 13, 2020 5:13 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Moody's Cyber Risk Issuer Survey

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
A question was raised by our legal team about the expectation of confidentiality surrounding survey
responses.   Would any responses be subject to an existing confidentiality agreement and, if so, can
you provide us with a copy of the operative document be it a standalone confidentiality agreement
or the rating services agreement?

Many thanks.

Mark

mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
mailto:Ryan.Finnegan@moodys.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
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Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana [mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com] 
Sent: Friday, March 13, 2020 12:12 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Cc: MoodysCyberSurvey <MoodysCyberSurvey@moodys.com>
Subject: Moody's Cyber Risk Issuer Survey

Dear Mark,

Moody’s is devoting more time to understanding cyber risk because we see cyber risk increasing for
our issuers.  Moody’s would like to better understand issuers’ cyber readiness and how their
mitigating strategies affect resiliency. These insights will enable us to better differentiate issuers’
cyber readiness, in a consistent manner, across sectors and geographies. We think cyber risk is an
enterprise-wide risk that resides with executive management and the board of trustees or directors.

In order to help us frame cyber risk consistently across sectors and geographies, we request your
participation in a brief cyber survey. Attached is an excel file copy of the survey. Answering the
survey may require input from an issuer’s security, financial planning and legal teams. The majority
of the questions are answered through a drop-down menu, and we have a free-form text box for any
additional information you would like to share.

We kindly ask that you complete and return this survey within 4 to 8 weeks of receipt. Please copy
the email address: MoodysCyberSurvey@moodys.com on all correspondence related to the
survey, and please do not change the name of the file. If we receive an adequate number of
responses, we hope to publish anonymized and aggregated data from the collected surveys in Q4
2020.

We believe the survey is an important first step in better understanding our issuers’ cyber positions,
and we thank you for your attention to this matter. Should you have any questions about this email
or the cyber survey, please reach out to me, and we’ll be happy to address your questions or
concerns. We sincerely hope you will see the value in completing the cyber survey and look forward
to hearing back from you soon.
Kind regards.

Yours sincerely,
Nana

.................................................
Nana Hamilton
Power/Utilities Americas 
212.553.9440 tel
212.202.3868 fax

mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:MoodysCyberSurvey@moodys.com
mailto:MoodysCyberSurvey@moodys.com


nana.hamilton@moodys.com

Moody’s Investors Service
7 World Trade Center
250 Greenwich Street
New York, NY 10007 
www.moodys.com
.................................................

See the latest from Moody’s: moodys.com/coronavirus

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------

• 
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From: Mark Timpe
To: "Hamilton, Nana"
Bcc: Adam Curran
Subject: RE: Moody"s Cyber Risk Issuer Survey
Date: Friday, March 13, 2020 4:12:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.jpg

Nana,
A question was raised by our legal team about the expectation of confidentiality surrounding survey
responses.   Would any responses be subject to an existing confidentiality agreement and, if so, can
you provide us with a copy of the operative document be it a standalone confidentiality agreement
or the rating services agreement?

Many thanks.

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana [mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com] 
Sent: Friday, March 13, 2020 12:12 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Cc: MoodysCyberSurvey <MoodysCyberSurvey@moodys.com>
Subject: Moody's Cyber Risk Issuer Survey

Dear Mark,

Moody’s is devoting more time to understanding cyber risk because we see cyber risk increasing for
our issuers.  Moody’s would like to better understand issuers’ cyber readiness and how their
mitigating strategies affect resiliency. These insights will enable us to better differentiate issuers’
cyber readiness, in a consistent manner, across sectors and geographies. We think cyber risk is an
enterprise-wide risk that resides with executive management and the board of trustees or directors.

In order to help us frame cyber risk consistently across sectors and geographies, we request your
participation in a brief cyber survey. Attached is an excel file copy of the survey. Answering the
survey may require input from an issuer’s security, financial planning and legal teams. The majority
of the questions are answered through a drop-down menu, and we have a free-form text box for any
additional information you would like to share.

We kindly ask that you complete and return this survey within 4 to 8 weeks of receipt. Please copy
the email address: MoodysCyberSurvey@moodys.com on all correspondence related to the
survey, and please do not change the name of the file. If we receive an adequate number of
responses, we hope to publish anonymized and aggregated data from the collected surveys in Q4
2020.

We believe the survey is an important first step in better understanding our issuers’ cyber positions,
and we thank you for your attention to this matter. Should you have any questions about this email

mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
mailto:Adam.Curran@libertyutilities.com
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or the cyber survey, please reach out to me, and we’ll be happy to address your questions or
concerns. We sincerely hope you will see the value in completing the cyber survey and look forward
to hearing back from you soon.
Kind regards.

Yours sincerely,
Nana

.................................................
Nana Hamilton
Power/Utilities Americas 
212.553.9440 tel
212.202.3868 fax
nana.hamilton@moodys.com

Moody’s Investors Service
7 World Trade Center
250 Greenwich Street
New York, NY 10007 
www.moodys.com
.................................................

See the latest from Moody’s: moodys.com/coronavirus

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
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From: Mark Timpe
To: "Hamilton, Nana"
Subject: RE: Moody"s Webinar
Date: Thursday, April 16, 2020 2:57:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png
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Thank you.  Hope all is well with you and yours.

Regards,

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana [mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com] 
Sent: Thursday, April 16, 2020 3:32 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: Moody's Webinar

Hi Mark,
Hope all is well. I wanted to make you aware of a Moody’s webinar tomorrow at 10am ET to address
our current views on the impact of the coronavirus pandemic on the infrastructure sector which
includes utilities. If you or any of your team members would like to listen to the webinar, the event
registration can be found here:
https://events.moodys.io/webinars

Regards,
Nana

.................................................
Nana Hamilton
Power/Utilities Americas 
212.553.9440 tel
212.202.3868 fax
nana.hamilton@moodys.com

Moody’s Investors Service
7 World Trade Center
250 Greenwich Street
New York, NY 10007 
www.moodys.com
.................................................

See the latest from Moody’s: moodys.com/coronavirus
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-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance
purposes and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by
applicable law. The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto,
is confidential and may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this message in error and
that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message, or any attachment
thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error,
please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail and delete the message and all of its
attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free from viruses. You should,
however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto, for viruses. We take
no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be transferred via
this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------



From: Mark Timpe
To: Hamilton, Nana
Bcc: Craig Duff; Tisha Sanderson; Michael Mosindy
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
Date: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 4:35:00 PM

Nana,
That timing should work for us as well.  I’ll be in touch to schedule our call once we are
close to having our presentation/update put together.

Regards,

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 7:51 AM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric

Thank you Mark. An update in the near term, including how the pandemic has impacted Empire’s
load/earnings, and how the wind projects are progressing would be much appreciated. We have our
portfolio review process in early October so I will be reaching out to get an update sometime in
September either way. If you would like to have our annual update discussion before October, that
would work for me. Let me know what timing you were thinking.

Hope all is well,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 6:52 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
I hope you and yours are doing well.  Attached please find the Q2 financial statements for
Empire.  Since we were unable to have the mid-year visit in NY around the EEI Treasurer’s
meeting as we had previously planned, we need to find some time to give you and the team
an update on Empire.  In the near future, I’ll start work on a presentation which can be
discussed during the call and we can discuss timing for the visit.

Best Regards,

Mark

mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
mailto:Craig.Duff@libertyutilities.com
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Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
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From: Mark Timpe
To: Hamilton, Nana
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric
Date: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 7:48:00 AM
Attachments: 2020 Q1 - LU Co - Financial Statements.pdf

2020 Q2 - Liberty Utilities Co. - Financial Statements - Final.pdf

Nana,
Please see attached.

Regards,

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 7:23 AM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric

Hi Mark,
Could you also send me the 2020 Liberty Utilities quarterly filings?

Thanks,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 5:35 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
That timing should work for us as well.  I’ll be in touch to schedule our call once we are
close to having our presentation/update put together.

Regards,

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 7:51 AM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
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Unaudited Interim Consolidated Financial Statements of
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Liberty Utilities Co.
Unaudited Interim Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income


(thousands of U.S. dollars) Three months ended March 31,


2020 2019
Revenue


Electricity sales and distribution $ 180,051 $ 205,061
Gas sales and distribution 162,400 177,661
Water reclamation and distribution 27,839 26,786
Other 2,563 1,515


372,853 411,023


Expenses


Electricity purchased 57,233 69,598
Gas purchased 54,796 79,554
Water purchased 2,251 1,454
Operations and maintenance 94,330 92,557
Depreciation of utility plant 48,320 44,960
Other 1,994 3,086
Taxes other than income taxes 21,169 19,396


280,093 310,605


Operating income 92,760 100,418


Interest expense 11,274 11,109
Interest on related-party debt (note 7) 10,994 10,810
Other gains (508) (591)
Pension and post-employment non-service costs (note 8) 3,356 1,293
Acquisition-related costs 316 823


25,432 23,444


Earnings before income taxes 67,328 76,974


Income tax expense (note 11)


Current 12,132 17,165
Deferred 5,243 3,507


17,375 20,672


Net earnings 49,953 56,302
Net effect of non-controlling interests (1,719) (1,496)


Net earnings attributable to the shareholder of Liberty Utilities Co. $ 51,672 $ 57,798


Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Change in unrealized pension and other post-employment expense net of tax recovery of
$31 and $91 respectively (76) (254)


Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax recovery of $138 and $138
respectively (note 15 (b)(ii)) (389) (389)


(465) (643)


Comprehensive income $ 51,207 $ 57,155


See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Unaudited Interim Consolidated Balance Sheets


(thousands of U.S. dollars)
March 31,


2020
December 31,


2019


ASSETS


Utility plant, net 4,420,240 4,570,776


Intangible assets, net 16,489 16,657


Goodwill 974,421 974,541


Regulatory assets (note 5) 619,210 420,615


Long-term investments (note 6) 41,036 26,886


Restricted cash 19,566 18,338


Other assets 18,936 18,969


6,109,898 6,046,782


Current assets


Cash and cash equivalents 97,216 5,788


Fuel and natural gas in storage 19,740 30,804


Supplies and consumables inventory 66,189 58,552


Accounts receivable, net (note 4) 185,009 200,594


Regulatory assets (note 5) 52,255 44,184


Prepaid expenses 24,210 24,287


Other — 16


444,619 364,225


$ 6,554,517 $ 6,411,007







Liberty Utilities Co.
Unaudited Interim Consolidated Balance Sheets


(thousands of U.S dollars)
March 31,


2020
December 31,


2019


LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY


Shareholder's equity


Shareholder's capital (note 10) $ 2,367,347 $ 2,367,347


Retained earnings 124,156 85,781


Accumulated other comprehensive income 6,196 6,661


Total equity attributable to shareholder of Liberty Utilities Co. 2,497,699 2,459,789


Redeemable non-controlling interest 23,111 25,048


Long-term debt (note 7) 1,141,827 901,039


Long-term debt from related parties (note 7) 991,486 1,001,127


Deferred income taxes 485,086 479,254


Regulatory liabilities (note 5) 559,470 555,885


Other long-term liabilities (note 9) 183,610 174,280


Derivative instruments (note 15) 295 910


Pension and other post-employment benefits obligation 223,968 222,534


3,585,742 3,335,029
Current liabilities


Accounts payable 76,305 121,813


Accrued liabilities 116,582 154,086


Due to related parties (note 12) 8,707 1,722


Other long-term liabilities (note 9) 47,737 47,755


Regulatory liabilities (note 5) 36,101 39,018


Pension and other post-employment benefits 2,586 2,585


Derivative instruments (note 15) 697 1,162


Long-term debt (note 7) 159,250 223,000


447,965 591,141


Commitments and contingencies (note 13)


Subsequent events (notes 7 and 17)


$ 6,554,517 $ 6,411,007


See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Unaudited Interim Consolidated Statements of Equity
 


Liberty Utilities Co.


(thousands of U.S. dollars)
Shareholder's


capital
Retained
earnings


Accumulated
other


comprehensive
income


Non-
controlling
interests Total


Balance, December 31, 2018 $ 2,213,390 $ 45,706 $ 14,725 $ — $ 2,273,821


Net earnings (loss) — 148,805 — (5,770) 143,035


Issuance of common shares (note 10) 153,957 — — — 153,957


Redeemable non-controlling interest 
not included in equity — — — 5,770 5,770


Dividends paid — (108,730) — — (108,730)


Other comprehensive loss — — (8,064) — (8,064)


Balance, December 31, 2019 $ 2,367,347 $ 85,781 $ 6,661 $ — $ 2,459,789


Net earnings (loss) — 51,672 — (1,719) 49,953


Redeemable non-controlling interest
not included in equity — — — 1,719 1,719


Dividends paid — (13,297) — — (13,297)


Other comprehensive loss — — (465) — (465)


Balance, March 31, 2020 $ 2,367,347 $ 124,156 $ 6,196 $ — $ 2,497,699


See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Unaudited Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows


(thousands of U.S. dollars) Three months ended March 31,


2020 2019


Cash provided by (used in):


Operating activities


Net earnings $ 49,953 $ 56,302


Items not affecting cash:


Depreciation of utility plant 48,320 44,960


Deferred taxes 5,243 3,507


Cost of equity funds used for construction purposes (1,006) (462)


Pension and post-employment expense in excess of contributions 4,387 2,727


Others (725) (72)


Changes in non-cash operating items (note 14) (29,695) 2,132


76,477 109,094


Financing activities


Increase in long-term debt 326,105 72,002


Decrease in long-term debt (147,602) (57,001)


Dividends paid to parent (13,297) (4,700)


Distributions to non-controlling interests (415) (197)


Decrease in long-term debt from related parties (note 7) (9,641) —


Increase in other long-term liabilities 2,389 3,277


Decrease in other long-term liabilities (1,927) (2,408)


155,612 10,973


Investing activities


Additions to utility plant (124,909) (95,706)


Increase in long term investments (14,789) (34)


Decrease (increase) in other assets 145 (966)


Acquisition of operating entities (note 3) 120 (1,350)


(139,433) (98,056)


Increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 92,656 22,011


Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period 24,126 19,954


Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period $ 116,782 $ 41,965


Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 2020 2019


Cash paid during the period for interest expense $ 11,306 $ 12,056


Cash paid during the period for income taxes $ 15 $ —


Non-cash transactions: Utility plant in accruals $ 30,379 $ 16,069


See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Notes to the Unaudited Interim Consolidated Financial Statements


March 31, 2020 and 2019


(in thousands of U.S. dollars)


Liberty Utilities Co. (“Liberty Utilities”, “LUC”, or the “Company”) was formed on December 9, 2010.  The Company is an 
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Algonquin Power and Utilities Corp. ("APUC"). The Company operates rate-regulated 
utilities that provide distribution, generation, and transmission services to approximately 805,000 connections in the electric, 
natural gas, water distribution and wastewater sectors.


 1.  Significant accounting policies


(a) Basis of preparation


The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and notes have been prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”).


The significant accounting policies applied to these unaudited interim consolidated financial statements of 
LUC are consistent with those disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended December 31, 2019 except for adopted accounting policies described in note 2(a) and note 1(e).


(b) COVID-19 Pandemic


The ongoing outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus (“COVID-19”) has caused significant volatility and 
weakness in the global economy. The Company did not experience any material negative impacts from the 
pandemic on its operations in the three months ended March 31, 2020. Nevertheless, the Company’s 
business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations are subject to actual and potential future 
impacts resulting from COVID-19, the full extent of which is not currently known. Force majeure or similar 
notices were received from suppliers and/or contractors for the Company's renewable energy construction 
projects. These notices relate to, among other things, delayed deliveries of components due to overseas 
manufacturing shutdowns resulting from COVID-19. At this time, it is not possible to reliably estimate the 
full impact on each project and the Company’s financial results.


(c) Accounting for rate regulated operations


The utility operating companies owned by the Company are subject to rate regulation generally overseen by 
the public utility commission of the states in which they operate (the “Regulator”). The Regulator provides 
the final determination of the rates charged to customers. LUC’s utility operating companies are accounted 
for under the principles of U.S. Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") ASC Topic 980, Regulated 
Operations (“ASC 980”). Under ASC 980, regulatory assets and liabilities are recorded to the extent that 
they represent probable future revenue or expenses associated with certain charges or credits that will be 
recovered from or refunded to customers through the rate making process. Included in note 5, "Regulatory 
matters" are details of regulatory assets and liabilities, and their current regulatory treatment.


In the event the Company determines that its net regulatory assets are not probable of recovery, it would no 
longer apply the principles of the current accounting guidance for rate regulated enterprises and would be 
required to record an after-tax, non-cash charge or credit against earnings for any remaining regulatory assets 
or liabilities. The impact could be material to the Company’s reported financial condition and results of 
operations.


The electric, gas and water utilities’ accounts are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of 
Accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy


(d) Seasonality


LUC's operating results are subject to seasonal fluctuations that could materially impact quarter-to quarter 
operating results and, thus, one quarter's operating results are not necessarily indicative of a subsequent 
quarter's operating results. Where decoupling mechanisms exist, total volumetric revenue is prescribed by 
the Regulator and is not affected by usage. LUC's different electrical distribution utilities can experience 
higher or lower demand in the summer or winter depending on the specific regional weather and industry 
characteristics. During the winter period, natural gas distribution utilities experience higher demand than 
during the summer period. LUC’s water and wastewater utility assets’ revenues fluctuate depending on the 
demand for water, which is normally higher during drier and hotter months of the summer.
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 1.  Significant accounting policies (continued)


(e) Current expected credit losses


The Company adopted the U.S. Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Financial Instrument - Credit 
Losses Topic 326 ("ASC 326") in the first quarter of 2020 using a modified retrospective approach. The 
Company has trade accounts receivable and loans receivable from its equity method investees. New allowance 
policies were implemented for the Company's loans receivable. The impact to the Company's bad debt expense 
upon adoption was not significant.


2.  Recently issued accounting pronouncements 


(a) Recently adopted accounting pronouncements 


The FASB issued accounting standards update ("ASU") Collaborative Arrangements (Topic 808): Clarifying 
the Interaction between Topic 808 and Topic 606 to reduce diversity in practice on how entities account for 
transactions on the basis of different views of the economics of a collaborative arrangement. The adoption 
of this Update during the quarter did not have an impact on the unaudited interim consolidated financial 
statements.


The FASB issued ASU 2018-17, Consolidation (Topic 810): Targeted Improvements to Related Party Guidance 
for Variable Interest Entities ("VIEs") to improve general purpose financial reporting. The update clarifies 
that indirect interests held through related parties in common control arrangements should be considered 
on a proportional basis for determining whether fees paid to decision makers and service providers are variable 
interests. The adoption of this Update during the quarter did not have an impact on the unaudited interim 
consolidated financial statements.


The FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Business Combinations (Topic 350): Intangibles — Goodwill and Other 
(Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. The update is intended to simplify how an entity 
is required to test goodwill for impairment by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. Step 2 
measured a goodwill impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of a reporting unit’s goodwill with 
the carrying amount of that goodwill. Under the amendments in this update, the impairment loss will be 
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the reporting unit’s fair 
value. The Company will follow the pronouncements prospectively for goodwill impairment testing.


The FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit 
Losses on Financial Instruments to provide financial statement users with more decision-useful information 
about the expected credit losses on financial instruments and other commitments to extend credit held by 
a reporting entity at each reporting date. The adoption of this topic in the first quarter did not have a significant 
impact on the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements (note 1(e)).


(b) Recently issued accounting guidance not yet adopted 


The FASB issued ASU 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference 
Rate Reform on Financial Reporting that provides optional expedients and exceptions to ease the potential 
burden in accounting for reference rate reform. The amendments apply to contracts, hedging relationships, 
and other transactions that reference LIBOR or another reference rate expected to be discontinued because 
of the reference rate reform. The amendments in this Update are effective for all entities as of March 12, 
2020 through December 31, 2022. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the reference rate 
reform and this Update.


3. Business acquisitions


Acquisition of the St. Lawrence Gas Company, Inc.


The Company completed the acquisition of St. Lawrence Gas Company, Inc. ("St. Lawrence Gas") on   November 1, 
2019. St. Lawrence Gas is a regulated utility that provides natural gas in northern New York State. The total purchase 
price for the transaction is $61,820. A closing adjustment of $120 was made in 2020, which reduced goodwill.


The determination of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed is based upon management's preliminary 
estimates and certain assumptions. Due to the timing of the acquisition, the Company has not finalized the fair value 
measurement.
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4. Accounts receivable


Accounts receivable as of March 31, 2020 include unbilled revenue of $56,338 (December 31, 2019 - $79,880).  
Accounts receivable as of March 31, 2020 are presented net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $6,946 (December 
31, 2019 - $4,850).


5. Regulatory matters


The Company’s regulated utility operating companies are subject to regulation by the public utility commissions of 
the states in which they operate.  The respective public utility commissions have jurisdiction with respect to rate, 
service, accounting policies, issuance of securities, acquisitions and other matters.  These utilities operate under 
cost-of-service regulation as administered by these state authorities.  The Company’s regulated utility operating 
companies are accounted for under the principles of ASC 980.  Under ASC 980, regulatory assets and liabilities that 
would not be recorded under U.S. GAAP for non-regulated entities are recorded to the extent that they represent 
probable future revenue or expenses associated with certain charges or credits that will be recovered from or refunded 
to customers through the rate-setting process.


At any given time, the Company can have several regulatory proceedings underway. The financial effects of these 
proceedings are reflected in the consolidated financial statements based on regulatory approval obtained to the extent 
that there is a financial impact during the applicable reporting period. The following regulatory proceeding was recently 
completed:


Utility State
Regulatory proceeding


type
Annual revenue


increase Effective date


New England Natural Gas
System


Massachusetts Gas System
Enhancement Plan


$2,679 May 1, 2020
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5. Regulatory matters (continued)


Regulatory assets and liabilities consist of the following:


March 31,
2020


December 31,
2019


Regulatory assets


Retired generating plant (a) $ 199,795 $ —


Environmental remediation 89,666 $ 82,300


Pension and post-employment benefits 139,682 143,292


Income taxes 38,905 38,397


Debt premium 40,512 42,150


Fuel and commodity cost adjustments 11,989 20,400


Rate adjustment mechanism 44,653 35,601


Clean energy and other customer programs 26,299 26,369


Deferred capitalized costs 13,539 13,629


Asset retirement obligation 25,177 23,841


Long-term maintenance contract 14,375 13,264


Rate review costs 6,530 6,472


Other 20,343 19,084


Total regulatory assets $ 671,465 $ 464,799


Less: current regulatory assets (52,255) (44,184)


Non-current regulatory assets $ 619,210 $ 420,615


Regulatory liabilities


Income taxes $ 321,207 321,960


Cost of removal 194,201 196,423


Rate-base offset 7,967 8,719


Fuel and commodity costs adjustments 18,586 16,645


Rate adjustment mechanism 9,434 7,932


Deferred capitalized costs - fuel related 7,057 7,097


Pension and post-employment benefits 22,779 22,256


Other 14,340 13,871


Total regulatory liabilities $ 595,571 $ 594,903


Less: current regulatory liabilities (36,101) (39,018)


Non-current regulatory liabilities $ 559,470 $ 555,885


(a) Retired generating plant


On March 1, 2020, the Company's 200 MW coal generation facility located in Asbury, Missouri, ceased 
operations. The Company transferred the remaining net book value of Asbury’s plant retired from plant in-
service to a regulatory asset. The ultimate valuation of the regulatory asset will be determined in future 
commission orders. The Company is also assessing the decommissioning requirements associated with the 
retirement of the facility. Per commission orders in two of its jurisdictions, the Company is required to track 
the impact of Asbury's retirement on rates for consideration in the next rate review. The Company expects 
to defer such amounts collected from customers until new rates become effective. The accrual for this 
estimated amount will include revenues collected related to Asbury that will be subject to a future rate review 
proceeding and possible refund to customers. The ultimate resolution of this matter is uncertain.
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6. Long-term investments


Long-term investments consist of the following:


 
March 31,


2020
December 31,


2019


Equity method investees (a) $ 39,642 $ 25,426


Development loans receivable from equity-method investees (a) 535 614


Notes receivable 859 846


$ 41,036 $ 26,886


(a) Equity-method investees: 


In 2019, Empire Electric System entered into purchase agreements to acquire, once completed, three wind 
farms generating up to 600 MW of wind energy for a total costs estimated at $1,100,000.


In November 2019, Liberty Utilities acquired an interest in the entities that own the Missouri Wind Projects 
and, in partnership with a third-party developer, will continue development and construction of such projects 
until they are acquired by the Empire Electric System following completion.  The joint ventures are considered 
VIEs due to the level of equity at risk. The Company is not considered the primary beneficiary of the joint 
ventures and as such, accounts for its interest in these two projects using the equity method. As part of the 
investment in the joint ventures, the Company committed to loan and credit support facilities through 
guarantee agreements for obligations under letters of credit, engineering and procurement contracts, and 
turbine supply agreements for the two projects.


Summarized combined information for LUC's investments in these VIEs is as follows:


 
March 31,


2020
December 31,


2019


Total assets $ 248,208 $ 97,096


Total liabilities 188,320 52,065


Net assets 59,888 45,031


LUC's ownership interest in the entities 29,944 15,086


Difference between investment carrying amount and underlying equity 
in net assets (a) 8,665 9,305


LUC's investment carrying amount for the entities $ 38,609 $ 24,391


(a) The difference between the investment carrying amount and the underlying equity in net assets relates primarily to development 
fees and the fair value of guarantees provided by the Company.


LUC's maximum exposure in regards to VIEs is as follows:


 
March 31,


2020
December 31,


2019


Carrying amount $ 38,609 $ 24,391


Development loans receivable 535 614


Commitments on behalf of VIEs 392,495 415,518


$ 431,639 $ 440,523
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7. Long-term debt and long-term debt from related parties


Long-term debt consists of the following:


Borrowing type


Weighted
average
coupon Maturity Par value


March 31,
2020


December 31,
2019


Senior unsecured revolving
credit facility — 2023 N/A $ 248,750 $ —


Commercial paper — 2020 N/A 154,250 218,000


Senior unsecured utility notes 6.00% 2020-2035 $ 217,000 233,308 233,686


Senior secured utility bonds 4.70% 2020-2044 $ 656,000 664,769 672,353


$ 1,301,077 $ 1,124,039


Less: current portion (159,250) (223,000)


$ 1,141,827 $ 901,039


Long-term debt from related parties consists of the following:


Borrowing type


Weighted
average
coupon Maturity Par value


March 31,
2020


December 31,
2019


Senior unsecured notes from
related parties (a) 4.42% 2020-2047 $ 991,486 991,486 1,001,127


Long-term debt issued at a subsidiary level (project notes or utility bonds) relating to a specific operating facility is 
generally collateralized by the respective facility with no other recourse to the Company. Long-term debt issued at a 
subsidiary level whether or not collateralized generally has certain financial covenants, which must be maintained 
on a quarterly basis.  Non-compliance with the covenants could restrict cash distributions/dividends to the Company 
from the specific facilities.


Short-term obligations of $201,799 that are expected to be refinanced using the long-term credit facilities are 
presented as long-term debt.


Recent financing activities:


(a) Senior unsecured notes from related party


During 2020, the Company repaid an intercompany note of $16,440 in two installments of $9,641 and 
$6,799 in January 2020 and April 2020, respectively.


As at March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company had $965,000 in intercompany notes payable 
to related parties in connection with the issuance of $965,000 in notes to third party investors by Liberty 
Utilities Finance GP1 ("GP1"). The Company provided an unconditional guarantee for these notes issued by 
GP1 to third party investors, and under the terms of the issuances is required to comply with financial 
covenants. The notes issued by GP1 are of maturities ranging between 2020 and 2047 with interest rates 
ranging from 3.23% to 4.89%.


The Company has also provided unconditional guarantees of $260,000 for additional notes issued by GP1 
to third party investors, and under the terms of the GP1 notes, is required to comply with financial covenants. 
The notes issued by GP1 mature in 2020 and 2045 with interest rates of 2.78% and 4.13%.


(b) Senior unsecured bank credit facilities


The Company provides an unconditional guarantee for borrowing made by a parent entity under a $135,000 
term credit facility. As at March 31, 2020, the credit facility has $75,000 (December 31, 2019 - $75,000) 
outstanding. 







Liberty Utilities Co.
Notes to the Unaudited Interim Consolidated Financial Statements


March 31, 2020 and 2019


(in thousands of U.S. dollars)


7. Long-term debt and long-term debt from related parties (continued)


(b) Senior unsecured credit facilities (continued)


Subsequent to quarter-end, given the uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company secured 
additional liquidity as an additional margin of safety intended to ensure the Company can continue to move 
forward with its 2020 capital expenditure program and committed acquisitions independent of the state of 
the capital markets. The additional liquidity is in the form of a new senior unsecured delayed draw non-
revolving credit facility of $600,000 maturing in April 2021.


8. Pension and other post-employment benefits


The following table lists the components of net benefit cost for the pension and other post-employment benefits 
("OPEB") plans in the unaudited interim consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the three-month period 
ended March 31: 


  Pension benefits OPEB


Three months ended March 31 Three months ended March 31


  2020 2019 2020 2019


Service cost $ 3,637 $ 3,265 $ 1,467 $ 1,199
Non-service costs


Interest cost 4,791 4,759 1,819 1,784
Expected return on plan assets (6,249) (7,123) (2,192) (1,930)
Amortization of net actuarial loss (gain) 1,145 (316) (13) (52)


Amortization of prior service credits (402) 22 — (95)
Amortization of regulatory assets/liabilities 3,538 3,077 919 1,167


$ 2,823 $ 419 $ 533 $ 874


Net benefit cost $ 6,460 $ 3,684 $ 2,000 $ 2,073


The service cost components of pension plans and OPEB are shown as part of operations and maintenance expenses 
within operating income in the unaudited interim consolidated statements of operations. The remaining components 
of net benefit cost are considered non-service costs and have been included outside of operating income in the 
unaudited interim consolidated statements of operations.


9. Other long-term liabilities


Other long-term liabilities consist of the following:


March 31,
2020


December 31,
2019


Advances in aid of construction $ 61,435 $ 60,828


Environmental remediation obligation 66,849 58,061


Asset retirement obligations 25,503 25,743


Customer deposits 31,511 31,502


Unamortized investment tax credits 18,103 18,234


Hook up fees 10,543 9,610


Lease liabilities 5,138 5,463


Contingent development support obligations 2,225 2,874


Other 10,040 9,720


231,347 222,035


Less: current portion (47,737) (47,755)


$ 183,610 $ 174,280
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10. Shareholder’s capital


Common shares


The Company is authorized to issue 50,000 common shares. The holders of the common shares are entitled to 
dividends, if, as and when declared by the Board of Directors to one vote per share at meetings of the holders of 
common shares; and upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company to receive pro rata the remaining 
property and assets of the Company; subject to the rights of any shares having priority over the common shares, of 
which none are authorized or outstanding.


Number of common shares outstanding is as follows:


Three months ended March 31


2020 2019


Common shares, beginning and end of period 14,006 13,705


No additional shares were issued during the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.


11. Income taxes


For the three months ended March 31, 2020, the Company’s overall effective tax rate was different from the statutory 
rate of 25.70% (2018 - 26.34%) due primarily to flow through items and other non-deductible expenses.


12. Related party transactions


Due to related parties represents advances for current operating costs and reimbursement for management and 
accounting services provided by entities related to LUC as well as other third party costs incurred by entities related 
to LUC on behalf of the Company.  These amounts do not bear interest and have no fixed repayment terms.  Total 
amounts allocated for the three months ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 were $11,596 and $10,131, respectively. 


As at March 31, 2020, the amounts payable to related parties total $8,707 (December 31, 2019 - $1,722).


13. Commitments and contingencies


(a) Contingencies


LUC and its subsidiaries are involved in various claims and litigation arising out of the ordinary course and 
conduct of its business.  Although such matters cannot be predicted with certainty, management does not 
consider LUC’s exposure to such litigation to be material to these unaudited interim consolidated financial 
statements.  Accruals for any contingencies related to these items are recorded in the consolidated financial 
statements at the time it is concluded that its occurrence is probable and the related liability is estimable.


Condemnation expropriation proceedings


Liberty Utilities (Apple Valley Ranchos Water) Corp. is the subject of a condemnation lawsuit filed by the 
town of Apple Valley. A court will determine the necessity of the taking by Apple Valley and, if established, 
a jury will determine the fair market value of the assets being condemned.  Because of COVID-19 the timing 
for the resolution of the condemnation proceedings is currently unknown. Any taking by government entities 
would legally require fair compensation to be paid; however, there is no assurance that the value received 
as a result of the condemnation will be sufficient to recover the Company's net book value of the utility assets 
taken.


(b)  Commitments


In addition to the commitments related to the proposed acquisitions and development projects disclosed in 
note 6, the following significant commitments exist as of March 31, 2020.


The Company has outstanding purchase commitments for power purchases, gas supply and service 
agreements, service agreements and capital project commitments.
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13. Commitments and contingencies (continued)


(b)  Commitments (continued)


Detailed below are estimates of future commitments under these arrangements: 


Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Thereafter Total


Power
purchase (i) $ 21,769 $ 11,477 $ 11,395 $ 11,623 $ 11,855 $ 176,424 $ 244,543


Gas supply
and service
agreements (ii) 79,388 59,656 51,774 45,378 40,677 138,707 415,580


Service
agreements 9,712 1,547 1,593 1,665 1,335 — 15,852


Capital
projects 340,263 — — — — — 340,263


Total $ 451,132 $ 72,680 $ 64,762 $ 58,666 $ 53,867 $ 315,131 $ 1,016,23
8


(i)  Power purchase: LUC’s electric distribution facilities have commitments to purchase physical 
quantities of power for load serving requirements. The commitment amounts included in the table 
above are based on market prices as of March 31, 2020.  However, the effects of purchased power 
unit cost adjustments are mitigated through a purchased power rate-adjustment mechanism.


(ii) Gas supply and service agreements: LUC’s gas distribution facilities have commitments to purchase 
physical quantities of natural gas under contracts for purposes of load serving requirements.


14. Non-cash operating items


The changes in non-cash operating items consist of the following:


Three months ended March 31


2020 2019


Accounts receivable $ 51,282 $ (7,436)
Related party balances 6,986 5,363
Fuel and natural gas in storage 11,064 19,481
Supplies and consumable inventory (7,567) (2,142)
Prepaid expenses (149) 2,528
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (65,504) (39,307)
Asset retirement and environmental obligation (572) (1,100)
Current income tax liability (20,911) 18,628
Net regulatory assets and liabilities (4,324) 6,117


$ (29,695) $ 2,132
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15. Financial instruments


(a) Fair value of financial instruments


March 31, 2020
Carrying
amount


Fair
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Notes receivable $ 1,394 $ 1,472 $ — $ 1,472 $ —


Total financial assets $ 1,394 $ 1,472 $ — $ 1,472 $ —


Long-term debt $ 1,301,077 $ 1,356,171 $ — $ 1,356,171 $ —


Long-term debt from related
parties 991,486 1,061,673 — 1,061,673 —


Derivative instrument -
Commodity contract 992 992 — 992 —


Total financial liabilities $ 2,293,555 $ 2,418,836 $ — $ 2,418,836 $ —


December 31, 2019
Carrying
amount


Fair
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Notes receivable $ 1,460 $ 1,581 $ — $ 1,581 $ —


Derivative instrument -
Commodity contract 16 16 — 16 —


Total financial assets $ 1,476 $ 1,597 $ — $ 1,597 $ —


Long-term debt $ 1,124,039 $ 1,219,868 $ — $1,219,868 $ —


Long-term debt from related
parties 1,001,127 1,112,021 — 1,112,021 —


Derivative instrument -
Commodity contract 2,072 2,072 — 2,072 —


Total financial liabilities $ 2,127,238 $ 2,333,961 $ — $2,333,961 $ —


The Company has determined that the carrying value of its short-term financial assets and liabilities 
approximates fair value as of March 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 due to the short-term maturity of 
these instruments.


The fair value of notes receivable (level 2) is determined using a discounted cash flow method, using estimated 
current market rates for similar instruments adjusted for estimated credit risk as determined by management. 


The Company's level 2 fair value of long-term debt at fixed interest rates has been determined using a 
discounted cash flow method and current interest rates.


The Company’s level 2 fair value derivative instruments primarily consist of swaps, options and forward 
physical derivatives where market data for pricing inputs are observable. Level 2 pricing inputs are obtained 
from various market indices and utilize discounting based on quoted interest rate curves which are 
observable in the marketplace.


Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, using available information about the financial 
instrument.  These estimates are subjective in nature and often cannot be determined with precision.


(b) Derivative instruments


Derivative instruments are recognized on the consolidated balance sheets as either assets or liabilities and 
measured at fair value at each reporting period.
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15. Financial instruments (continued)


(b) Derivative instruments (continued)


(i) Commodity derivatives


The Company uses derivative financial instruments to reduce the cash flow variability associated with the 
purchase price for a portion of future natural gas purchases associated with its regulated gas and electric 
service territories. The Company’s strategy is to minimize fluctuations in gas sale prices to regulated 
customers.


The following are commodity volumes, in dekatherms (“dths”) associated with the above derivative contracts:


  2020


Financial contracts: Swaps 2,144,407
                             Forward contracts 2,000,000


4,144,407


The accounting for these derivative instruments is subject to guidance for rate-regulated enterprises.  
Therefore, the fair value of these derivatives is recorded as current or long-term assets and liabilities, with 
offsetting positions recorded as regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.  
Most of the gains or losses on the settlement of these contracts are included in the calculation of the fuel 
and commodity cost adjustments (note 5).  As a result, the changes in fair value of these natural gas derivative 
contracts and their offsetting adjustment to regulatory assets and liabilities had no earnings impact.


The following table presents the impact of the change in the fair value of the Company’s natural gas derivative 
contracts had on the consolidated balance sheets:


March 31,
2020


December 31,
2019


Regulatory assets:
Swap contracts $ 149 $ 28
Option contracts $ 16 $ 38


      Forward contracts $ 1,051 $ 1,830
Regulatory liabilities:


Swap contracts $ 207 $ 743


 (ii) Cash flow hedges


In 2017, the Company settled forward contracts to purchase $250,000 10-year U.S. Treasury bills at an 
interest rate of 1.8395% and $250,000 30-year U.S. Treasury bills at an interest rate of 2.5539% designated 
as hedges to the interest rate risk related to $479,000 of senior unsecured notes. The effective portion of 
the hedge was recorded in OCI at the time and is reclassified to interest expense as the underlying hedged 
transactions are incurred. The gain reclassified from AOCI to interest expense for the three months ended 
March 31, 2020 and 2019 were $389 and $389, respectively. The Company expects $1,555 of gains net 
of taxes currently in AOCI to be reclassified into interest expense within the next twelve months, as the 
underlying hedged transactions settle.


(c) Risk management


In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to financial risks that potentially impact its 
operating results.  The Company employs risk management strategies with a view to mitigate these risks to 
the extent possible on a cost effective basis.  Derivative financial instruments are used to manage certain 
exposures to fluctuations in interest rates and commodity prices. The Company does not enter into derivative 
financial agreements for speculative purposes.


16. Comparative figures


Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement presentation adopted 
in the current period.
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17.   Subsequent events


The Company has evaluated other subsequent events from the balance sheet date through May 29, 2020 the date 
at which the financial statements were available to be issued.
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Liberty Utilities Co.
Unaudited Interim Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income


(thousands of U.S. dollars) Three months ended June 30, Six months ended June 30,


2020 2019 2020 2019


Revenue
Electricity sales and distribution $ 163,145 $ 175,995 $ 343,196 $ 381,056 


Gas sales and distribution  69,278  70,935  231,678  248,596 


Water reclamation and distribution  34,883  32,697  62,722  59,483 


Other revenue  2,070  1,981  4,633  3,496 


 269,376  281,608  642,229  692,631 


Expenses
Electricity purchased  42,810  50,344  100,043  119,942 


Gas purchased  15,885  21,340  70,681  100,894 


Water purchased  3,236  1,785  5,487  3,239 


Operations and maintenance  92,924  92,829  187,254  185,386 


Depreciation of utility plant  48,629  45,391  96,949  90,351 


Taxes other than income taxes  18,378  18,277  39,547  37,673 


Other  982  1,335  2,976  4,421 


 222,844  231,301  502,937  541,906 


Operating income  46,532  50,307  139,292  150,725 


Interest expense  11,755  12,053  23,029  23,162 


Interest on related-party debt (note 7)  10,947  11,177  21,941  21,987 


Other losses (note 5(b))  13,722  3,204  13,214  2,613 


Pension and other post-employment non-service costs (note 8)  3,617  3,747  6,973  5,040 


Acquisition-related costs  719  235  1,035  1,058 


 40,760  30,416  66,192  53,860 


Earnings before income taxes  5,772  19,891  73,100  96,865 


Income tax expense (recovery) (note 11)


Current   1,491  1,564  13,623  18,729 


Deferred  (1,806)  3,004  3,437  6,511 


 (315)  4,568  17,060  25,240 


Net earnings  6,087  15,323  56,040  71,625 


Net effect of non-controlling interests  (1,756)  (1,492)  (3,475)  (2,988) 
Net earnings attributable to the shareholder of Liberty       
Utilities Co.  7,843  16,815  59,515  74,613 


Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 


Change in unrealized pension and other post-employment 
benefits, net of tax expense of $22 and tax recovery of $9 
(2019: tax expense of $141 and $50), respectively (note 8)  55  209  (21)  (45) 


Change in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax recovery 
of $138 and $276 (2019: recovery of $138 and $276) (note 
15(b)(ii))  (385)  (389)  (774)  (778) 


 (330)  (180)  (795)  (823) 


Comprehensive income  7,513  16,635  58,720  73,790 


See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Unaudited Interim Consolidated Balance Sheets


(thousands of U.S. dollars)
June 30, 


2020
December 31, 


2019


ASSETS


Utility plant, net $ 4,500,331 $ 4,570,776 


Intangible assets  16,321  16,657 


Goodwill  974,273  974,541 


Regulatory assets (note 5)  620,055  420,615 


Long-term investments (note 6)  39,699  26,886 


Restricted cash  20,329  18,338 


Deferred income taxes  33,250  — 


Other assets  19,933  18,969 


 6,224,191  6,046,782 


Current assets:


Cash and cash equivalents  8,934  5,788 


Fuel and natural gas in storage  27,745  30,804 


Supplies and consumables inventory  79,107  58,552 


Accounts receivable, net (note 4)  120,397  200,594 


Regulatory assets (note 5)  41,979  44,184 


Prepaid expenses  24,408  24,287 


Derivative instruments (note 15)  32  16 


 302,602  364,225 


$ 6,526,793 $ 6,411,007 


See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Unaudited Interim Consolidated Balance Sheets


(thousands of U.S dollars)
June 30, 


2020
December 31, 


2019


LIABILITIES AND EQUITY


Shareholder's equity


Shareholder's capital (note 10) $ 2,367,347 $ 2,367,347 


Retained earnings  1,301  85,781 


Accumulated other comprehensive income  5,866  6,661 


Total equity attributable to shareholder of Liberty Utilities Co.  2,374,514  2,459,789 


Redeemable non-controlling interest  24,843  25,048 


Long-term debt (note 7)  1,185,297  901,039 


Long-term debt from related parties (note 7)  984,687  1,001,127 


Deferred income taxes  484,842  479,254 


Regulatory liabilities (note 5)  577,105  555,885 


Other long-term liabilities (note 9)  183,410  174,280 


Pension and other post-employment benefits obligation  219,691  222,534 


Derivative instruments (note 15)  190  910 


Current liabilities:


Accounts payable  99,552  121,813 


Accrued liabilities  86,844  154,086 


Due to related parties (note 12)  2,996  1,722 


Other long-term liabilities (note 9)  49,379  47,755 


Regulatory liabilities (note 5)  30,467  39,018 


Pension and other post-employment benefits obligation  2,586  2,585 


Derivative instruments (note 15)  390  1,162 


Long-term debt (note 7)  220,000  223,000 


 492,214  591,141 


Commitments and contingencies (note 13)


Subsequent events (notes 5, 7, 10 and 17)


$ 6,526,793 $ 6,411,007 


See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Unaudited Interim Consolidated Statements of Equity


(thousands of U.S. dollars)
For the three months ended June 30, 2020 


Liberty Utilities Co.


Shareholder's 
capital


Retained 
earnings


Accumulated 
other 


comprehensive 
income


Non-
controlling 


interests Total


Balance, March 31, 2020 $ 2,367,347 $ 124,156 $ 6,196 $ — $ 2,497,699 


Net earnings (loss)  —  7,843  —  (1,756)  6,087 


Redeemable non-controlling interest not 
included in equity  —  —  —  1,756  1,756 


Dividends paid  —  (130,698)  —  —  (130,698) 


Other comprehensive loss  —  —  (330)  —  (330) 


Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 2,367,347 $ 1,301 $ 5,866 $ — $ 2,374,514 


(thousands of U.S. dollars)
For the three months ended June 30, 2019 


Liberty Utilities Co.


Shareholder's 
capital


Retained 
earnings


Accumulated 
other 


comprehensive 
income


Non-
controlling 


interests Total


Balance, March 31, 2019 $ 2,213,390 $ 98,804 $ 14,082 $ — $ 2,326,276 


Net earnings (loss)  —  16,815  —  (1,492)  15,323 


Redeemable non-controlling interest not 
included in equity  —  —  —  1,492  1,492 


Dividends paid  —  (3,700)  —  —  (3,700) 


Other comprehensive loss  —  —  (180)  —  (180) 


Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 2,213,390 $ 111,919 $ 13,902 $ — $ 2,339,211 


See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Unaudited Interim Consolidated Statements of Equity
 
(thousands of U.S. dollars)
For the six months ended June 30, 2020 


Liberty Utilities Co.


Shareholder's 
capital


Retained 
earnings


Accumulated 
other 


comprehensive 
income


Non-
controlling 


interests Total


Balance, December 31, 2019 $ 2,367,347 $ 85,781 $ 6,661 $ — $ 2,459,789 


Net earnings (loss)  —  59,515  —  (3,475)  56,040 


Redeemable non-controlling interest not 
included in equity  —  —  —  3,475  3,475 


Dividends paid  —  (143,995)  —  —  (143,995) 


Other comprehensive loss  —  —  (795)  —  (795) 


Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 2,367,347 $ 1,301 $ 5,866 $ — $ 2,374,514 


(thousands of U.S. dollars)
For the six months ended June 30, 2019


Liberty Utilities Co.


Shareholder's 
capital


Retained 
earnings


Accumulated 
other 


comprehensive 
income


Non-
controlling 


interests Total


Balance, December 31, 2018 $ 2,213,390 $ 45,706 $ 14,725 $ — $ 2,273,821 


Net earnings (loss)  —  74,613  —  (2,988)  71,625 


Redeemable non-controlling interest not 
included in equity  —  —  —  2,988  2,988 


Dividends paid  —  (8,400)  —  —  (8,400) 


Other comprehensive loss  —  —  (823)  —  (823) 


Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 2,213,390 $ 111,919 $ 13,902 $ — $ 2,339,211 


See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co.
Unaudited Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows


(thousands of U.S. dollars) Three months ended June 30, Six months ended June 30,


2020 2 2019 2020 2019


Cash provided by (used in):


Operating Activities


Net earnings $ 6,087 $ 15,323 $ 56,040 $ 71,625 


Items not affecting cash:


Depreciation of utility plant  48,629  45,391  96,949  90,351 


Deferred taxes  (1,806)  3,004  3,437  6,511 


Cost of equity funds used for construction 
purposes  (1,037)  (698)  (2,043)  (1,160) 


Pension and post-employment expense in excess 
of (lower than) contributions  (1,505)  365  2,882  3,092 


Other  (1,776)  (836)  (2,501)  (908) 


Changes in non-cash operating items (note 14)  40,887  1,246  11,192  3,378 


 89,479  63,795  165,956  172,889 


Financing Activities


Increase in long-term debt  519,554  224,194  845,659  296,196 


Decrease in long-term debt  (413,187)  (203,824)  (560,789)  (260,825) 


Dividends paid to parent  (130,698)  (3,700)  (143,995)  (8,400) 


Contributions from non-controlling interests  2,649  475  2,649  475 


Distributions to non-controlling interests  (195)  (217)  (610)  (414) 


Decrease in long-term debt from related parties     
(note 7)  (6,799)  —  (16,440)  — 


Increase in other long-term liabilities  4,860  773  7,249  4,050 


Decrease in other long-term liabilities  (2,941)  (3,809)  (4,868)  (6,217) 


 (26,757)  13,892  128,855  24,865 


Investing Activities


Additions to utility plants  (149,902)  (100,323)  (274,811)  (196,029) 


Decrease (increase) in long term investments  598  (20)  (14,071)  (54) 


Decrease (increase) in other assets  (937)  138  (792)  (827) 


Acquisition of operating entities  —  —  —  (1,350) 


 (150,241)  (100,205)  (289,674)  (198,260) 


Increase (decrease) in cash,cash equivalents and 
restricted cash  (87,519)  (22,518)  5,137  (506) 


Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of 
period  116,782  41,965  24,126  19,954 


Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period $ 29,263 $ 19,447 $ 29,263 $ 19,448 


Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 2020 2019 2020 2019


Cash paid during the period for interest expense $ 34,293 $ 11,010 $ 45,599 $ 26,435 


Cash paid during the period for income taxes $ — $ — $ 15 $ — 


Non-cash transactions: Utility plant in accruals $ 40,484 $ 23,366 $ 40,484 $ 23,366 


See accompanying notes to unaudited interim consolidated financial statements







Liberty Utilities Co. (“Liberty Utilities”, “LUC”, or the “Company”) was formed on December 9, 2010.  The Company is an 
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Algonquin Power and Utilities Corp. ("APUC"). The Company operates rate-regulated 
utilities that provide distribution, generation, and transmission services to approximately 807,000 connections in the 
electric, natural gas, water distribution and wastewater sectors.


 1.  Significant accounting policies


(a) Basis of preparation


The accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and notes have been prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”)


The significant accounting policies applied to these unaudited interim consolidated financial statements 
of LUC are consistent with those disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended December 31, 2019 except for adopted accounting policies described in note 2(a) and 
note 1(e).


(b) COVID-19 Pandemic


The preparation of these unaudited interim consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. 
GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.


The ongoing outbreak of the novel strain of coronavirus ("COVID-19") has resulted in business suspensions 
and shutdowns that has caused changes in consumption patterns of the Company's customers. The 
Company's business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations, are subject to actual and 
potential future impacts resulting from COVID-19, the full extent of which is not currently known. The 
Company has made estimates of the impact of COVID-19 within its financial statements and there may be 
changes to those estimates in future periods.


(c) Accounting for rate regulated operations


The utility operating companies owned by the Company are subject to rate regulation generally overseen 
by the public utility commission of the states in which they operate (the “Regulator”). The Regulator 
provides the final determination of the rates charged to customers. LUC’s utility operating companies are 
accounted for under the principles of U.S. Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") ASC Topic 
980, Regulated Operations (“ASC 980”). Under ASC 980, regulatory assets and liabilities are recorded to 
the extent that they represent probable future revenue or expenses associated with certain charges or 
credits that will be recovered from or refunded to customers through the rate making process. Included in 
note 5, "Regulatory matters" are details of regulatory assets and liabilities, and their current regulatory 
treatment.


In the event the Company determines that its net regulatory assets are not probable of recovery, it would 
no longer apply the principles of the current accounting guidance for rate regulated enterprises and would 
be required to record an after-tax, non-cash charge or credit against earnings for any remaining regulatory 
assets or liabilities. The impact could be material to the Company’s reported financial condition and 
results of operations.


The electric, gas and water utilities’ accounts are maintained in accordance with the Uniform System of 
Accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, the Regulator and National 
Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners in the United States.


(d) Seasonality


LUC's operating results are subject to seasonal fluctuations that could materially impact quarter-to-
quarter operating results and, thus, one quarter's operating results are not necessarily indicative of a 
subsequent quarter's operating results. Where decoupling mechanisms exist, total volumetric revenue is 
prescribed by the applicable regulatory authority and is not affected by usage. LUC's different electrical 
distribution utilities can experience higher or lower demand in the summer or winter depending on the 
specific regional weather and industry characteristics. During the winter period, natural gas distribution 
utilities experience higher demand than during the summer period. 


Liberty Utilities Co.
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 1.  Significant accounting policies (continued)


(d) Seasonality (continued)


LUC’s water and wastewater utility assets’ revenues fluctuate depending on the demand for water, which 
is normally higher during drier and hotter months of the summer.


(e) Current expected credit losses


The Company adopted the U.S. Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Financial Instrument - 
Credit Losses Topic 326 ("ASC 326") in the first quarter of 2020 using a modified retrospective 
approach. The Company has trade accounts receivable and loans receivable from its equity method 
investees. New allowance policies were implemented for these instruments. The impact to the Company's 
bad debt expense upon adoption was not significant.


2. Recently issued accounting pronouncements 


(a) Recently adopted accounting pronouncements


The FASB issued accounting standards update ("ASU") Collaborative Arrangements (Topic 808): Clarifying 
the Interaction between Topic 808 and Topic 606 to reduce diversity in practice on how entities account 
for transactions on the basis of different views of the economics of a collaborative arrangement. The 
adoption of this Update during the first quarter did not have an impact on the unaudited interim 
consolidated financial statements.


The FASB issued ASU 2018-17, Consolidation (Topic 810): Targeted Improvements to Related Party 
Guidance for Variable Interest Entities ("VIEs") to improve general purpose financial reporting. The update 
clarifies that indirect interests held through related parties in common control arrangements should be 
considered on a proportional basis for determining whether fees paid to decision makers and service 
providers are variable interests. The adoption of this Update during the first quarter did not have an 
impact on the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements.


The FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Business Combinations (Topic 350): Intangibles — Goodwill and Other 
(Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. The update is intended to simplify how an 
entity is required to test goodwill for impairment by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. 
Step 2 measured a goodwill impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of a reporting unit’s 
goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. Under the amendments in this update, the impairment 
loss will be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the 
reporting unit’s fair value. The Company will follow the pronouncements prospectively for goodwill 
impairment testing.


The FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of 
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments to provide financial statement users with more decision-useful 
information about the expected credit losses on financial instruments and other commitments to extend 
credit held by a reporting entity at each reporting date. The adoption of this topic in the first quarter did 
not have a significant impact on the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements (note 1(e)).


(b) Recently issued accounting guidance not yet adopted


The FASB issued ASU 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of 
Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting that provides optional expedients and exceptions to ease 
the potential burden in accounting for reference rate reform. The amendments apply to contracts, hedging 
relationships, and other transactions that reference LIBOR or another reference rate expected to be 
discontinued because of the reference rate reform. The amendments in this Update are effective for all 
entities as of March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022. The Company is currently assessing the 
impact of the reference rate reform and this Update.


Liberty Utilities Co.


Notes to the Unaudited Interim Consolidated Financial Statements


June 30, 2020 and 2019


(in thousands of U.S. dollars)







3. Business acquisitions


Acquisition of the St. Lawrence Gas Company, Inc.


The Company completed the acquisition of St. Lawrence Gas Company, Inc. ("St. Lawrence Gas") on November 1, 
2019. St. Lawrence Gas is a regulated utility that provides natural gas in northern New York State. The total 
purchase price recorded in 2019 for the transaction was $61,820. A closing adjustment of $120 was made in 
2020, which reduced goodwill.


The determination of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed is based upon management's 
preliminary estimates and certain assumptions. Due to the timing of the acquisition, the Company has not 
finalized the fair value measurement.


4. Accounts receivable


Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2020 include unbilled revenue of $48,170 (December 31, 2019 - $79,880).  
Accounts receivable as of June  30, 2020 are presented net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $10,293 
(December 31, 2019 - $4,850).


5. Regulatory matters


The Company’s operating companies are subject to regulation by the public utility commissions of the states in 
which they operate.  The respective public utility commissions have jurisdiction with respect to rate, service, 
accounting policies, issuance of securities, acquisitions and other matters.  These utilities operate under cost-of-
service regulation as administered by these regulatory authorities.  The Company’s regulated utility operating 
companies are accounted for under the principles of ASC 980.  Under ASC 980, regulatory assets and liabilities 
that would not be recorded under U.S. GAAP for non-regulated entities are recorded to the extent that they 
represent probable future revenue or expenses associated with certain charges or credits that will be recovered 
from or refunded to customers through the rate-setting process.


At any given time, the Company can have several regulatory proceedings underway. The financial effects of these 
proceedings are reflected in the consolidated financial statements based on regulatory approval obtained to the 
extent that there is a financial impact during the applicable reporting period. The following regulatory proceedings 
were recently completed:


Utility State
Regulatory proceeding 


type
Annual revenue 


increase Effective date


Energy North Gas 
System


New 
Hampshire


Cast Iron/Bare Steel 
Replacement Program 
Results


$1,613 July 1, 2020


Granite State Electric 
System


New 
Hampshire


General Rate Review $5,474 July 1, 2020. The regulator also 
approved a one-time recoupment 
of $1,836 for the difference 
between the final rates and 
temporary rate increase of 
$2,094 granted on July, 2019.


Peach State Gas 
System


Georgia General Rate Review $1,566 August 1, 2020


Subsequent to quarter end, the Public Service Commission of the State of Missouri issued an Order in regards to 
the general rate review of Empire Electric (Missouri System) resulting in an estimated annual increase in revenue 
of $992, subject to final regulatory approval.
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5. Regulatory matters (continued)


Regulatory assets and liabilities consist of the following:


June 30, 
2020


December 31, 
2019


Regulatory assets


Retired generating plant (a) $ 196,476 $ — 


Environmental remediation  88,914  82,300 


Pension and post-employment benefits  136,901  143,292 


Debt premium  38,462  42,150 


Fuel and commodity cost adjustments  7,568  20,400 


Rate adjustment mechanism  44,058  35,601 


Income taxes  39,948  38,397 


Clean energy and other customer programs  26,510  26,369 


Deferred construction costs  13,450  13,629 


Asset retirement obligation  25,631  23,841 


Long-term maintenance contract  14,913  13,264 


Rate review costs  6,861  6,472 


Other  22,342  19,084 


Total regulatory assets $ 662,034 $ 464,799 


Less: current regulatory assets  (41,979)  (44,184) 


Non-current regulatory assets $ 620,055 $ 420,615 


Regulatory liabilities


Income taxes (b) $ 331,990 $ 321,960 


Cost of removal  195,277  196,423 


Rate-base offset  7,342  8,719 


Fuel and commodity cost adjustments  19,090  16,645 


Rate adjustment mechanism  3,261  7,932 


Deferred construction costs -fuel related  7,017  7,097 


Pension and post-employment benefits  24,460  22,256 


Other (a)  19,135  13,871 


Total regulatory liabilities $ 607,572 $ 594,903 


Less: current regulatory liabilities  (30,467)  (39,018) 


Non-current regulatory liabilities $ 577,105 $ 555,885 


(a) Retired generating plant


On March 1, 2020, the Company's 200 MW coal generation facility located in Asbury, Missouri, ceased 
operations. The Company transferred the remaining net book value of Asbury’s plant retired from plant in-
service to a regulatory asset. The ultimate valuation of the regulatory asset will be determined in future 
commission orders. The Company is also assessing the decommissioning requirements associated with the 
retirement of the facility. Per commission orders in three of its jurisdictions, the Company is required to 
track the impact of Asbury's retirement on rates for consideration in the next rate case. The Company 
expects to defer such amounts collected from customers until new rates become effective. The accrual for 
this estimated amount includes revenues collected related to Asbury that will be subject to a future rate 
review proceeding and possible refund to customers. The ultimate resolution of this matter is uncertain.
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5. Regulatory matters (continued)


(b) Tax Reform


As a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act enacted in 2017, regulators in the states where the Regulated 
Services Group operates contemplated the rate making implications of federal tax rates from the legacy 
35% tax rate and the new 21% federal statutory income tax rate effective January 2018. Subsequent to 
quarter end, on July 1, 2020, the Company received an order from the Public Service Commission of the 
State of Missouri that requires Empire to refund to customers over five years the revenue requirement 
collected at the higher tax rate between January 1, 2018 and August 31, 2018 before new rates came 
into effect. A regulatory liability and corresponding loss were recognized for approximately $11,728 
during the quarter.


6. Long-term investments


Long-term investments consist of the following:


 
June 30, 


2020
December 31, 


2019


Equity-method investees (a) $ 38,009 $ 24,391 


Notes receivable  658  1,460 


Other  1,032  1,035 


$ 39,699 $ 26,886 


(a) Equity-method investees


In 2019, Empire Electric System entered into purchase agreements to acquire, once completed, three 
wind farms generating up to 600 MW of wind energy for a total costs estimated at $1,100,000.


In November 2019, Liberty Utilities acquired an interest in the entities that own the Missouri Wind 
Projects and, in partnership with a third-party developer, will continue development and construction of 
such projects until they are acquired by the Empire Electric System following completion. The joint 
ventures are considered VIEs due to the level of equity at risk. The Company is not considered the primary 
beneficiary of the joint ventures and as such, accounts for its interest in these two projects using the 
equity method. As part of the investment in the joint ventures, the Company committed to loan and credit 
support facilities through guarantee agreements for obligations under letters of credit, engineering and 
procurement contracts, and turbine supply agreements for the two projects. 


Summarized combined information for LUC's investments in these VIEs is as follows:


 
June 30, 


2020
December 31, 


2019


Total assets $ 410,029 $ 97,096 


Total liabilities  350,169  52,065 


Net assets  59,860  45,031 


LUC's ownership interest in the entities  29,930  15,086 


Difference between investment carrying amount and underlying equity in 
net assets (a)


 8,079  9,305 


LUC's investment carrying amount for the entities $ 38,009 $ 24,391 
(a) The difference between the investment carrying amount and the underlying equity in net assets relates primarily to interest 
capitalized while the projects are under construction, development fees, transaction costs and the fair value of guarantees 
provided by the Company in regards to the investments.
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6. Long-term investments (continued)


(a) Equity-method investees (continued)


LUC's maximum exposure in regards to VIEs is as follows:


 
June 30, 


2020
December 31, 


2019


Carrying amount $ 38,009 $ 24,391 


Development loans receivable  —  614 


Commitments on behalf of VIEs  255,927  415,518 


 293,936  440,523 


7. Long-term debt and long-term debt from related parties


Long-term debt consists of the following:


Borrowing type


Weighted 
average 
coupon Maturity Par value


June 30, 
2020


December 31, 
2019


Senior unsecured bank credit 
facilities (a)  — 2021-2023 N/A $ 399,510 $ — 


Commercial paper  — 2020 N/A  215,000  218,000 


Senior unsecured utility notes  6.01 % 2020-2035 $ 212,000  227,956  233,686 


Senior secured utility bonds (b)  4.71 % 2026-2044 $ 556,000  562,831  672,353 


$ 1,405,297 $ 1,124,039 


Less: current portion  (220,000)  (223,000) 


$ 1,185,297 $ 901,039 


Long-term debt from related parties consists of the following:


Borrowing type


Weighted 
average 
coupon Maturity Par value


June 30, 
2020


December 31, 
2019


Senior unsecured notes from related 
parties (c)  4.43 % 2020-2047 $ 984,687  984,687  1,001,127 


Short-term obligations of $490,000 that are expected to be refinanced on a long-term basis are presented as long-
term debt.


Utility bonds issued at a subsidiary level are generally collateralized by the respective utility with no other recourse 
to the Company. Long-term debt issued at a subsidiary level whether or not collateralized generally has certain 
financial covenants, which must be maintained on a quarterly basis.  Non-compliance with the covenants could 
restrict cash distributions/dividends to the Company from the specific facilities.


Recent financing activities:


(a) Senior unsecured bank credit facilities


Given the uncertainty caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company secured additional liquidity 
during the first quarter as an additional margin of safety intended to ensure the Company can continue to 
move forward with its 2020 capital expenditure program and committed acquisitions independent of the 
state of the capital markets. The additional liquidity is in the form of a new senior unsecured non-
revolving credit facility of $600,000 maturing in April 2021. As at June 30, 2020, there was $400,000 
drawn on this facility.
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7. Long-term debt (continued)


(b) Senior secured utility bonds


On June 1, 2020, the Company repaid, upon its maturity, a $100,000 secured utility bond at Empire.


(c) Senior unsecured notes from related party


During 2020, the Company repaid an intercompany note of $16,440 in two installments of $9,641 and
$6,799 in January 2020 and April 2020, respectively.


As at June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company had $965,000 in intercompany notes 
payable to related parties in connection with the issuance of $965,000 in notes to third party investors by 
Liberty Utilities Finance GP1 ("GP1"). The Company provided an unconditional guarantee for these notes 
issued by GP1 to third party investors, and under the terms of the issuances is required to comply with 
financial covenants. The notes issued by GP1 are of maturities ranging between 2020 and 2047 with 
interest rates ranging from 3.23% to 4.89%.


The Company has also provided unconditional guarantees for additional notes issued by GP1 to third party 
investors, and under the terms of the GP1 notes, is required to comply with financial covenants. One of 
the notes issued by GP1 of $100,000 matured and was repaid in the second quarter of 2020. The 
remaining guaranteed notes issued by GP1 of $160,000 mature in 2045 with an interest rate of 4.13%.


Subsequent to quarter-end, the Company entered in an agreement allowing the Company to borrow from 
APUC as needed. The agreement matures in August 2022.  


(d)  Senior unsecured credit facilities


The Company provides an unconditional guarantee for borrowing made by a parent entity under a term 
credit facility maturing on July 6, 2020. As at June 30, 2020, the credit facility has $59,000 
outstanding (December 31, 2019 - $75,000).


8. Pension and other post-employment benefits 


The following tables lists the components of net benefit cost for the pension and other post-employment benefits 
("OPEB") plans recorded in the unaudited interim consolidated statements of comprehensive income.


  Pension benefits


Three months ended June 30, Six months ended June 30,


  2020 2019 2020 2019


Service cost $ 3,708 $ 2,795 $ 7,275 $ 6,060 


Non-service costs


 Interest cost  4,100  3,670  8,891  8,429 


 Expected return on plan assets  (6,249)  (3,088)  (12,498)  (10,211) 


 Amortization of net actuarial loss  1,145  2,060  2,290  1,744 


 Amortization of prior service credits  (402)  (412)  (804)  (390) 


 Amortization of regulatory assets/liabilities  4,769  1,194  8,307  4,271 


$ 3,363 $ 3,424 $ 6,186 $ 3,843 


Net benefit cost $ 7,071 $ 6,219 $ 13,461 $ 9,903 
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8. Pension and other post-employment benefits (continued)


OPEB


Three months ended June 30, Six months ended June 30,


2020 2019 2020 2019


Service cost $ 1,466 $ 1,203 $ 2,933 $ 2,402 


Non-service costs


Interest cost  1,755  1,834  3,574  3,618 


Expected return on plan assets  (2,193)  (1,371)  (4,385)  (3,301) 


Amortization of net actuarial gain  (14)  (424)  (27)  (476) 


Amortization of prior service credits  —  (10)  —  (105) 


Amortization of regulatory assets/liabilities  706  294  1,625  1,461 


$ 254 $ 323 $ 787 $ 1,197 


Net benefit cost $ 1,720 $ 1,526 $ 3,720 $ 3,599 


The service cost components of pension and OPEB plans are shown as part of operations and maintenance 
expenses within operating income in the unaudited interim consolidated statements of comprehensive income. The 
remaining components of net benefit cost are considered non-service costs and have been included outside of 
operating income in the unaudited interim consolidated statements of comprehensive income.


9. Other long-term liabilities 


Other long-term liabilities consist of the following:


June 30, 
2020


December 31, 
2019


Advances in aid of construction $ 62,664 $ 60,828 


Environmental remediation obligation  66,446  58,061 


Asset retirement obligations  25,540  25,743 


Customer deposits  31,305  31,502 


Unamortized investment tax credits  18,051  18,234 


Hook up fees  12,665  9,610 


Lease liabilities  4,835  5,463 


Contingent development support obligations  1,594  2,874 


Other  9,689  9,720 


 232,789  222,035 


Less: current portion  (49,379)  (47,755) 


$ 183,410 $ 174,280 
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10. Shareholder’s capital


Common shares


The Company is authorized to issue 50,000 common shares. The holders of the common shares are entitled to 
dividends, if, as and when declared by the Board of Directors to one vote per share at meetings of the holders of 
common shares; and upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company to receive pro rata the remaining 
property and assets of the Company; subject to the rights of any shares having priority over the common shares, of 
which none are authorized or outstanding.


Number of common shares outstanding is as follows


Six months ended June 30


2020 2019


Common shares, beginning and end of period  14,006  13,705 


No additional shares were issued during the six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. Subsequent to quarter 
end, the Company issued 523 common shares for $228,000.


11. Income taxes


For the six months ended June 30, 2020, the Company’s overall effective tax rate was different from the statutory 
rate of 25.70% (2019 - 26.34%) primarily due to accrued tax credits, the tax impact on flow-through repair 
deductions, equity allowance for funds used during construction and other non-deductible expenses.


12. Related party transactions


Due to related parties represents advances for current operating costs and reimbursement for management and 
accounting services provided by entities related to LUC as well as other third party costs incurred by entities 
related to LUC on behalf of the Company. These amounts do not bear interest and have no fixed repayment terms. 
Total amounts allocated for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 were $10,575 and $22,171 (2019 - 
$9,997 and $20,128), respectively. 


As at June 30, 2020, the amounts payable to related parties total $2,996 (December 31, 2019 - $1,722).


13. Commitments and contingencies


(a) Contingencies


LUC and its subsidiaries are involved in various claims and litigation arising out of the ordinary course and 
conduct of its business.  Although such matters cannot be predicted with certainty, management does not 
consider LUC’s exposure to such litigation to be material to these unaudited interim consolidated 
financial statements.  Accruals for any contingencies related to these items are recorded in the 
consolidated financial statements at the time it is concluded that its occurrence is probable and the 
related liability is estimable.


Condemnation expropriation proceedings


Liberty Utilities (Apple Valley Ranchos Water) Corp. is the subject of a condemnation lawsuit filed by the 
town of Apple Valley. A court will determine the necessity of the taking by Apple Valley and, if 
established, a jury will determine the fair market value of the assets being condemned. The evidentiary 
portion of the right-to-take condemnation trial finished on July 15, 2020 and a decision is expected from 
the Court in the first half of 2021. Any taking by government entities would legally require fair 
compensation to be paid; however, there is no assurance that the value received as a result of the 
condemnation will be sufficient to recover the Company's net book value of the utility assets taken.


(b)  Commitments


In addition to the commitments related to the proposed acquisitions and development projects disclosed 
in note 6, the following significant commitments exist as of June 30, 2020.


The Company has outstanding purchase commitments for power purchases, gas supply and service 
agreements, service agreements and capital project commitments.  
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13. Commitments and contingencies (continued)


 (b)  Commitments (continued)


Detailed below are estimates of future commitments under these arrangements:


Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Thereafter Total


Power 
purchase (i) $ 29,028 $ 11,585 $ 11,506 $ 11,735 $ 11,913 $ 173,436 $ 249,203 


Gas supply 
and service 
agreements (ii)  68,529  51,495  46,083  39,251  36,253  75,845  317,456 


Service 
agreements  12,852  2,140  2,230  2,008  1,239  —  20,469 


Capital 
projects  504,782  —  —  —  —  —  504,782 


Total $ 615,191 $ 65,220 $ 59,819 $ 52,994 $ 49,405 $ 249,281 $ 1,091,910 


(i) Power purchase: LUC’s electric distribution facilities have commitments to purchase physical 
quantities of power for load serving requirements. The commitment amounts included in the table 
above are based on market prices as of June 30, 2020.  However, the effects of purchased power 
unit cost adjustments are mitigated through a purchased power rate-adjustment mechanism.


(ii) Gas supply and service agreements: LUC’s gas distribution facilities have commitments to purchase 
physical quantities of natural gas under contracts for purposes of load serving requirements.


14. Non-cash operating items


The changes in non-cash operating items consist of the following:


Three months ended June 30, Six months ended June 30,


2020 2019 2020 2019


Accounts receivable $ 30,139 $ 57,169 $ 48,171 $ 49,733 


Related party balances  (5,711)  (5,383)  1,275  (21) 


Fuel and natural gas in storage  (8,005)  (9,420)  3,059  10,061 


Supplies and consumable inventory  (12,929)  (2,441)  (20,496)  (4,582) 


Income taxes recoverable  158  —  158  — 


Prepaid expenses  (323)  (54)  (472)  2,473 


Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  17,978  (29,212)  (47,526)  (68,518) 


Asset retirement and environmental obligations  (127)  (322)  (699)  (1,422) 


Current income tax liability  (2,907)  (10,880)  9,432  7,748 


Net regulatory assets and liabilities  22,614  1,789  18,290  7,906 


$ 40,887 $ 1,246 $ 11,192 $ 3,378 
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15. Financial instruments


(a) Fair value of financial instruments


June 30, 2020
Carrying
amount


Fair
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Notes receivable $ 658 $ 805 $ — $ 805 $ — 


Derivative instrument: 
Commodity contract  57  57  —  57  — 


Total financial assets $ 715 $ 862 $ — $ 862 $ — 


Long-term debt $ 1,405,297 $ 1,566,147 $ — $ 1,566,147 $ — 


Long-term debt from related 
party $ 984,687 $ 1,150,032 $ — $ 1,150,032 $ — 


Derivative instrument: 
Commodity contract  580  580  —  580  — 


Total financial liabilities $ 1,405,877 $ 1,566,727 $ — $ 1,566,727 $ — 


December 31, 2019
Carrying
amount


Fair
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3


Notes receivable $ 1,460 $ 1,581 $ — $ 1,581 $ — 


Derivative instrument - 
Commodity contract  16  16  —  16  — 


Total financial assets $ 1,476 $ 1,597 $ — $ 1,597 $ — 


Long-term debt $ 1,124,039 $ 1,219,868 $ — $ 1,219,868 $ — 


Long-term debt from related 
party $ 1,001,127 $ 1,112,021 $ — $ 1,112,021 $ — 


Derivative instrument: 
Commodity contract  2,072  2,072  —  2,072  — 


Total financial liabilities $ 2,127,238 $ 2,333,961 $ — $ 2,333,961 $ — 


(a) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)


The Company has determined that the carrying value of its short-term financial assets and liabilities 
approximates fair value as of June 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019 due to the short-term maturity of 
these instruments.


The fair value of notes receivable (level 2) is determined using a discounted cash flow method, using 
estimated current market rates for similar instruments adjusted for estimated credit risk as determined by 
management. 


The Company's level 2 fair value of long-term debt at fixed interest rates has been determined using a 
discounted cash flow method and current interest rates.


The Company’s  level 2  fair value derivative  instruments primarily consist of swaps, options and forward 
physical derivatives where market data for pricing inputs are observable.  Level 2 pricing inputs are 
obtained from various market indices and utilize discounting based on quoted interest rate curves which 
are observable in the marketplace.
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15. Financial instruments (continued)


(b) Derivative instruments


Derivative instruments are recognized on the consolidated balance sheets as either assets or liabilities and 
measured at fair value at each reporting period.


(i) Commodity derivatives


The Company uses derivative financial instruments to reduce the cash flow variability associated with the 
purchase price for a portion of future natural gas purchases associated with its gas and electric service 
territories.  The Company’s strategy is to minimize fluctuations in gas sale prices to customers.


The following are commodity volumes, in dekatherms (“dths”) associated with the above derivative 
contracts:


  2020


Financial contracts: Swaps  2,315,733 


        Options  188,834 


                             Forward contracts  2,000,000 


 4,504,567 


The accounting for these derivative instruments is subject to guidance for rate-regulated enterprises.  
Therefore, the fair value of these derivatives is recorded as current or long-term assets and liabilities, with 
offsetting positions recorded as regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities in the unaudited interim 
consolidated balance sheets. Most of the gains or losses on the settlement of these contracts are included 
in the calculation of the fuel and commodity cost adjustments (note 5).  As a result, the changes in fair 
value of these natural gas derivative contracts and their offsetting adjustment to regulatory assets and 
liabilities had no earnings impact. 


The following table presents the impact of the change in the fair value of the Company’s natural gas 
derivative contracts on the unaudited interim consolidated balance sheets:


June 30, 
2020


December 31, 
2019


Regulatory assets:


Swap contracts $ 129 $ 28 


Option contracts $ 16 $ 38 


      Forward contracts $ 809 $ 1,830 


Regulatory liabilities:


Swap contracts $ 139 $ 743 


Option contracts $ 25 $ — 


(b) Derivative instruments (continued)


(ii) Cash flow hedges


In 2017, the Company settled forward contracts to purchase $250,000 10-year U.S. Treasury bills at an 
interest rate of 1.8395% and $250,000 30-year U.S. Treasury bills at an interest rate of 2.5539% 
designated as hedges to the interest rate risk related to $479,000 of senior unsecured notes. The 
effective portion of the hedge was recorded in OCI at the time and is reclassified to interest expense as 
the underlying hedged transactions are incurred. The gains reclassified from AOCI to interest expense for 
the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 were $385 and $774 (2019 - $389 and $778), 
respectively. The Company expects $1,555 of gains net of taxes currently in AOCI to be reclassified into 
interest expense within the next twelve months, as the underlying hedged transactions settle.
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15. Financial instruments (continued)


(c)   Risk management


In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to financial risks that potentially impact its 
operating results. The Company employs risk management strategies with a view to mitigate these risks to 
the extent possible on a cost effective basis. Derivative financial instruments are used to manage certain 
exposures to fluctuations in interest rates and commodity prices. The Company does not enter into 
derivative financial agreements for speculative purposes.


16. Comparative figures


Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement presentation 
adopted in the current period.


17. Subsequent events


The Company has evaluated other subsequent events from the balance sheet date through August 28, 2020, the 
date at which the financial statements were available to be issued.
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Subject: RE: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric

Thank you Mark. An update in the near term, including how the pandemic has impacted Empire’s
load/earnings, and how the wind projects are progressing would be much appreciated. We have our
portfolio review process in early October so I will be reaching out to get an update sometime in
September either way. If you would like to have our annual update discussion before October, that
would work for me. Let me know what timing you were thinking.

Hope all is well,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 6:52 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Q2 Financial Statements - Empire District Electric

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
I hope you and yours are doing well.  Attached please find the Q2 financial statements for
Empire.  Since we were unable to have the mid-year visit in NY around the EEI Treasurer’s
meeting as we had previously planned, we need to find some time to give you and the team
an update on Empire.  In the near future, I’ll start work on a presentation which can be
discussed during the call and we can discuss timing for the visit.

Best Regards,

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
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may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
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From: Mark Timpe
To: Nana Hamilton
Subject: FW: Visit Scheduling
Date: Thursday, September 17, 2020 4:25:00 PM

Nana,
Our team is confirmed for October 16th at 3:30 pm EST.  Please confirm and advise if you’d
like for me to add you to the meeting invitation.  Also, any thoughts on dates/times noted
below for the informal call on the 29th or 30th?

Mark

From: Mark Timpe 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 8:47 AM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Nana,
It looks like 3:30 EST on the 16th will work for us.  I’ve sent out an internal meeting hold
notification to our group and will confirm once I have their acceptances.  Please hold this
time on your calendars in the meantime.

As for the 29th or 30th of September, it looks like 4:30 EST on the 29th or 11:30 EST on the
30th is doable.  Just let me know your preference.

Thanks.

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:43 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Would any other day the week of the 12th work? We are available most of Thursday, 15 October

(after 11.30am) or Friday, 16 October (after 10am). I will likely give you a call on the 29th or 30th

September for an update on operations (e.g. impact of COVID), update on wind generation addition,
any regulatory/rate case or financing developments.

Thanks,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 6:03 PM
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To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
That would be much better.  The 12th won’t work but it looks like the 19th, at either 1 pm or
3:30 Eastern would work for us.  Please let me know if either of those times works for you
and the Team and, if you can, let me know what you’d like to cover on the informal call and
I’ll gather responses etc.  I may have someone join us also.  Finally, just let me know what
date/time you have in mind for the informal call. 

I really appreciate the flexibility.

Regards,

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:48 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Unfortunately cannot do early October as that is when we have our portfolio review. We don’t really
need to have a meeting before then but I may reach out to you for an informal update. We could do

the week of the 12th or 19th if October still works for you.

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:39 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.
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Many thanks.

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
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and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
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From: Mark Timpe
To: Hamilton, Nana
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
Date: Friday, September 18, 2020 4:08:00 PM

Nana,
Yes, I expect that we will be providing you with updated projections.  Also, joining the call
for Empire on October 16th will be:

Arthur Kacprzak, CFO, Algonquin Power & Utilities (David Bronicheski has retired –
his last day was today)
Craig Duff, VP-Treasury, Algonquin Power & Utilities
Tisha Sanderson, Vice President – Finance & Administration, Liberty Utilities Central
Region
Mark Timpe, Director, Treasury, Liberty Utilities

Regards,

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 2:18 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Thanks Mark. I will share the webex details internally. On our end I expect:
Mike Haggarty (team manager)
Jairo Chung (Backup analyst)
Rob Petrosino (Covers Evergy)
Gavin MacFarlane (our Canadian analyst)
Nikita Nanwani (associate analyst)

Will you be providing updated projections? We have a version from January 2020.

Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 3:15 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

• 

• 
• 

• 
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Nana,
Thanks; meeting invitation has been sent.  As we get closer to the time, please let us know
if anyone will be joining you.   We will provide our presentation in advance of the meeting.

Regards,

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 2:04 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Yes, that date and time works for us.

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 3:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
Is October 16th at 3:30 EST also good for you for our full visit?  If so, I’ll send you that
invitation as well.

Thanks.

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 1:35 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Mark, yes, please send me the meeting invitation with dial in information.

th
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4.30pm on the 29  should work.

Thanks,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 5:25 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: FW: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
Our team is confirmed for October 16th at 3:30 pm EST.  Please confirm and advise if you’d
like for me to add you to the meeting invitation.  Also, any thoughts on dates/times noted
below for the informal call on the 29th or 30th?

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Mark Timpe 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 8:47 AM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Nana,
It looks like 3:30 EST on the 16th will work for us.  I’ve sent out an internal meeting hold
notification to our group and will confirm once I have their acceptances.  Please hold this
time on your calendars in the meantime.

As for the 29th or 30th of September, it looks like 4:30 EST on the 29th or 11:30 EST on the
30th is doable.  Just let me know your preference.

Thanks.

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:43 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
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Would any other day the week of the 12th work? We are available most of Thursday, 15 October

(after 11.30am) or Friday, 16 October (after 10am). I will likely give you a call on the 29th or 30th

September for an update on operations (e.g. impact of COVID), update on wind generation addition,
any regulatory/rate case or financing developments.

Thanks,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 6:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
That would be much better.  The 12th won’t work but it looks like the 19th, at either 1 pm or
3:30 Eastern would work for us.  Please let me know if either of those times works for you
and the Team and, if you can, let me know what you’d like to cover on the informal call and
I’ll gather responses etc.  I may have someone join us also.  Finally, just let me know what
date/time you have in mind for the informal call. 

I really appreciate the flexibility.

Regards,

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:48 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Unfortunately cannot do early October as that is when we have our portfolio review. We don’t really
need to have a meeting before then but I may reach out to you for an informal update. We could do

the week of the 12th or 19th if October still works for you.

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:39 PM
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To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.

Many thanks.

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
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-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------



From: Mark Timpe
To: Hamilton, Nana
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
Date: Friday, September 18, 2020 2:14:00 PM

Nana,
Thanks; meeting invitation has been sent.  As we get closer to the time, please let us know
if anyone will be joining you.   We will provide our presentation in advance of the meeting.

Regards,

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 2:04 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Yes, that date and time works for us.

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 3:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
Is October 16th at 3:30 EST also good for you for our full visit?  If so, I’ll send you that
invitation as well.

Thanks.

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 1:35 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Mark, yes, please send me the meeting invitation with dial in information.
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4.30pm on the 29th should work.
 
Thanks,
Nana
 

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 5:25 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: FW: Visit Scheduling
 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
 
Nana,
Our team is confirmed for October 16th at 3:30 pm EST.  Please confirm and advise if you’d
like for me to add you to the meeting invitation.  Also, any thoughts on dates/times noted
below for the informal call on the 29th or 30th?
 
Mark
 

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Mark Timpe 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 8:47 AM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
 
Nana,
It looks like 3:30 EST on the 16th will work for us.  I’ve sent out an internal meeting hold
notification to our group and will confirm once I have their acceptances.  Please hold this
time on your calendars in the meantime.
 
As for the 29th or 30th of September, it looks like 4:30 EST on the 29th or 11:30 EST on the
30th is doable.  Just let me know your preference.
 
Thanks.
 
Mark
 
From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:43 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
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Would any other day the week of the 12th work? We are available most of Thursday, 15 October

(after 11.30am) or Friday, 16 October (after 10am). I will likely give you a call on the 29th or 30th

September for an update on operations (e.g. impact of COVID), update on wind generation addition,
any regulatory/rate case or financing developments.

Thanks,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 6:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
That would be much better.  The 12th won’t work but it looks like the 19th, at either 1 pm or
3:30 Eastern would work for us.  Please let me know if either of those times works for you
and the Team and, if you can, let me know what you’d like to cover on the informal call and
I’ll gather responses etc.  I may have someone join us also.  Finally, just let me know what
date/time you have in mind for the informal call. 

I really appreciate the flexibility.

Regards,

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:48 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Unfortunately cannot do early October as that is when we have our portfolio review. We don’t really
need to have a meeting before then but I may reach out to you for an informal update. We could do

the week of the 12th or 19th if October still works for you.

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:39 PM
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To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.

Many thanks.

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
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Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
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Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------



From: Mark Timpe
To: Hamilton, Nana
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
Date: Friday, September 18, 2020 2:02:00 PM

Nana,
Is October 16th at 3:30 EST also good for you for our full visit?  If so, I’ll send you that
invitation as well.

Thanks.

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 1:35 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Mark, yes, please send me the meeting invitation with dial in information.

4.30pm on the 29th should work.

Thanks,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 5:25 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: FW: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
Our team is confirmed for October 16th at 3:30 pm EST.  Please confirm and advise if you’d
like for me to add you to the meeting invitation.  Also, any thoughts on dates/times noted
below for the informal call on the 29th or 30th?

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Mark Timpe 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 8:47 AM
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To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Nana,
It looks like 3:30 EST on the 16th will work for us.  I’ve sent out an internal meeting hold
notification to our group and will confirm once I have their acceptances.  Please hold this
time on your calendars in the meantime.

As for the 29th or 30th of September, it looks like 4:30 EST on the 29th or 11:30 EST on the
30th is doable.  Just let me know your preference.

Thanks.

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:43 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Would any other day the week of the 12th work? We are available most of Thursday, 15 October

(after 11.30am) or Friday, 16 October (after 10am). I will likely give you a call on the 29th or 30th

September for an update on operations (e.g. impact of COVID), update on wind generation addition,
any regulatory/rate case or financing developments.

Thanks,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 6:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
That would be much better.  The 12th won’t work but it looks like the 19th, at either 1 pm or
3:30 Eastern would work for us.  Please let me know if either of those times works for you
and the Team and, if you can, let me know what you’d like to cover on the informal call and
I’ll gather responses etc.  I may have someone join us also.  Finally, just let me know what
date/time you have in mind for the informal call. 
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I really appreciate the flexibility.

Regards,

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:48 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Unfortunately cannot do early October as that is when we have our portfolio review. We don’t really
need to have a meeting before then but I may reach out to you for an informal update. We could do

the week of the 12th or 19th if October still works for you.

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:39 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.

Many thanks.

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456
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Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
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or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
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Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------



From: Mark Timpe
To: Hamilton, Nana
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
Date: Friday, September 18, 2020 1:47:00 PM

Will do; thanks.

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 18, 2020 1:35 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Mark, yes, please send me the meeting invitation with dial in information.

4.30pm on the 29th should work.

Thanks,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 5:25 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: FW: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
Our team is confirmed for October 16th at 3:30 pm EST.  Please confirm and advise if you’d
like for me to add you to the meeting invitation.  Also, any thoughts on dates/times noted
below for the informal call on the 29th or 30th?

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Mark Timpe 
Sent: Thursday, September 17, 2020 8:47 AM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Nana,
It looks like 3:30 EST on the 16th will work for us.  I’ve sent out an internal meeting hold
notification to our group and will confirm once I have their acceptances.  Please hold this
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mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
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time on your calendars in the meantime.

As for the 29th or 30th of September, it looks like 4:30 EST on the 29th or 11:30 EST on the
30th is doable.  Just let me know your preference.

Thanks.

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:43 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Would any other day the week of the 12th work? We are available most of Thursday, 15 October

(after 11.30am) or Friday, 16 October (after 10am). I will likely give you a call on the 29th or 30th

September for an update on operations (e.g. impact of COVID), update on wind generation addition,
any regulatory/rate case or financing developments.

Thanks,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 6:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
That would be much better.  The 12th won’t work but it looks like the 19th, at either 1 pm or
3:30 Eastern would work for us.  Please let me know if either of those times works for you
and the Team and, if you can, let me know what you’d like to cover on the informal call and
I’ll gather responses etc.  I may have someone join us also.  Finally, just let me know what
date/time you have in mind for the informal call. 

I really appreciate the flexibility.

Regards,

Mark

mailto:Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com
mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
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Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:48 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Unfortunately cannot do early October as that is when we have our portfolio review. We don’t really
need to have a meeting before then but I may reach out to you for an informal update. We could do

the week of the 12th or 19th if October still works for you.

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:39 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.

Many thanks.

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
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-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------



From: Mark Timpe
To: Hamilton, Nana
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
Date: Thursday, September 17, 2020 8:46:00 AM

Nana,
It looks like 3:30 EST on the 16th will work for us.  I’ve sent out an internal meeting hold
notification to our group and will confirm once I have their acceptances.  Please hold this
time on your calendars in the meantime.

As for the 29th or 30th of September, it looks like 4:30 EST on the 29th or 11:30 EST on the
30th is doable.  Just let me know your preference.

Thanks.

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:43 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Would any other day the week of the 12th work? We are available most of Thursday, 15 October

(after 11.30am) or Friday, 16 October (after 10am). I will likely give you a call on the 29th or 30th

September for an update on operations (e.g. impact of COVID), update on wind generation addition,
any regulatory/rate case or financing developments.

Thanks,
Nana

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 6:03 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
That would be much better.  The 12th won’t work but it looks like the 19th, at either 1 pm or
3:30 Eastern would work for us.  Please let me know if either of those times works for you
and the Team and, if you can, let me know what you’d like to cover on the informal call and
I’ll gather responses etc.  I may have someone join us also.  Finally, just let me know what
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date/time you have in mind for the informal call. 

I really appreciate the flexibility.

Regards,

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
VAT#123456

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:48 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Unfortunately cannot do early October as that is when we have our portfolio review. We don’t really
need to have a meeting before then but I may reach out to you for an informal update. We could do

the week of the 12th or 19th if October still works for you.

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:39 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.

Many thanks.

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
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employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------
-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------



From: Mark Timpe
To: Hamilton, Nana
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling
Date: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:03:00 PM

Nana,
That would be much better.  The 12th won’t work but it looks like the 19th, at either 1 pm or
3:30 Eastern would work for us.  Please let me know if either of those times works for you
and the Team and, if you can, let me know what you’d like to cover on the informal call and
I’ll gather responses etc.  I may have someone join us also.  Finally, just let me know what
date/time you have in mind for the informal call. 

I really appreciate the flexibility.

Regards,

Mark

From: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:48 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Visit Scheduling

Unfortunately cannot do early October as that is when we have our portfolio review. We don’t really
need to have a meeting before then but I may reach out to you for an informal update. We could do

the week of the 12th or 19th if October still works for you.

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 5:39 PM
To: Hamilton, Nana <Nana.Hamilton@moodys.com>
Subject: Visit Scheduling

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of Moody's. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.

Many thanks.

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
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602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

-----------------------------------------
Moody's monitors email communications through its networks for regulatory compliance purposes
and to protect its customers, employees and business and where allowed to do so by applicable law.
The information contained in this e-mail message, and any attachment thereto, is confidential and
may not be disclosed without our express permission. If you are not the intended recipient or an
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that you have received this message in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution
or copying of this message, or any attachment thereto, in whole or in part, is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this message in error, please immediately notify us by telephone, fax or e-mail
and delete the message and all of its attachments. Every effort is made to keep our network free
from viruses. You should, however, review this e-mail message, as well as any attachment thereto,
for viruses. We take no responsibility and have no liability for any computer virus which may be
transferred via this e-mail message.
-----------------------------------------



From: Mark Timpe
To: Nana Hamilton
Subject: Visit Scheduling
Date: Wednesday, September 16, 2020 4:38:00 PM

Nana,
I am still working on scheduling the visit for near month-end but am running into some
challenges.  Is there any flexibility for early October?  You mentioned your internal meeting
sometime in early October but I was just wondering what your actual deadline would be for
our meeting.

Many thanks.

Mark
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Attachment D Redacted 
 



From: Mark Timpe
To: Deval, Mayur
Subject: Accepted: Mgmt. Update (EDE): COVID 19

mailto:/O=UTILITIES/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=MARK TIMPE8A5
mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com


From: Mark Timpe
To: Deval, Mayur
Subject: RE: Business contact for Empire District Electric
Date: Friday, September 11, 2020 8:21:00 AM

Thank you.

From: Deval, Mayur <mayur.deval@spglobal.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 11, 2020 8:20 AM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Business contact for Empire District Electric

Hi Mark,

If you are unable to reach the primary contact, you may also try reaching below contacts:

Trent Ottoson
Relationship Manager

S&P Global Ratings
7400 South Alton Court
Centennial, CO 80112
T: 303.721.4405 | C: 720.229.3521
Trent.Ottoson@spglobal.com
www.spglobal.com

George J. Slavin
Director
Relationship Management 
S&P Global Ratings 
55 Water Street
47th Floor
New York, NY 10041
212-438-2629 Tel
646-823-7667 Mobile
George.slavin@spglobal.com

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Friday, September 11, 2020 9:16 AM
To: Deval, Mayur (Analytical) <mayur.deval@spglobal.com>
Subject: Business contact for Empire District Electric

EXTERNAL MESSAGE

Mayur,
Is Ann O’Farrell still the business relationship person for Empire?  I sent a message to her

mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com
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the other day but haven’t heard back from her and was just wondering if she’s still our
business contact person.

Regards,

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

The information contained in this message is intended only for the recipient, and may be a confidential attorney-client communication or
may otherwise be privileged and confidential and protected from disclosure. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or
an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, please be aware that any dissemination or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by
replying to the message and deleting it from your computer. S&P Global Inc. reserves the right, subject to applicable local law, to monitor,
review and process the content of any electronic message or information sent to or from S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses without
informing the sender or recipient of the message. By sending electronic message or information to S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses you,
as the sender, are consenting to S&P Global Inc. processing any of your personal data therein.
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From: Mark Timpe
To: "Deval, Mayur"
Cc: Jepsen, Gerrit; Ng, Andrew
Subject: RE: Request
Date: Friday, March 27, 2020 1:27:00 PM

Mayur,
Please see the responses in red text below.

Regards,

Mark

From: Deval, Mayur [mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com] 
Sent: Friday, March 27, 2020 12:30 PM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Cc: Jepsen, Gerrit <gerrit.jepsen@spglobal.com>; Ng, Andrew <andrew.ng@spglobal.com> 
Subject: Request

Hi Mark,

As a precursor to our call early next week, can you let us know the below information at the earliest?

Current status of Liquidity:

Sources: Total revolving credit facilities, any term loan availability, and cash on hand   

Confidential

Uses: Upcoming debt maturities before 31st march 2021, any outstanding amount under credit 
facilities and commercial paper, if any as on date.

  Confidential

Thanks in advance,
Mayur Deval
Associate, North American Regulated Utilities
Global Infrastructure Ratings

S&P Global Ratings
130 King Street West, Suite 1100
Toronto, ON  M5X 1E5
T: 416.507.3271 | C: 647.710.1361
mayur.deval@spglobal.comwww.spglobal.com
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Please visit the Infrastructure Hub for S&P research on infrastructure
https://www.spratings.com/en_US/infrastructure

Vital statistics show 
#ChangePays 

Vital statistics show that an inclusive workforce benefits the global economy.

The information contained in this message is intended only for the recipient, and may be a confidential attorney-client communication or
may otherwise be privileged and confidential and protected from disclosure. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or
an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, please be aware that any dissemination or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by
replying to the message and deleting it from your computer. S&P Global Inc. reserves the right, subject to applicable local law, to monitor,
review and process the content of any electronic message or information sent to or from S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses without
informing the sender or recipient of the message. By sending electronic message or information to S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses you,
as the sender, are consenting to S&P Global Inc. processing any of your personal data therein.

https://www.spratings.com/en_US/infrastructure
https://www.spglobal.com/en/perspectives/change-pays


From: Mark Timpe
To: "Deval, Mayur"
Subject: RE: Request: Update
Date: Thursday, March 26, 2020 11:30:00 AM

Works for me.

From: Deval, Mayur [mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com] 
Sent: Thursday, March 26, 2020 11:27 AM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: RE: Request: Update

Hi Mark,

How about a short call Monday afternoon at 2PM -2.30PM ET?

Please do let me know so that I can circulate conference details.

Thanks,
Mayur

From: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com> 
Sent: Thursday, March 26, 2020 12:24 PM
To: Deval, Mayur (Analytical) <mayur.deval@spglobal.com>
Subject: RE: Request: Update

Hello Mayur,
Hope you are doing well in spite of all this, especially where you are located.  Other than a
potential call at 4:30 pm Eastern time today, I’m generally available for a call at your
convenience.  Just let me know what works best for you.

Regards,

Mark

Mark Timpe | Liberty Algonquin Business Services  (USA) | Director, Treasury
P: 417-626-5963 | C: 417-483-9370 | E: Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
602 S Joplin Ave, Joplin, MO 64801
VAT#123456

From: Deval, Mayur [mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com] 
Sent: Thursday, March 26, 2020 9:43 AM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: Request: Update

Hi Mark,

I trust you are safe and doing well.
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Given the current COVEID 19 pandemic crisis striking the world and capital markets, I wanted to
quickly touch base with you regarding EDE’s preparedness and plan of actions to respond to any
operational or financial challenges that you may have witnessed till date or foresee in the coming
future. How about a quick call at your convenience to discuss the same?

Please do let me know.

Thanks in advance.

Mayur Deval
Associate, North American Regulated Utilities
Global Infrastructure Ratings

S&P Global Ratings
130 King Street West, Suite 1100
Toronto, ON  M5X 1E5
T: 416.507.3271 | C: 647.710.1361
mayur.deval@spglobal.com
www.spglobal.com

Please visit the Infrastructure Hub for S&P research on infrastructure
https://www.spratings.com/en_US/infrastructure

Vital statistics show 
#ChangePays 

Vital statistics show that an inclusive workforce benefits the global economy.

The information contained in this message is intended only for the recipient, and may be a confidential attorney-client communication or
may otherwise be privileged and confidential and protected from disclosure. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or
an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, please be aware that any dissemination or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by
replying to the message and deleting it from your computer. S&P Global Inc. reserves the right, subject to applicable local law, to monitor,
review and process the content of any electronic message or information sent to or from S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses without
informing the sender or recipient of the message. By sending electronic message or information to S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses you,
as the sender, are consenting to S&P Global Inc. processing any of your personal data therein.
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From: Mark Timpe
To: "Deval, Mayur"
Subject: RE: Request: Update
Date: Thursday, March 26, 2020 11:24:00 AM

Hello Mayur,
Hope you are doing well in spite of all this, especially where you are located.  Other than a
potential call at 4:30 pm Eastern time today, I’m generally available for a call at your
convenience.  Just let me know what works best for you.

Regards,

Mark

From: Deval, Mayur [mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com] 
Sent: Thursday, March 26, 2020 9:43 AM
To: Mark Timpe <Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com>
Subject: Request: Update

Hi Mark,

I trust you are safe and doing well.

Given the current COVEID 19 pandemic crisis striking the world and capital markets, I wanted to
quickly touch base with you regarding EDE’s preparedness and plan of actions to respond to any
operational or financial challenges that you may have witnessed till date or foresee in the coming
future. How about a quick call at your convenience to discuss the same?

Please do let me know.

Thanks in advance.

Mayur Deval
Associate, North American Regulated Utilities
Global Infrastructure Ratings

S&P Global Ratings
130 King Street West, Suite 1100
Toronto, ON  M5X 1E5
T: 416.507.3271 | C: 647.710.1361
mayur.deval@spglobal.com
www.spglobal.com

Please visit the Infrastructure Hub for S&P research on infrastructure
https://www.spratings.com/en_US/infrastructure

mailto:Mark.Timpe@libertyutilities.com
mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com
mailto:mayur.deval@spglobal.com
http://www.spglobal.com/
https://www.spratings.com/en_US/infrastructure


Vital statistics show 
#ChangePays 

Vital statistics show that an inclusive workforce benefits the global economy.

The information contained in this message is intended only for the recipient, and may be a confidential attorney-client communication or
may otherwise be privileged and confidential and protected from disclosure. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or
an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, please be aware that any dissemination or
copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately notify us by
replying to the message and deleting it from your computer. S&P Global Inc. reserves the right, subject to applicable local law, to monitor,
review and process the content of any electronic message or information sent to or from S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses without
informing the sender or recipient of the message. By sending electronic message or information to S&P Global Inc. e-mail addresses you,
as the sender, are consenting to S&P Global Inc. processing any of your personal data therein.

https://www.spglobal.com/en/perspectives/change-pays
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